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Chairman’s statement

EFREHEE

I am pleased to present the annual report of Kingdom Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, “Kingdom”,

“we”, “our” or the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2021
(the “Year”).

Despite COVID-19 continued to affect all nations during the Year,
Kingdom adapted to changes and our hard works paid off. As the
China’s largest exporter of linen yarn, Kingdom produced 20,756
tonnes (2020: 16,704 tonnes) of linen yarn during the Year and
our sales performance reached new height. Kingdom continued to
account for more than 40% of the total pure linen yarn export from
China during the Year, which maintained the Group’s leading position
as the largest pure linen yarn exporter in China for 19 consecutive
years.

Our Kingdom Ethiopia factory completed the recruitment of workers,
commissioning of the machinery and commenced production in the
second half of 2021, we are ramping up the operation and targeting
to scale up to the designed annual capacity of 5,000 tonnes (based
on 24Nm specification) of linen yarn in the near future.

Technological innovation of Kingdom has always been at the
forefront of the industry. The Group had 56 approved patents and
37 patent applications pending approval as of 31 December 2021.
These achievements will gradually become Kingdom’s core
competitiveness.

We work towards our commitment to the environment and strive
to reduce emissions with an objective to achieve carbon neutrality
ultimately. We are also collaborating with CottonConnect, a United
Kingdom based non-profit and social-oriented enterprise with a clear
mission to transform the cotton/linen industry for good, to develop
the REEL Linen Code of Conduct. REEL Linen is a sustainability-
driven initiative for brands which are committed for sourcing more
sustainable linen, including improving environment, quality and
traceability conditions in their supply chain factories and farms
worldwide. REEL stands for the idea of “Responsible Environment,
Enhanced Livelihood”, it implements sustainable development into
production practices. We will continue to promote the industrial
hemp yarn which is equally environment friendly product.
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the Company
believes that opportunities lie within crisis and remains confident
in the future of the Group’s operation and profitability. To show
the Group’s appreciation to the shareholders of the Company
(the “Shareholders”) for their trust and support while reserving
resources for the Group’s immediate and future expansion, the Board
has recommended the payment of a final dividend for the Year of
HK$0.06 per ordinary share of the Company (“Share”) (2020: Nil).

On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank the entire staff for their
devotion and contributions in the past year. Further, | would also
like to express my sincere gratitude to the Shareholders and business
partners for their continuous support for the Group.

Ren Weiming
Chairman
Haiyan County, Zhejiang Province, the PRC, 18 March 2022
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Five Year Financial Summary

hFEMBHE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published
audited financial statements and restated as appropriate, is set out

below.

REVENUE
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income and gains

Selling and distribution costs
Administrative expenses

Other expenses

Finance costs

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX
Income tax (expense)/credit

PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Total assets
Total liabilities

Non-controlling interests
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Year ended 31 December

BHE+ZA=+—HLEE

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
- IZZTIZFE IZ-NFE IZ-NF ZIZZ—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR AREBFR AREBFRT ARETET

(Restated) (Restated)

(IR E7) (1= E51)
1,799,690 1,057,426 1,499,560 1,245,643 1,023,962
(1,460,162) (950,129) (1,136,293) (987,762) (907,694)
339,528 107,297 363,267 257,881 116,268
7,136 23,210 23,094 24,308 25,575
(82,324) (38,879) (49,453) (48,687) (39,361)
(98,406) (77,601) (82,399) (73,020) (49,670)
(3,803) (16,847) (10,327) (6,818) (38,200)
(39,044 (36,583) (22,148) (21,520) (17,712)
- 11,123 235 - -
123,087 (28,280) 222,269 132,144 (3,100)
(32,587) 15,602 (62,163) (28,957) 3,722
90,500 (12,678) 160,106 103,187 622
88,223 (11,177) 154,941 102,006 (3,132)
2,277 (1,501) 5,165 1,181 3,754

BEEREE
As at 31 December
B+=ZB=+—H

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—_EZ-F “EB°%F “E-NE E-)\& _EF—tE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR AREBFR AREFRT ARETET

(Restated) (Restated)

E=rdl) (iR E51)
2,789,467 2,646,648 2,741,751 2,127,748 1,962,416
(1,438,851) (1,407,013) (1,447,838) (974,239) (912,220)
(84,890) (44,371) (45,689) (40,620) (32,439)
1265726  1,195264 1248224 1,112,889 1,017,757



Management Discussion and Analysis (Note)

BUSINESS REVIEW

Despite the coronavirus disease identified in late 2019 (“COVID-19")
continued to affect many countries in terms of travel restrictions,
economic activities of many countries have gradually rebounded from
the trough of 2020.

China successfully contained the situation and reported an enviable
GDP growth in the Year, at a rate of 8.1%. The total export of textile
yarns, fabrics and related products from China recorded a reduction
of 5.6% in value in US dollars term during the Year, according to the
statistics of the General Administration of Customs of the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC” or “China”). The market price of cotton
increased by 47.7% in 2021 which may exert positive influence to
the market demand of linen yarn.

According to the statistics of the General Administration of Customs
of the PRC, the total volume of pure linen yarn exports from China
in 2021 surged by approximately 52.3% year-on-year, and Kingdom
exported 14,138 tonnes, accounting for 60.4% of the total export
volume of pure linen yarn from China.

In the trough of the economic cycle, the low level of cotton yarn
price may lead to a reduction in demand for pure linen yarn from
fashion brands and garment manufacturers, which may favour cotton
or cotton/linen blended yarn at such times to enable products made
of these materials to be more appealing to relatively cost-conscious
consumers. However, if the price factor is being put aside, the market
has proven that pure linen yarn is a preferred choice over linen mixed
yarn. For years, the Group has been focusing on upholding excellent
quality and offering tailored customer services. As such, the Group
has always been a key partner of major overseas linen fabric and
garment manufacturers.

Note: (Comparative figures have been restated for the Group’s application
of business combination under common control. Details of the
restatement are set out in note 30 to the financial statements.)

B E s ow k3 th (B =E)

F 5o EE
BER_ZE—NEXLERENBERFESFR
(TCovID-19 ) RHITRHI A EEEF ERSEH
X ERZEARNEEIHER _ S _TFENK
BEH o

PEEANEGEE TR AEERELSARRE
BIGDPIE & > 1 R 58.1% - RiEHZE AR HEFE
(THRERL) /SRAMEENR et B > FENRAEEN
AR ~ B BB R E SRPI 48 2B LA = o at
TE5.6%° —E - —F > iRTEM B LIR4A7.7% > 7]
EHEMANMISRRELETEZE

RIEPRERAEENRTEE S —FFH
MTmmAH OARSER KIS RA52.3%  ME
EMNHOZEA14,13808 (b B 4HIE R4 H 48
2M960.4% ©

FEERBETE B ROERRIREKFAE
I8 5 Ry 4% i 2 e BRI B S R B A R R AV BI R K o
PAEERRNESBERAEHIOHES  FiEm
HER e PR B3E 7 X s B B ) AE R R B AR AL B4R
R AD 1E 7% FRAT o 22T » ﬁ%ﬁ?%ﬁfﬂ%l%‘?

TIHER > M MY LR RUR AT 40 B °%
FRAEFASINITEBRME %D%EHEEE’J%

PR A ZREE—BURBLEE/INEED
TR MEF R RSN ERBH

Kzt (LEB#FEEY  UHAERERERZET
THEXRGH BHHNEBEHENPHBREW S
30°)
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EREmRD

During the Year, the Group’s pure linen yarn exports amounted to
14,138 tonnes (2020: 7,640 tonnes). The Group continued to account
for more than 40% of the total pure linen yarn export from China,
signifying the Group’s continuous leading position as the largest pure
linen yarn exporter in China for 19 consecutive years.

Revenue of the Group for the Year surged by approximately 70.2%
year-on-year to RMB1,799,690,000 (2020: RMB1,057,426,000).
Gross profit increased by approximately 216.4% year-on-year to
RMB339,528,000 (2020: RMB107,297,000) and overall gross margin
increased to 18.9% in 2021 (2020: 10.1%). Profit for the Year was
RMB90,500,000, as compared to a net loss of RMB12,678,000 for
the year 2020. Basic earnings per Share amounted to RMBO0.14
during the Year as compared to basic loss per Share of RMB0.02 in
2020.

To reciprocate the Shareholders for their continuous support for the
Group while reserving resources for further expansions, the Board has
recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.06 per Share
for the Year (2020: Nil).

Major Markets and Customers

Being the largest linen yarn exporter in China, the Group has a sales
network covering over 20 countries and regions around the world.
In order to timely seize market opportunities, keep abreast of the
market trends and deliver comprehensive and efficient services, the
Group has established presence in major overseas linen textile and
consumer markets. The Group currently has one subsidiary in Italy
and agents in Turkey, Portugal, Italy, Lithuania and Korea. The Group's
subsidiary in ltaly keeps its own inventories so that it can serve
the immediate needs of and tighten its co-operation with high-end
customers in Europe. During the Year, revenue derived from overseas
sales amounted to RMB1,126,553,000, representing approximately
62.6% of the Group’s total revenue. In particular, revenue from
European Union (“EU”) countries amounted to approximately
RMB563,110,000, representing approximately 31.3% of the Group's
total revenue, while revenue from non-EU countries amounted to
approximately RMB563,443,000, representing approximately 31.3%
of the Group's total revenue.

During the Year, the Group’s top five exporting countries are ltaly,

Portugal, India, Turkey and Korea which accounted for 80.5% of the
Group's total export revenue during the Year (2020: 76.2%).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Domestic sales in China increased by approximately 41.3% during
the Year to RMB673,137,000, representing approximately 37.4% of
the Group's total revenue. In light of the increasing income level,
there have been fundamental changes in the consumption patterns of
the general public in China. Consumers’ concerns have shifted from
pure practicality to quality and the ability to reflect their personal
taste. Linen textiles are not only anti-bacterial and comfortable,
but also highly environment-friendly in their production process.
Therefore, linen textiles perfectly suit the taste of new-generation
consumers who may have a stronger preference for environment-
friendly and sustainable products. Many leading domestic and
overseas trend-setting brands and fast-moving fashion brands have
now embarked on their own linen selections. For example, a famous
Japanese brand not only has launched a linen garment line, but has
also introduced a tracking system for the use of its raw materials
to allow its product quality and environment-friendliness to be
monitored by itself together with its consumers.

Sales Analysis by Domestic and Overseas Markets

For the year ended
31 December 2021

HE_E_-&
+ZB=1+—HLEHFE
RMB'000 %
ARETT
China Al 673,137 37.4%
EU B® 563,110 31.3%
Non-EU I 563,443 31.3%
Total Revenue mBA 1,799,690 100.0%

EEE R

MR E R A EEEMNG41 3%E AR
673,137,0007T  {h AN E B AR A XI37.4% o BEE
R EEANBRUAKE LT HERTLEE TR
APEE HBEENBAEMITHANHEES
BEARMEIEREER EEZBEAMESNE
Mo AR N EREFE HEEBRRENIE
BERF-AIL ERMHBRTITEH—RHE
EHRRNIFEEEERUEEENET -8
Bl B INTF 2B RE ~ RS M AR B H
AR R o fl0 » — (@& 2% H A @B EHE
H T ARG BREN > BRI S| AT R A RHE M
o FHU R HEE - REEERRENIRRE
rﬁo

BERSNHIETHE D

Year-on- Year-on-
For the year ended year change  year change
31 December 2020 in revenue in revenue
BE_Z-ZTE A A
+ZA=+—HLEE REEE HEEH
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %

ARETT ARETF T
476,377 45.1% 196,760 41.3%
302,630 28.6% 260,480 86.1%
278,419 26.3% 285,024 102.4%
1,057,426 100.0% 742,264 70.2%

Kingdom Holdings Limited £Z#ZERAERAE

11



12

Management Discussion and Analysis

EREmRD

Raw Material Procurement and Related Strategies

During the Year, market prices of fibre flax, the major raw material
of linen yarn, maintained stable. The Group mainly sources its fibre
flax from well-established origins such as France and Belgium. Being
one of the largest buyers in these regions, the Group enjoys strong
bargaining power when dealing with suppliers. Furthermore, the
Group has formulated systematic procurement strategies under which
the Group will procure raw materials according to the level of fibre
flax harvest, the Group's inventory level and the market prices of fibre
flax so as to stabilise its raw material costs and overall market demand
and supply as well as reduce the price fluctuations of raw materials.

The Group also procures industrial hemp fibre for production
of hemp yarn in its factory in Heilongjiang, China. Kingdom
collaborates with the local farmers to secure stable supply of hemp
fibre in China with the aim to further stabilise the price fluctuations
and supply of raw materials. The Group is also building a warehouse
in Heilongjiang to manage the storage, logistics and supply chain
management of hemp materials with a vision to transforming
Heilongjiang into a national trading hub of hemp materials in China.

The Group is also collaborating with CottonConnect, a UK nonprofit
and social-oriented enterprise with a clear mission to transform the
linen industry for good, to develop the REEL Linen Code of Conduct.
REEL Linen is a sustainability-driven initiative for brands which are
committed for sourcing more sustainable linen, including improving
environment, quality and traceability conditions in their supply
chain factories and farms worldwide. REEL stands for the idea of
“Responsible Environment, Enhanced Livelihood”, it implements
sustainable development into production practices.

2021 Annual Report — T - —F 5
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Production Bases and Productivity
As at 31 December 2021, the Group had four production bases in
China and one production base in Ethiopia.

The Group’s production bases are continuously under improvement.
New production bases are equipped with the latest management
systems, technologies and equipment, a combination of which
has resulted in a smooth operation and reduced unnecessary
procedures and wastage of raw materials, improving the Group's
overall production efficiency. These systems not only have made
the production processes more environment-friendly, but have
also reduced the production costs of the Group and have laid a
solid foundation of profit growth for the Group in the long run. For
further details of the measures taken by the Group in relation to
environmental protection, please refer to the separate Environmental,
Social and Governance Report of the Group for the Year, which is
expected to be despatched together with the annual report of the
Company for the Year before the end of April 2022.

China

The Group’s production base in Rugao City, Jiangsu Province,
the PRC has an annual production capacity of 6,000 tonnes. Two
other production bases are located in Haiyan County, Zhejiang
Province, the PRC. The first Haiyan plant has an annual production
capacity of 7,000 tonnes and the second Haiyan plant has an annual
production capacity of 5,000 tonnes. The Group has established a
fourth production facility in Heilongjiang Province in China with an
annual capacity of 4,000 tonnes for flax and industrial hemp yarn.
Currently, the designated annual linen and industrial hemp yarn
production capacity of the Group amounts to 22,000 tonnes based
on standardized 24Nm specification. During the Year, the utilization
of the four production bases in China were high with them operating
at near full capacity.

The Group owns a 75.34% equity interest in the flax and industrial
hemp yarn manufacturing facility in Heilongjiang and it is the
Group’s maiden attempt to explore the industrial hemp yarn market,
as the Company believes industrial hemp yarn market will grow
rapidly in the next few years due to the national policy in China to
promote the planting of industrial hemp in the Heilongjiang region
and the use of the industrial hemp textile products.

EEE R

EEEMKRERE
RIEBE-_—F+-RA=+—H'x&E@BEFEH
R VIEEEEM R RER DR T —EEE
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FEBNEEEMEERETER - MHNEESR
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BRHAIRRIERNE—TFE F2RAB1TTE
MAEEARFERR HERELGRS FRHR
TECTHFNARAMERSABDRFEEFR—MH
FEH) o

FE
REBMUNRFEIHFEANRMNEEEMFESE
#36,000M8 o SN AL EE MR PN PEITNIEE
B o B — AR B FESEA7,000M » M/SE —
HARR 2 EEEERE 45,0000 e AEE AT R BEEILE
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Ethiopia

The Group is also committed to investing in Ethiopia for new
production facilities and has acquired a parcel of land with a site
area of 300,000 square meters located in Adama Industrial Park,
Adama, Ethiopia. The phase one development of this land parcel
has further boosted the annual production capacity of the Group
by 5,000 tonnes. The Board believes that the federal government
of Ethiopia is keen to develop the Kingdom Linen Yarn Factory
constructed and to be further developed on this land parcel into
one of the model projects of the “Belt & Road” initiative in Ethiopia.
The Chinese government also encouraged manufacturers to expand
overseas by facilitating political risk insurance coverage by state-
owned insurance company. The Ethiopia project will generate savings
on land lease, labour, energy, tax and custom duty for exports of linen
yarn manufactured in Ethiopia to a vast number of countries in the
world. Despite there having been on and off ethno-political conflicts
since October 2016 leading to the resignation of the former Prime
Minister of Ethiopia in February 2018, the Government of Ethiopia
has reaffirmed their commitment in maintaining the industrialization
agenda that has already been initiated. With the new Ethiopian Prime
Minister Abiy Ahmed Ali being awarded with the Nobel Peace Prize
in 2019, the Board believes that the strategic investment in Ethiopia
will have a long-term benefit to the Group. The factory in Ethiopia
commenced production in the second half of 2021 and has been
gradually ramping up the production to its designed capacity.
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Existing and planned production bases

No.

i

Factory

15

Haiyan 1st Factory

BE—HEE
Rugao Factory
MR E

Haiyan 2nd Factory

BE AR

Qinggang Factory

BB
Ethiopia

REMELED

Location
24

Zhejiang
Ziipas

Jiangsu

LER
Zhejiang
T
Heilongjiang
~=AEL
Adama

ape$:t3

Patents, Awards and Recognition
The Group has continued to invest in technology and innovation. As

Country
EIES

China
A
China
FEY
China
]
China
A
Ethiopia

REMILE

at 31 December 2021, the Group owned 56 registered patents and

there were another 37 patents applications pending formal approval

by relevant authorities.
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EEE R

HAEKCHEEEEEN
Annual
capacity
(Tonnes) Utilisation/Status
FER
(W)  FEE/M®R
7,000 Close to 100%
#EI100%
6,000 Close to 100%
FH100%
5,000 Close to 100%
EIT100%
4,000 Close to 100%
ZI100%
5,000 Commenced production
in second half of 2021
I -ETHERE
B RIBRHRE

AEEFBERENKMAIH - RF - —F+=
B=+—B > ~&EE#EARScHZMEFN > FH37
RENRFEAFARERRENSEL -
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For the Year, the Group’s revenue grew by approximately 70.2% to
approximately RMB1,799,690,000 (2020: RMB1,057,426,000). The
surge of revenue was mainly attributable to the demand of linen yarn
picked up and the improved selling price of pure linen yarn during
the Year. During the Year, sales to China, EU and non-EU markets
grew 41.3%, 86.1% and 102.4%, respectively.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

For the Year, the Group’s gross profit reached RMB339,528,000,
representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 216.4% (2020:
RMB107,297,000). Gross profit margin for the Year improved by 8.8
percentage points to 18.9% (2020: 10.1%) as a result of improved
selling prices of pure linen yarn during the Year.

Other Income and Gains

For the Year, the Group’s other income and gains recorded a net
gain of RMB7,136,000 (2020: RMB23,210,000), mainly comprising
interest income of RMB234,000 (2020: RMB875,000), various
government grants which amounted to RMB4,641,000 (2020:
RMB16,598,000) and insurance compensation of RMB402,000
(2020: RMB132,000).

Selling and Distribution Expenses

For the Year, the Group's selling and distribution expenses amounted
to approximately RMB82,324,000 (2020: RMB38,879,000), which
accounted for approximately 4.6% (2020: 3.7%) of the Group's
revenue. The increase in the selling and distribution expenses as
a percentage of revenue for the Year was mainly due to the higher
percentage of freight and custom clearance expenses incurred, as
higher sea freight charge was imposed by major shipping companies
due to the disruption of the normal freight schedule as a result of the
COVID-19 pandemic during the Year. In addition, more commission
was paid as commission related sales to total revenue increased from
39.7% in 2020 to 49.5% during the Year.
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Administrative Expenses

For the Year, the Group’s administrative expenses amounted
to approximately RMB98,406,000 (2020: RMB77,601,000),
representing an increase of approximately 26.8% as compared to
the year ended 31 December 2020. The increase of administrative
expenses was mainly due to the additional research and development
expense of approximately RMB14.9 million and the additional staff
costs of RMB5.7 million incurred during the Year.

Other Expenses

Other expenses of the Group for the Year mainly comprised the loss
on derivative financial instrument of approximately RMB1,275,000
(2020: Nil), net exchange loss of approximately RMB162,000 due to
the United States Dollars having depreciated against Chinese Yuan by
approximately 2.3% while Euros having depreciated against Chinese
Yuan by approximately 10% during the Year (2020: RMB14,700,000),
and an asset disposal loss of RMB470,000 (2020: Nil).

Finance Costs

For the Year, finance costs amounted to approximately
RMB39,044,000 (2020: RMB36,583,000), which comprised
net finance cost of approximately RMB38,555,000 (2020:
RMB36,113,000) and interest on lease liabilities of approximately
RMB489,000 (2020: RMB470,000). Net finance costs represented
the total interest expense on bank loans of approximately
RMB42,678,000 (2020: RMB46,881,000) less amount capitalized
attributable to capital assets. An interest expense of approximately
RMB4,132,000 was capitalized during the Year (2020:
RMB10,768,000).

Income Tax Expenses/(Credits)

Income tax expense for the Year was approximately RMB32,587,000
(2020: income tax credit of approximately RMB15,602,000). The
tax credit in 2020 mainly represented the tax losses of the Group
available for offsetting against future taxable profits. The effective tax
rate of the Year was 26.5%.

Profit/(Loss) for the Year

As a result, the Group recorded a net profit for the Year of
approximately RMB90,500,000, as compared to a net loss of
approximately RMB12,678,000 for the year ended 31 December
2020.
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Minority Interests

The minority interests amounted to RMB2,277,000 which mainly
represented the share of the net profit of the 24.66% of equity
interests of Heilongjiang Kingdom Enterprise Co., Ltd.* (&L
EHEMEBRAE) (“Heilongjiang Kingdom”), attributable to
the minority shareholders during the Year (2020: share of loss of
approximately RMB1,501,000).

Profit/(Loss) Attributable to Owners of the Parent
During the Year, the Group recorded a profit attributable to owners
of the parent of approximately RMB88,223,000, as compared to
a net loss attributable to owners of the parent of approximately
RMB11,177,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Other Intangible Assets

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s intangible assets were
mainly patents and licences amounted to RMB2,000,000 (2020:
RMB2,000,000) and certified emission rights obtained in 2012
for a term of 20 years, which amounted to RMB5,987,000 (2020:
RMB6,158,000). Intangible assets are subject to amortisation based
on their useful lives. For the Year, the amortisation of intangible assets
was approximately RMB580,000 (2020: RMB545,000).

Inventories

As at 31 December 2021, inventories of the Group decreased by
approximately 20.8% to RMB629,221,000 (2020: RMB794,069,000),
the average inventory turnover days decreased from 305 days as
at 31 December 2020 to 178 days as at 31 December 2021. The
improvement in number of inventory turnover days was mainly
attributable to robust sales revenue recorded during the Year.

Trade and Notes Receivables

As at 31 December 2021, trade and notes receivables of the Group
increased by approximately 36.4% to RMB512,732,000 (2020:
RMB375,843,000), the average trade receivable turnover days
decreased from 125 days as at 31 December 2020 to 90 days as at 31
December 2021.
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Trade and Notes Payables

As at 31 December 2021, trade and notes payables of the
Group increased by approximately 47.8% to approximately
RMB293,920,000 (2020: RMB198,863,000). The average trade
payable turnover days decreased to 62 days during the Year (2020:
107 days).

Interest-bearing Bank and Other Borrowings

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings decreased by 12.8% to approximately
RMB885,795,000 (2020: RMB1,015,603,000), of which
RMB828,378,000 (2020: RMB962,399,000) were classified as
current liabilities and RMB57,417,000 (2020: RMB53,204,000)
were classified as non-current liabilities. The Group’s borrowings are
denominated in Renminbi, United States Dollars and Euros, of which
approximately RMB485,348,000 (2020: RMB598,359,000) were at
fixed interest rates.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had net current assets of
approximately RMB178,810,000 (2020: RMB124,115,000). The
Group financed its operations with internally generated resources and
bank loans during the Year. As at 31 December 2021, the Group had
total cash and deposits of approximately RMB293,943,000 (2020:
RMB199,771,000) which consisted of cash and cash equivalents
of approximately RMB249,213,000 (2020: RMB166,882,000)
and pledged deposits of approximately RMB44,730,000 (2020:
RMB32,889,000). The Group’s cash and cash equivalents were
denominated in Renminbi, United States Dollars, Hong Kong Dollars,
Euros and Ethiopian Birrs.

The liquidity ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2021 was
approximately 113.3% (2020: 109.3%). Total equity of the Group as
at 31 December 2021 was approximately RMB1,350,616,000 (2020:
RMB1,239,635,000).

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings repayable within 12 months therefrom of
approximately RMB828,378,000 (2020: RMB962,399,000) and
long-term interest-bearing other borrowings of approximately
RMB57,417,000 (2020: RMB53,204,000). Together these interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings represented a gross debt gearing
ratio (i.e. total borrowings divided by total equity) of approximately
65.6% (2020: 81.9%).
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CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
As at 31 December 2021,
commitments of the Group in respect of purchase of property,
plant and equipment not provided for in the annual financial
statements amounted to approximately RMB259,247,000 (2020:
RMB100,889,000).

outstanding contractual capital

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL
Acquisition of additional 2.61% equity interest in Heilongjiang
Kingdom by way of capital injection

On 21 October 2021, (i) Zhejiang Jinda Flax Co., Ltd* GiiiT=
ZEumMARAT) (“Zhejiang Jinda”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, (ii) Heilongjiang Kailai Investment
Co., Ltd.* (REEIBFIIRKRERIRAF) (“Heilongjiang Kailai"), a
company established in the PRC with limited liability, (iii) Ms. Shen
Chunyan and (iv) Shenzhen Boyang Textile Industrial Co., Ltd.* G|
TURFHBEEBIRAT), all being shareholders of Heilongjiang
Kingdom, a company established in the PRC with limited liability and
a then indirect 72.73%-owned subsidiary of the Company, passed
a shareholders’” resolution, pursuant to which it was resolved that
Zhejiang Jinda and Heilongjiang Kailai would make additional cash
contribution of RMB146,000,000 and RMB44,000,000, respectively,
as new registered capital into Heilongjiang Kingdom. Completion of
the capital injection took place in October 2021, upon which, the
Group's effective equity interest in Heilongjiang Kingdom increased
from 72.73% to 75.34%, representing an increase of 2.61%.
Heilongjiang Kingdom has remained as a subsidiary of the Company
and its financial results will continue to be consolidated in the
Group's accounts. Please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 21 October 2021 for details of this acquisition.

Saved as disclosed above, the Group did not have any material

acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures
during the Year.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

The Group did not hold any significant investments during the Year.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any contingent
liabilities (2020: Nil).

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2021, the current interest-bearing bank
borrowings with a carrying amount of RMB443,521,000 (2020:
RMB401,682,000) were secured by certain property, plant and
equipment, prepaid land lease payments, pledged deposits, and
inventories with carrying amounts of RMB322,481,000 (2020:
RMB252,403,000), nil (2020: RMB56,029,000), nil (2020:
RMB2,722,000) and RMB40,000,000 (2020: RMB40,000,000),
respectively.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENT OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

Save for the various up-keeping and maintenance of existing factory
projects, possible vertical expansion to weaving and to build a new
warehouse in Heilongjiang, the Directors confirmed that as at the
date of this annual report, there is no current plan to acquire any
material investment or capital assets.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group's transactions are mainly denominated in Renminbi,
United States Dollars, Euro and Hong Kong Dollars. The exchange
rate changes of such currencies were monitored regularly and
managed appropriately. The Group had entered into certain foreign
currency forward contracts by utilising its credit line during the Year
and there were RMB1,275,000 derivative financial liabilities recorded
in the current liabilities as at 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).
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REMUNERATION POLICY AND SHARE OPTION
SCHEME

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a total of 3,808 employees
(2020: 2,890 employees). Total staff costs incurred for the Year
increased by approximately 29.5% to RMB238,536,000 (2020:
RMB184,224,000). The increase in staff costs stemmed from
additional headcounts to cope with the expanded operation and the
commencement of the factory operation in Ethiopia during the Year.

The Group offers comprehensive and competitive remuneration,
retirement scheme and benefit packages to its employees. The
Group is required to make contributions (retirement insurance and
unemployment insurance) to a social security scheme in China. The
remuneration policy for the employees of the Group is formulated by
the Board with reference to the employee’s respective qualification,
experience, responsibilities and contributions to the Group, as well as
the prevailing market rate of remuneration for a similar position. The
remuneration of the Directors are determined by the Board based on
the recommendation of the remuneration committee of the Company
(the “Remuneration Committee”) and with the mandate given by
the Shareholders at the annual general meeting having regard to the
Group's operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics. The Group also provides both internal and external
training programmes for its employees from time to time.

The Group has also adopted a share option scheme and a share
award plan for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to the
Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, and other
employees of the Group who have contributed to the success of the
Group's operations.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OUTLOOK AND PLANS

The Group will leverage on the success of the production of its
factory in Ethiopia to expand its coverage to different customers and
markets.

The trend of environment-friendliness and the use of natural fibers
have been set. Many fashion brands have made commitments to
use environmental and sustainable materials for their products.
Linen yarn, as one of the most environment-friendly fibers, will
surely benefit from this trend. Kingdom has been collaborating
with CottonConnect, a UK non-profit and social-oriented enterprise
with a clear mission to transform the cotton/linen industry for
good, to develop the REEL Linen Code of Conduct. REEL Linen is a
sustainability-driven initiative for brands which are committed for
sourcing more sustainable linen, including improving environment,
quality and traceability conditions in their supply chain factories
and farms worldwide. REEL stands for the idea of “Responsible
Environment, Enhanced Livelihood”, it implements sustainable
development into production practices. This initiative would help
Kingdom to move towards a sustainable operation and ensure its
long-term success.

The Group will also leverage on its strength and explore the
possibilities of tapping into the linen fabric production in the near
future. We will also expand and promote the use of hemp yarn, to
extend our product offerings.

China has become one of the largest consumer markets for linen
textile products. The Company is confident in the sustainable
demand for linen yarn in the coming years, as the Chinese
government encourages domestic consumption for its GDP growth
and transformation of its economy to lessen the reliance on exports.
Kingdom will continue to leverage on its market leading position to
capture the opportunities in the domestic market.
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Directors and Senior Management

EShEREEE

CHAIRMAN AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Ren Weiming (fE#BH), aged 62, is the chairman of the
Group and an executive Director. Mr. Ren is responsible for
the overall management of the Group and decision-making
of the business development strategy of the Group. Mr. Ren
has worked in the silk and textile industry since 1979. He has
been the chairman and general manager of Zhejiang Kingdom
Creative Co., Ltd.* (I EZAIERMHERAT) (“Kingdom
Creative”), a company which is owned as to 71.64% by Mr.
Ren since 2000. Mr. Ren started to engage in the linen yarn
manufacturing business in December 2001. He joined the Group
in March 2003 when the first operating member of the Group,
Zhejiang Jinyuan Flax Co., Ltd.* (It MAE RAE)
(“Zhejiang Jinyuan”) was established. Mr. Ren is a director of
Zhejiang Jinyuan, Jiangsu Jinyuan Flax Co., Ltd. * CI#k &= Cie A
FR/A 7)) (“Jiangsu Jinyuan”), and Zhejiang Kingdom Flax Co., Ltd.*
G T &Z M A RAE) (“Zhejiang Kingdom”), all of which are
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Ren is also a director
of Heilongjiang Kingdom Enterprise Co., Ltd.* (BB T EMES R
‘7)) (“Heilongjiang Kingdom”), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company. Mr. Ren obtained various awards including National
Township Entrepreneur awarded by the Ministry of Agriculture of
the PRC, National Excellent Young Factory Manager and Zhejiang
Provincial Excellent Entrepreneur. He was a representative of the
9th and 10th National People’s Congress of Zhejiang Province.
Mr. Ren is currently the vice president of China Bast and Leaf Fibers
Textile Association and the Vice Chairman of The Hong Kong General
Chamber of Textiles Ltd. He is also a director of Kingdom Investment
Holdings Limited (“Kingdom Investment”) which holds interests in
the Shares discloseable under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) (the "SFO”). Mr. Ren is a director of Kingdom
Creative and its subsidiaries including Zhejiang Jinxiu Jiangnan Silk
Co., Ltd.* (M TERA T EABBRAE) (“Jinxiu Jiangnan”) and
Interconnect Financial Leasing (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.* CEERIE
5 (L75) BPR/AF) (“Interconnect”). Mr. Ren is also a director of
Bank of Jiaxing Co., Ltd.* (ZHIR1TIRISBRAE) which is owned
as to 7.39% by Kingdom Creative.
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Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Shen Yueming (JLBEBB), aged 60, is an executive Director.
Mr. Shen is a director of Zhejiang Jinyuan, Jiangsu Jinyuan and
Zhejiang Kingdom, all of which are wholly-owned subsidiaries of
the Company. Mr. Shen is also a director of Heilongjiang Kingdom,
a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Shen is
responsible for the day-to-day operations and management of the
Group and also takes part in the decision making of the business
development strategy of the Group. He is also a director of Kingdom
Creative and its subsidiaries including Jinxiu Jiangnan, Interconnect
and Haiyan Chen Chen Silk Clothing Co., Ltd* (S5 B E 444855555
FR/2 1) . Mr. Shen joined the Group in March 2003.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Zhang Hongwen (58532), aged 55, is an executive Director.
Mr. Zhang is the director of Zhejiang Jinyuan, Jiangsu Jinyuan,
Zhejiang Kingdom, Kingdom Tiansheng (Shanghai) Trading Co.,
Ltd* (EEXR (LB BEHMRARHE), Zhejiang Kingdom
REEL Textile Co. Ltd.* G I ZHEAHBAE R AT (“Kingdom
REEL”) and Heilongjiang Kingdom Industrial Hemp Supply
Chain Management Co., Ltd.* (BEEIHET £ AMMEERE
BIEBIRAE), all of which are subsidiaries of the Company.
He is also a director of Kingdom Creative and its subsidiaries
including Interconnect, Jinxiu Jiangnan, Zhejiang Yuyuan Photovoltaic
Co., Ltd.* GIVIRAARBRAE), Heilongjiang Kangyuan
Bio-Technology Co., Ltd.* (REEIRBELEVMHZBRRE)
(“Kangyuan Bio-Tech”). Before joining the Group in 2003, Mr. Zhang
was the assistant to the general manager and the head of capital
clearing division of Kingdom Creative from 2000 to 2002.
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Directors and Senior Management

EShEREEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. Shen Hong (E78), aged 55, is an executive Director. Ms. Shen
is the management controller of the Group. She completed
her professional accounting studies at Zhejiang Long March
Finance School in the People’s Republic of China in July 1994
and has more than 20 years of experience in finance-related
area. Ms. Shen is the director of Heilongjiang Kingdom and
Heilongjiang Kangyuan Flax and Hemp Seed Co., Ltd.* (&
B I ERIEX AR AT (“Kangyuan Seed”), both of which
are non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Shen
is also a director of Kingdom Creative and its subsidiaries including
Kangyuan Bio-Tech. Before joining the Group in March 2003, she
worked in Kingdom Creative as the head of finance management
department.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Ngan Kam Wai Albert (B85/%), aged 72, is a non-executive
Director. Mr. Ngan is the chairman of Millionfull Company Limited,
a company incorporated in Hong Kong engaged in the trading of
linen and linen blend textiles. Mr. Ngan was a member of the 9th
and 10th Fujian Provincial People’s Political Consultative Conference
and vice-chairman of Po Leung Kuk from April 2010 to March 2012.
He was the president of The Hong Kong General Chamber of Textiles
Ltd. from September 2009 to August 2011 and was appointed as the
permanent honorary chairman of The Hong Kong General Chamber
of Textiles Ltd. in September 2011 and as a director of HuaQiao
University in 2002. He is a member of the Election Committee of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. He joined the Group in
September 2004. He is also the chairman of the board of directors of
Millionfull International Co., Ltd which has interests in the shares of
the Company discloseable under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO. He is also a director of Interconnect.
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Directors and Senior Management

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Lau Ying Kit (B|Z2), aged 48, is an independent non-executive
Director. Mr. Lau is the finance and investor relations director
and the company secretary of Dalipal Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 01921), a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lau is also currently an independent
non-executive director of United Strength Power Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 02337) and Sinco Pharmaceuticals
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 06833),
companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

both of which are

Mr. Lau was an independent non-executive director of Xiezhong
International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 03663) from
16 May 2012 until 30 September 2020 and of China Wood
Optimization (Holding) Limited (Stock Code: 01885) from
20 December 2013 until 15 February 2022, both of which are
companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lau
is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and holds a master’s degree in finance from the City
University of Hong Kong. He has extensive experience in financial
and accounting in China and Hong Kong. He joined the Group in
November 2006.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson (38/&15), aged 48, is an independent
non-executive Director. Mr. Lo has more than 20 years of working
experience in investment banking and advising on corporate finance.
Mr. Lo is the managing director of Caitong International Capital
Company Limited. Mr. Lo is also an independent non-executive
director of Raymond Industrial Limited (Stock Code: 00229), a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lo also
has three years of experience in the field of auditing and accounting.
Mr. Lo is a member of the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He obtained his bachelor’s degree in commerce
from the University of British Columbia in Canada in 1995. He joined
the Group in May 2010.
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Directors and Senior Management

EShEREEE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Yan Jianmiao (B&##), aged 56, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director at the conclusion of the annual
general meeting on 30 May 2016. Mr. Yan is currently a professor
of Department of International Economics of Zhejiang University
(“ZJU"), a director of China Society of World Economics (CSWE),
an executive director of Zhejiang International Economics and Trade
Association and a researcher of the Center for Research of Private
Economy (CRPE) of ZJU. Prior to holding these positions, Mr. Yan
served as a deputy director in Department of International Trade of
Hangzhou University and a director of Department of International
Economics of ZJU. Mr. Yan is currently an independent director
of Baida Group Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: 600865), a company listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and Rongsheng Petrochemical
Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: 002493), a company listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange. Mr. Yan was an independent director of Top Choice
Medical Co., Inc. (Stock Code: 600763) from 24 December 2014
until 1 February 2021, and of Zhejiang Xinan Chemical Industrial
Group Co. Ltd. (Stock Code: 600596) from 7 July 2014 until
1 July 2020, both of which are companies listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange. Mr. Yan graduated from Hangzhou University
in 1985 with a Bachelor of Economics degree. He obtained a
master’s degree in economics from the Shanghai Academy of
Social Sciences in 1988. Mr. Yan was a senior visiting scholar
of Le Havre Business School in France in 1997 and obtained a
PhD in Economics from ZJU in 2005. He joined the Group in
May 2016.
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Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chan Yan Kwan Andy (BR1=#), aged 53, is the chief financial
officer and company secretary of the Company. Mr. Chan has over
20 years of experience in accounting and the financial sector.
From July 2004 to January 2014, he was the group financial controller
and company secretary of Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited
(Stock Code: 00157), a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, responsible for financial planning and monitoring.
Prior to July 2004, he worked in an international accounting firm and
served senior financial positions in a company listed on the NASDAQ
Stock Market and a renowned German exhibition company.
Mr. Chan is also an independent non-executive director
of Greentown Management Holdings Company Limited
(Stock Code: 09979), a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange and one of the Hang Seng Composite Index
constituent stocks. Mr. Chan is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA) and the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants (ACCA). He is also a Fellow
Chartered Secretary and Fellow Chartered Governance Professional
of the Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute (HKCGI).
Mr. Chan graduated from the University of Hull in the United
Kingdom with a bachelor’s degree in economics and accounting
in 1992; graduated from the Ivey Business School with Western
University (formerly Richard Ivey School of Business with University
of Western Ontario), Canada with an Executive MBA in 2008 and
graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a master’s
degree in corporate governance (with distinction) in 2021. Mr. Chan
joined the Group in January 2014.
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Report of the Directors
EFEHRSE

It is the Board’s pleasure in presenting their annual report on the
affairs of the Group together with the audited financial statements for
the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Company is an investment holding company. The activities of its
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the financial statements.

RESULTS
The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss on page 89.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the Year is set out in the sections
headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on page 4 and page 9 of this annual report.

An indication of likely future developments in the Group’s business
can be found in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance using financial key
performance indicators is provided in the sections headed “Five Year
Financial Summary” on page 8 and “Financial Review” on page 16 of
this annual report.

The Group is committed to supporting environmental sustainability.
In the pursuit of excellent operating results, the Group also puts
a lot of effort into sustainable development. On the basis of per
tonne of linen yarn, annual consumption of electricity, water, steam
and natural gas decreased by 3.6%, 14.2%, 13.5% and 21.8%,
respectively during the Year, mainly due to less water used from
the adoption of improved techniques in the scouring and bleaching
process. We will continue to explore ways to improve the production
processes to further enhance the operation efficiencies.

For details of the Group’s performance on environmental, social
and governance (“ESG”) aspects including relationships with various
stakeholders and compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the Group, please refer to the Group's
separate ESG report for the Year.

The Group has been in compliance with the relevant laws and

regulations that have a significant impact on the Company during the
Year.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES FACED BY
THE GROUP

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing of linen yarn
and the sale of the products to over 20 countries. Overseas sales are
invoiced in United States Dollars, except for the sales by the Group’s
subsidiary in Italy which are invoiced in Euro. Domestic sales in
China are invoiced in Renminbi. Raw materials (flax fiber and hemp
fiber) are imported from Europe and sourced in China. The principal
risks and uncertainties facing the Group include the demand for
linen yarn, protectionism of certain countries and possible punitive
tariffs on products made in China, stable supplies of raw materials,
continuous decline in cotton price, depreciation of United States
Dollars against Renminbi, the execution risk of the new expansion
project in Ethiopia, and outbreak of epidemic causing disruption of
production.

RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group recognizes that employees, customers and business
partners are keys to its sustainable development. The Group is
committed to establishing a close and caring relationship with its
employees, providing quality services to its customers and enhancing
cooperation with its business partners. The Company provides a
fair and safe workplace, promotes diversity to its staff, provides
competitive remuneration and benefits and career development
opportunities based on their merits and performance. The Group
also puts in ongoing efforts to provide adequate trainings and
development resources to the employees so that they can keep
abreast of the latest development of the market and the industry
and, at the same time, improve their performance and achieve self-
actualization in their positions.

IMPORTANT EVENTS AFFECTING THE COMPANY
THAT HAVE OCCURRED SINCE THE END OF THE
FINANCIAL YEAR

There was no important event affecting the Company that have
occurred since the end of the Year and up to the date of this annual
report.
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Report of the Directors
EFEHRSE

DIVIDEND

At a meeting of the Board held on 18 March 2022, the Board
recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.06 per
ordinary Share for the Year. The proposed final dividend, if approved
by the Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company, will be paid on or before 15 July 2022 to the Shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company as
at 24 June 2022.

None of the Shareholders has waived or agreed to waive any
dividend.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the Year are set out
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 93 of this
annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2021, the Company’s distributable reserves
calculated under the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands amounted
to RMB644,737,000 (31 December 2020: RMB648,096,000).

DONATIONS
Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the
Year amounted to approximately RMB92,000 (31 December 2020:
RMB1,175,000).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Group are set out
in note 26 to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 8 of this annual
report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the Year, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment
of approximately RMB187,259,000. Details of the movements are set
out in note 13 to the financial statements.
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DIRECTORS
During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, the Directors
were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Ren Weiming (Chairman)
Mr. Shen Yueming

Mr. Zhang Hongwen

Ms. Shen Hong

Non-executive Director
Mr. Ngan Kam Wai Albert

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Lau Ying Kit

Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson

Mr. Yan Jianmiao

Pursuant to article 87 of the Articles of Association of the Company
(the “Articles”), one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if
their number is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to
but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation at each
annual general meeting of the Company provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement at least once every three years and be
eligible for re-election. In accordance with article 87 of the Articles,
Mr. Ren Weiming, Mr. Shen Yueming and Mr. Zhang Hongwen shall
retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. All retiring Directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election as Directors at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has any unexpired service contract with the
Group which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation, other than normal statutory
compensation.
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EFEHRSE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE
No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company or its subsidiaries,
and a controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries, was a party
and in which a Director has a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time during
the Year except as disclosed under the section headed “Connected
Transactions” below and note 33 to the financial statements.

INDEPENDENCE OF THE INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of its independent non-
executive Directors a confirmation of his independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and the
Board considers all of the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules during
the Year and remain so as at the date of this annual report.

The re-election of Mr. Lau Ying Kit and Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson
(who had both served the Board for more than nine years) as
independent non-executive Directors were approved by way of
separate resolutions at the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 21 May 2021.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE

Pursuant to the Articles, every Director or other officer of the
Company shall be entitled to be indemnified and secured harmless
out of the assets and profits of the Company from and against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which he/she
may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his/her
office or otherwise in relation thereto; provided that such indemnity
shall not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty
which may attach to any of said persons. The Company has arranged
appropriate directors” and officers” liability insurance coverage in
respect of legal action against the directors and officers of the Group.
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REMUNERATION POLICY

The Remuneration Committee considers and recommends to the
Board the remuneration and other benefits paid by the Company
to the Directors and senior management. The remuneration of all
Directors and senior management is subject to regular monitoring
by the Remuneration Committee to ensure that the levels of their
remuneration and compensation are appropriate.

Details of Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 8 to the
financial statements.

The remuneration of the senior management of the Company during
the Year fell within the following range:

RMB1,000,001 — RMB1,500,000

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior management are
set out on page 26 of this annual report.

CHANGES IN DIRECTOR’S AND CHIEF EXECUTIVFE’S
BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS UNDER RULE 13.51B(1) OF
THE LISTING RULES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management”, there is no other change in information of the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company which is required to
be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules since the
date of the interim report for the six months ended 30 June 2021 and
up to the date of this annual report.
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Report of the Directors
EFEHRSE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING

SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2021, the Directors and their associates had the
following interests in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO), which were recorded or required to be recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing

Rules:

Long positions in the Shares

Name of Director Y
Mr. Ren Weiming EHERRSEE
Mr. Ngan Kam Wai Albert BREIRRE
Ms. Shen Hong Lk at

38 2021 Annual Report —ZE _——FF IR

Personal interests
(Note 1)

VN3

(Wfzt1)

12,072,000

418,000

504,000

EFREETHRASRKS HEAKRGS
REFHEAENERRXE

R —F+"RA=+—H EFKKFMNE
BARTADREERZE (EERESFKRHE
1EBISEXVER) BIRM ~BRARMD RESFT > AR
B 5 AR RPISE3521F BsC AS R AKIF
REFENSCMILR EHRANER-PRESN
ERETAEFETESIZORETR (RE
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RGBS
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
SREE.OIETHEER
Approximate
percentage
Total of issued
Corporate number of share capital
interests  Shares interested (%)
HERTRE
ERERN BB
YNCIL RRin 4B 8 (%)
302,800,000 314,872,000 50.01
(Note 2)
(Hra22)
67,000,000 67,418,000 10.71
(Note 3)
(Myaz3)
= 504,000 0.08



Notes:

il The Shares are registered under the names of the Directors who are the
beneficial Shareholders.

2% Mr. Ren Weiming holds approximately 76.38% of the issued share
capital of Kingdom Investment (as defined below). Mr. Ren therefore
holds a controlling interest in Kingdom Investment and is deemed
under the SFO to be interested in the Shares held by Kingdom
Investment.

£l Mr. Ngan Kam Wai Albert and Ms. Ngan Chan Kattie Sau Kat, the
spouse of Mr. Ngan, hold approximately 51.00% and 23.00% of the
issued share capital of Millionfull International (as defined below) and
57.98% and 29.76% of the issued share capital of Millionfull Company
Limited, respectively. Mr. Ngan therefore holds controlling interests in
both Millionfull International and Millionfull Company Limited and
is deemed under the SFO to be interested in 64,800,000 Shares, i.e.
10.29%, held by Millionfull International and 2,200,000 Shares, i.e.
0.35%, held by Millionfull Company Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the
Directors or their associates had or were deemed to have any interest
or short position in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were recorded or required to
be recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352
of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the Year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party or parties to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of
Shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.
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EFEHRSE

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS

So far as is known to any Director, as at 31 December 2021, the
following persons, other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company, had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares of the Company which were recorded or required to be
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the
SFO:

Name of Shareholder Capacity

ARER % TE 5145

Beneficial owner
Em#EE A

Beneficial owner

Kingdom Investment (Note 1)

Kingdom Investment (#75%1)

Millionfull International Co., Ltd.
(“Millionfull International”) (Note 2)

Millionfull International Co., Ltd. EmEA A
("Millionfull International 1) (#75#2)

Notes:

s Kingdom Investment is owned as to 76.38% by Mr. Ren Weiming, an

executive Director and substantial Shareholder of the Company.

2. Millionfull International is owned as to 51.00% by Mr. Ngan Kam Wai
Albert, a non-executive Director, and 23.00% by Ms. Ngan Chan Kattie
Sau Kat, the spouse of Mr. Ngan.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, the Company
had not been notified by any person, other than a Director or chief
executive of the Company, who had interests or short positions in the
Shares or underlying Shares which were recorded or required to be
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme (the “Scheme”) with Shareholders’ approval at
the annual general meeting held on 30 May 2016 was adopted on the
same date.

The Scheme was established to recognize and acknowledge the
contributions that eligible participants had made or may make to
the Group. The Scheme will provide the eligible participants with an
opportunity to have a personal stake in the Company with the view to
achieving the following objectives:

(@  motivate the eligible participants to optimise their performance
and efficiency for the benefit of the Group; and

(b)  attract and retain or otherwise maintain ongoing business
relationship with the eligible participants whose contributions
are or will be beneficial to the long term growth of the Group.

Subject to the terms of the Scheme, the Board may at its discretion
grant options to: (i) any Director, employee, consultant, customer,
supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or contractor to the Group or a
company in which the Group holds an interest or a subsidiary of such
company (the “Affiliate”); or (ii) the trustee of any trust the beneficiary
of which or any discretionary trust the discretionary objects of
which include any Director, employee, consultant, professional,
customer, supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or contractor to the
Group or an Affiliate; or (iii) a company beneficially owned by any
Director, employee, consultant, professional, customer, supplier,
agent, partner, adviser of or contractor to the Group or an Affiliate,
who has contributed to the success of the Group’s operations. The
overall limit on the number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Scheme and any other schemes must not exceed 30% of
the Shares in issue from time to time. Subject to the aforesaid limit,
the total number of Shares available for issue under options which
may be granted under the Scheme and any other schemes must not,
in aggregate, exceed 62,967,800 Shares, being 10% of the number of
issued Shares as at 30 May 2016, the date of adoption of the Scheme,
and 10% of the number of issued Shares as at the date of this annual
report, respectively, unless separate Shareholders’ approval has been
obtained.
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The maximum entitlement for any one participant under the Scheme
shall not in any 12-month period up to the date of grant exceed 1%
of the issued share capital of the Company from time to time.

The period within which the options must be exercised will be
specified by the Board at the time of the grant, and must expire no
later than 10 years from the date of grant of option.

There is no general requirement on the minimum period for which
an option must be held or the performance targets which must be
achieved before an option can be exercised under the terms of the
Scheme. However, at the time of granting any option, the Board may
impose such conditions, restrictions or limitations as it may determine
in its absolute discretion.

The subscription price for any Share shall not be less than the highest
of (i) the closing price of a Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of the relevant option,
which must be a business day, (ii) an amount equivalent to the
average closing price of a Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant of the relevant option and (iii) the nominal
value of a Share.

Subject to earlier termination by the Company in general meeting or
by the Board, the Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of

10 years from the date of its adoption.

No option has been granted under the Scheme since its adoption on
30 May 2016.
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SHARE AWARD PLAN

The Company has adopted a share award plan (the “Share Award
Plan”) on 26 August 2016. The purpose of the Share Award Plan
is to incentivize, recognize and reward eligible persons for their
contribution to the Group, attract and retain personnel, and align
the interests of award holders with that of the Shareholders to
promote the long-term development and financial performance of the
Company.

The Board may, from time to time and at its sole discretion, select any
eligible person to participate in the Share Award Plan and determine
the number of Shares to be awarded and the terms and conditions of
the awards. Awards shall be satisfied by Shares acquired in the market
at the prevailing market price and no new Shares will be allotted and
issued under the Share Award Plan. The trustee of the Share Award
Plan (the “Trustee”) shall hold the awarded Shares on trust for the
award holders until the awarded Shares are vested in the relevant
award holders according to the Share Award Plan rules. Upon vesting,
the Trustee shall either transfer the vested awarded Shares at no cost
to such award holders or sell the vested awarded Shares at the then
prevailing market price by way of market order and remit the net
proceeds to the award holders in accordance with the direction given
by such award holders.

During the Year, no Shares have been awarded pursuant to the Share
Award Plan and no awarded Shares were vested as the vesting
condition on performance target for the Year was not satisfied. The
Board will constantly review and determine at its absolute discretion
such number of Awarded Shares to be awarded to the selected
persons under the Share Award Plan with such vesting conditions as
the Board may deem appropriate.
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Pursuant to the Share Award Plan, 19,400,000 Shares have been
awarded to selected persons on 25 May 2018, of which 19,370,000
Shares have been accepted pursuant to the Share Award Plan. Out of
such 19,370,000 Shares as accepted by the selected persons pursuant
to the Share Award Plan, there were 1,010,000 Shares and 5,159,250
Shares vested and transferred to the employees in 2019 and 2020,
respectively. In addition, 1,000,000 and 575,000 granted Shares were
returned to the share pool due to resignation of relevant employees
during 2020 and 2021, respectively. As at 31 December 2021, a
total of 11,625,750 granted Shares will be vested in 2022 subject to
fulfilment of the relevant performance targets and 1,605,000 Shares
remain available for granting to employees in the future under the
Share Award Scheme.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme and the Share Award Plan as
disclosed in this annual report, no equity-linked agreement was
entered into during the year ended 31 December 2021 or subsisted at
the end of the year of 2021.

INTERESTS IN CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business have
been entered into, or subsisted, between the Company or any of its
subsidiaries and any controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries
during the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, sales to the Group's five largest customers accounted
for approximately 16.3% of the Group’s total sales for the Year and
sales to the Group's largest customer accounted for approximately
3.9% of the Group’s total sales for the Year. Purchases from the
Group's five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 33.5%
of the Group's total purchases for the Year, and purchases from the
Group's largest supplier accounted for approximately 12.5% of the
Group's total purchases for the Year.

So far as the Board is aware, none of the Directors, their close
associates or any Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the
Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s issued shares) had
any interests in the Group'’s five largest customers or suppliers noted
above.

2021 Annual Report — T - —F 5

m#&%&m%%1%%m4mom%%ﬁem
TE - N\EFERA_+EEBFEEAL HMA
19,370,0005% f& 15 EIRIR AR 17 BB 5T 8 JE 354K o
RETE A TRIRR M BT 815 498919,370,000
B& B4 A > 1,010,0008% B 15 K25,159,25088 %15 B
PDRR_E—NER_E_EEHFBNEETRE
Beltdh RN T EEER_E - —FHEARE
Efi - B9 RI#1,000,00008 &575,00008 B2
HRMIRERD I - R E-—F+ "B =1+—
H:>&311,625, 750 EEEROENR T
EHEB HATEREEERERBRAYTEE
f1,605,0008% B 17 15 Bl 1R & AR (D IR Eh 51 B 1% F
BE-

A 1 1 80 17 5%

PR F ¥R 9N BR RO BB AR 5t B e BR 17 SR B 5t &Y 5h -
BE_ T —Ft+A=t+—HLFELETIL
BT -FRUEFEETARELSDTE-

REXGHNED

AT REALAN B A B REMERRRBEE
I B TEAEEW]P&DT_L‘JZT BERHAER
EHGBERNSL

ﬁiﬂﬁ I:In\’J
FRARTIULHFEB AR RBEFE M
BEABOMEERITHNEL

FTEXRRIMER

ER HEFAERRATANHEREAER
ERNEHEREN16.3% MHEFEFERREAT
PR ERGAERENBIHETELN3.9% AR
EERAHEERNRBEGAEEFEANLERELE
#933.5% Mt TER R AEEFRBIEGD
EEFRARRIERENT12.5%°

BEFEAMA BESES HETBRRANEM
IR RESFIANEA R AT B EITRM5%UL)
REdAEBLAZRNHEFEPAETAED



CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Connected transactions

The Group had entered into the following connected transaction with
its connected persons during the Year. The transaction constituted
connected transaction for the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

1. Acquisition of 80% Equity Interest In Heilongjiang Kangyuan

Flax and Hemp Seed Co., Ltd.

On 1 November 2021, Heilongjiang Kingdom, an indirect
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an
equity transfer agreement with Kangyuan Bio-tech, a company
established in the PRC with limited liability, pursuant to which
Heilongjiang Kingdom agreed to acquire and Kangyuan Bio-
tech agreed to dispose of 80% equity interest in Kangyuan Seed
at a consideration of RMB8,800,000.

The Group contemplated to complete its own hemp fiber
supply chain in Heilongjiang from seed to yarn, in order to
ensure both quality and quantity of raw materials for the
Group's production of hemp yarn. The Company considered
that the acquisition of Kangyuan Seed provided an opportunity
for the Company to complete its hemp fiber ecosystem and
supply chain in Heilongjiang from seed to yarn, through the
collaboration with local farmers on the selection of hemp
seed and the purchase of hemp crops from local farmers.
Kangyuan Seed’s connections with the local farmers in
Heilongjiang accumulated through its operations would be
essential to facilitate the completion of the hemp fiber supply
chain and such connections could only be gained through a
local presence. Kangyuan Seed is principally engaged in the
research, development and sale of variety of flax and hemp
seeds.
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Kangyuan Bio-tech was a company owned as to 53.6% by
Kingdom Creative. Mr. Ren Weiming, Mr. Shen Yueming,
Mr. Zhang Hongwen and Ms. Shen Hong, being executive
Directors and connected persons of the Company, are also
directors of Kingdom Creative. Mr. Zhang Hongwen and
Ms. Shen Hong are also directors of Kangyuan Bio-tech.
Accordingly, Kingdom Creative and Kangyuan Bio-tech are
associates of connected persons of the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules, and thus are connected persons of
the Company. Therefore, the acquisition of 80% equity interest
in Kangyuan Seed constituted a connected transaction for the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

For details of the said acquisition, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 1 November 2021.

Continuing connected transactions

The Group had entered into the following continuing connected
transactions with its connected persons which subsisted during the
Year. The transactions constituted non-exempt continuing connected
transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
that were subject to reporting, annual review and announcement
requirements but exempt from circular, independent financial advice
and independent Shareholders’ approval requirements.

1. Purchases of chemicals and additives

On 12 March 2021, the Company entered into an agreement
with Jinxiu Jiangnan in relation to the purchase of chemicals
and additives (the “Purchase of Chemical and Additives
Framework Agreement”), pursuant to which the Company
agreed to purchase, and Jinxiu Jiangnan agreed to sell,
chemicals and additives for subsidiaries of the Company, for
the purpose of the fiber scouring and bleaching process to
be underwent by the subsidiaries, for a term of three years
with retrospective effect from 1 January 2021 and ending on
31 December 2023. The terms of the historical purchase of
chemicals and additives from Jinxiu Jiangnan were consistent
with the terms as contemplated under the Purchase of
Chemical and Additives Framework Agreement as further
detailed in the announcement of the Company dated 12 March
2021.
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The Group considered that the type of chemicals and additives,
their mix proportion were critical to the scouring and bleaching
process, together with the identities of the suppliers collectively
commercial secrets), were important to the success of the
Group. The chemicals and additives were purchased by Jinxiu
Jiangnan, re-labelled and delivered to the wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company. The chemicals were charged
by Jinxiu Jiangnan at the original costs from the third-party
suppliers plus the additional transportation costs to the Group’s
factories. Such arrangements were purely made to preserve the
commercial secrets of the Group and Jinxiu Jiangnan did not
have any gain during the transactions.

As at the date of the Purchase of Chemical and Additives
Framework Agreement, Mr. Ren Weiming had a controlling
equity interest over Jinxiu Jiangnan. Jinxiu Jiangnan is
principally engaged in trading business and entitled to conduct
import and export business in China.

During the Year, the Group purchased chemicals and additives
for scouring and bleaching from Jinxiu Jiangnan with an
amount of RMB3,023,000 (2020: RMB3,910,000), which did
not exceed the annual cap for the Year of RMB5,000,000.

Purchases of tools and accessories

The Group built a new factory in Ethiopia. Due to the absence
of the relevant tools and accessories in Ethiopia, all of the tools
and accessories used in Ethiopia factory had to be purchased
and shipped from China to Ethiopia. On 12 March 2021,
the Company entered into an agreement in relation to the
purchase of tools and accessories (the “Purchase of Tools and
Accessories Framework Agreement”), pursuant to which the
Company agreed to purchase, and Jinxiu Jiangnan agreed to
sell, tools and accessories to subsidiaries of the Company, for
usage in the Group’s production plant in Ethiopia, for a term
of three years with retrospective effect from 1 January 2021
and ending on 31 December 2023. The terms of the historical
purchase of tools and accessories from Jinxiu Jiangnan were
consistent with the terms as contemplated under the Purchase
of Tools and Accessories Framework Agreement as further
detailed in the announcement of the Company dated 12 March
2021.
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As the tools and accessories were sourced from a number
of different suppliers in China, the Group engaged Jinxiu
Jiangnan to procure and collect the delivery of those tools
and accessories from different suppliers over a period of time,
consolidate and arrange the shipment directly to our factory
in Ethiopia. The tools and accessories were charged by Jinxiu
Jiangnan at the original costs from the third-party suppliers plus
the additional shipping costs to Ethiopia. Jinxiu Jiangnan did
not have any gain during the transactions.

During the Year, the Group purchased tools and accessories
of RMB323,000 from Jinxiu Jiangnan (2020: RMB4,457,000),
which did not exceed the annual cap for the Year of
RMB3,000,000.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
above continuing connected transactions and confirmed that the
transactions had been entered into:

0]

(ii)

(iii)

in the ordinary and usual course of the business of the Group;

either (a) on normal commercial terms; or (b) where there are
no available comparable terms, on terms no less favorable to
the Company than terms available to or from independent third
parties; and

according to the agreements governing them on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a
whole.

The auditors of the Company was engaged to report on the continuing
connected transactions of the Group for the Year and the auditors has
provided a letter to the Board in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the
Listing Rules, confirming that:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

nothing has come to their attention that caused the auditors to
believe that the disclosed continuing connected transactions
have not been approved by the Board;

nothing has come to their attention that caused the auditors to
believe that the disclosed continuing connected transactions
were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance
in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group and the
relevant agreements governing such transactions; and

with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the continuing
connected transactions, nothing has come to their attention that
caused the auditors to believe that the disclosed continuing
connected transactions have exceeded the annual cap as set by
the Company.
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Save as disclosed above, during the Year, the Group had not entered
into any other connected transaction or continuing connected
transaction which needs to be disclosed in this annual report pursuant
to the requirements of the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, the other related party transactions as
disclosed in note 33 to the financial statements do not constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions required
to be disclosed in this annual report under the Listing Rules. The
related party transactions that constituted connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions of the Group have complied with
the disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS
Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at
31 December 2021 are set out in note 25 to the financial statements.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE OBLIGATIONS
PURSUANT TO THE LISTING RULES

The Company does not have any disclosure obligations under Rules
13.20, 13.21 and 13.22 of the Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE GROUP’S
LISTED SHARES

The Company or any of its subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or
redeem any of the Group’s listed securities during the Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles and
the Companies Act, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands.

RELIEF OF TAXATION
The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Shares.

PENSION SCHEMES
Details of the Group’s pension scheme are set out in note 2.4 and
note 7 to the financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Board, as at the date of
this annual report, the Company has maintained a sufficient public
float as required under the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
Set out below is information disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10(2) of the
Listing Rules:

As at 31 December 2021, none of the Directors nor their respective
associates had interests in businesses which compete or are likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

Mr. Ren Weiming (“Mr. Ren”) holds directorships and/or interests
respectively, either directly and/or through Kingdom Creative, in
certain private companies (the “Private Companies”). The Private
Companies are engaged in the silk and/or silk products manufacturing
and/or trading industry, banking and finance leasing (the “Excluded
Business”), which are fundamentally different from the products
manufactured by the Group.

Mr. Ren undertakes, subject to the exceptions mentioned in
the prospectus of the Company dated 30 November 2006 (the
“Prospectus”), that he will not, and will procure that his associates
will not (a) either on his own account or in conjunction with or
on behalf of any person, firm or company, directly or indirectly be
interested or involved or engaged in or acquire or hold an interest
(in each case whether as a shareholder, partner, agent, consultant,
employee or otherwise and whether for profit, reward or otherwise)
in any business which is or is about to be engaged in any business
which competes or is likely to compete directly or indirectly with
the Group's business, those other businesses of the Group as set out
in the Prospectus, in Hong Kong, the PRC and any other country or
jurisdiction to which the Group markets or sells its products and/or
in which any member of the Group carries on business mentioned
above from time to time (the “Restricted Activity”), or (b) either on his
own account or in conjunction with or on behalf of any person, firm
or company, or as a principal, shareholder, partner, agent, consultant,
employee or otherwise and whether for profit, reward or otherwise,
directly or indirectly, solicit, interfere with or endeavour to entice
away from any member in the Group any person, firm, company
or organisation who to its or his knowledge is now or has been a
customer, supplier or employee of any member in the Group.

By reasons of the fact that the Excluded Business does not pose any
direct or indirect actual competition with the Group’s business and
that Mr. Ren has already given an undertaking as above referred
to, the Group is therefore capable of carrying on its business
independently of, and at arms’ length from, the Excluded Business as
described above.
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As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Ren has no plan to inject the
aforesaid Excluded Business into the Group.

The Company has received from Kingdom Investment and Mr.
Ren an annual confirmation that it’he has fully complied with its/
his obligations under the deed of non-competition in favour of the
Company dated 27 November 2006 during the Year.

CORPORATE STRATEGY AND LONG TERM BUSINESS
MODEL

The Company strives to be one of the largest linen yarn manufacturers
in the world through its commitment to sustainable development and
technical innovation, developing proprietary intellectual property
rights, branding of products and pursuing advanced management for
lean management and excellent performance to generate or preserve
value over a longer term.

The Board periodically reviews the progress made against ESG related
goals and targets to enable the Group’s sustainable development of
business, in order to generate or preserve value over a longer term.

DIVIDEND POLICY
The Company has adopted a dividend policy on 14 December 2018

(the “Dividend Policy”).

Pursuant to the Dividend Policy, the annual dividend to be distributed
by the Company to the Shareholders shall be not less than 20% of
the Group’s profit attributable to Shareholders in any financial year,
subject to the criteria set out in the Dividend Policy.

Such declaration and payment of dividends shall remain to be
determined at the sole discretion of the Board and subject to all
applicable requirements under the Companies Act of the Cayman
Islands and the Articles.

In proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall also take into
account, inter alia, the Group’s actual and expected financial
performance; Shareholders’ interests; general business conditions
and strategies; the Group’s expected working capital requirements
and future expansion plans; possible effects on the Group’s
creditworthiness; general economic conditions, business cycle of the
Group's business and other internal or external factors that may have
an impact on the business or financial performance and position of
the Company; and other factors that the Board deems appropriate.
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The Company will continually review the Dividend Policy and
reserves the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend
and/or modify the Dividend Policy at any time. The Dividend Policy
shall in no way constitute a legally binding commitment by the
Company that dividends will be paid in any particular amount and/
or in no way obligate the Company to declare a dividend at any time
or from time to time. The payment of dividend is also subject to any
restriction under the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands and any
other applicable laws, rules and regulations, as well as the articles of
association of the Company (as amended from time to time).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Group's principal corporate governance practices are set out on
page 56.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to determine who are entitled to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Friday, 20 May 2022
to Friday, 27 May 2022, both days inclusive, during which period
no transfer of Shares will be effected. In order to determine who are
entitled to attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company, unregistered holders of shares of the Company shall
ensure that all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong branch
share registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 19 May 2022.

In order to determine who are entitled to the proposed final dividend
(subject to approval by the Shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting), the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Wednesday, 22 June 2022 to Friday, 24 June 2022,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of Shares will
be effected. In order to determine who are entitled to the proposed
final dividend (subject to approval by the Shareholders at the annual
general meeting), unregistered holders of shares of the Company shall
ensure that, all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong branch
share registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at above address for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 21 June 2022. The
proposed final dividend, subject to Shareholders’ approval at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, will be paid to Shareholders on
or before Friday, 15 July 2022 whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company at the close of business on Friday, 24 June
2022.

2021 Annual Report — T - —F 5

AR E R 2R SR I B REREF L
HEREHNBEREENEARSEER B R
S RERZIEBBR - Z R B BER N AR AR
BIFH R ZRORADEE R UERER
BEEIMRE R/ WEABDLEEBRER
RENAREIRRE KRBT RETHEER
ERBEREREMBRZER HRBIER UK
A RB)BIAEBBRAER EARFHES]) BT ER
PRI o

TEER

AEENTELEERBRHINFE68 -

EERPBRERLFE
ABTEREAADEERFEBEEAGTINEG
BERNEN ARBER 2 - _FAB_+H
(ESRR)E"E__F#RR_++tH (EHFR)
(BEEEmA) EEERNBLRELTE:
RZPEEAERERMBL ABEHEERA
DEEREBEAGING EIREMER > KA
BRDIRELFE AERRAEBRD XHER
HEARENBRAENR_SE-_"_FH18+HhH &
HN) FTFUE=Z+ AR AR ATHNEBRNE
FEROEREEEEBLARAR (itAES
EEABRISIHEMAPL54E) » UPHEESLF

=]
=

RETCEZERERIRE BERENERERSE
BERXG EHOE) RN RRABRRZIZZZ
FARBEZH+ZH((EBPD)E-E - _FXAH
“+HB (R (BIFEEMA) EEmER7
BRETFE NZARR TS NERMDBR
RECEZERRRIRE BERENKRERSF
K& EHLE) B9REF] Kﬁjﬁxfﬁﬂ’]ﬁiﬁ‘uﬂ?—rﬁ
NIRRT BB/ X ERMBRKRESNBERER
TE2ECCHEXRAI+H—H EBRD TFER=1
APREFABNEERNDIBFRELDEEES
BZHAMRAE (it b) » MIHIEERFE-F
RENREERRBEAD L ER BE AR
ERNRIZEZZHFLtA+HH BHBR sizam
RIZBZTHEAAZ+NE (B2HfA) EXEEE
REFRT AN B IR R MBI ERIRAT



AUDITORS

Ernst & Young will retire and a resolution for their re-appointment as
auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. The Company has not changed its auditors in the
preceding three years.

On behalf of the Board

Ren Weiming
Chairman
Haiyan County, the PRC, 18 March 2022

*  For identification purpose only
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CORPORATE PURPOSE, STRATEGY AND
GOVERNANCE

The Company is headed by an effective board which assumes
responsibility for its leadership and control and is collectively
responsible for promoting its success by directing and supervising its
affairs. All Directors are expected to take decisions objectively in the
best interests of the Company.

The Company recognizes the importance of incorporating elements
of good corporate governance in the management structures and
internal control procedures of the Group so as to achieve effective
accountability. The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance
Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, as amended
from time to time (the “CG Code”), as its own code of corporate
governance.

Kingdom strives to be one of the largest linen yarn manufacturers in
the world through its commitment to sustainable development and
technical innovation, developing proprietary intellectual property
rights, branding of products and pursuing advanced management for
lean management and excellent performance to generate or preserve
value over a longer term.

All Directors are expected to act with integrity, lead by example, and
promote the desired culture and core values of the Group, namely,
Responsible, Sincere, Innovative, and Mutually Successful.

The financial performance of the Group for the Year is set out in
the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on page 4 and page 9 of this annual report.

Other performance of the Group for the Year is set out in the ESG
report which is separately published and is available for download at
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

At Kingdom, environmental considerations are central and are
embedded in our decision-making and management processes.
Kingdom also supports the development of innovative technologies,
properly uses and invests in technologies and businesses that have
less adverse impact on the environment.
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The Board is committed to periodically review the progress made
against ESG-related goals and targets to enable the Group’s
sustainable development of business, in order to generate or preserve
value over a longer term.

Except for the deviation from code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code'
as further detailed in the paragraph headed “Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer”, the Company has complied with all the code
provisions set out in the CG Code that were in effect during the Year.
The Company will continue to review and monitor its corporate
governance practices to ensure the compliance of the CG Code.

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code and devised its own code
of conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors on terms no
less exacting than the required standard set out in the Model Code.
Having made specific enquiries with all Directors, all the Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the provisions of the
Model Code and the Company’s code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions for the Year and up to the date of this annual
report.

THE BOARD

The Board consists of eight Directors, four of whom are executive
Directors, one of whom is non-executive Director and three of
whom are independent non-executive Directors. There are seven
male Directors and one female Director. The functions and duties
conferred on the Board include: overseeing the Group’s businesses,
strategic decisions and performance, promoting the success of
the Company by directing and supervising its affairs, convening
Shareholders” meetings and reporting on the work of the Board to the
Shareholders at Shareholders’ meetings as may be required by the
applicable laws, implementing resolutions passed at Shareholders’
meetings, determining the Company’s business plans and investment
plans, formulating the Company’s annual budget and final accounts,
formulating the Company’s proposals for dividend and bonus
distributions as well as exercising other powers, functions and duties
as conferred on it by the Articles and the applicable laws. The senior
management is delegated with the authority and responsibilities by the
Board for the day-to-day management and operations of the Group.

g A new CG Code came into effect on 1 January 2022 and the
requirements under the new CG Code apply to corporate governance
reports for financial year commencing on or after 1 January 2022. As
this corporate governance report is for the Year, the CG Code described
herein is the CG Code in effect during the Year.
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The Board meets regularly to review the financial and operating
performance of the Company, and to consider and approve the
overall strategies and policies of the Company. The composition of
the Board and attendance of individual Directors at meetings of the
Board, the Remuneration Committee, the Audit Committee and the

Nomination Committee during the Year are as follows:

Directors £E

Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Ren Weiming RHERSY
(Chairman of the Board) (EEFTF/E)

Mr. Shen Yueming LEERR T A

Mr. Zhang Hongwen RIBX ST

Ms. Shen Hong LB L

Non-executive Director EHITES

Mr. Ngan Kam Wai Albert PR IR E

Independent non-executive Directors J&IIIFHITES

Mr. Lau Ying Kit Bk E
(Chairman of the Audit Committee) (EFEIZEZEZF/E)

Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson BERERE
(Chairman of the Nomination FEEZEETF/E)
Committee)

Mr. Yan Jianmiao BEmiE
(Chairman of the Remuneration FWZS 5 F/E)

Committee)

Apart from regular Board meetings, the chairman of the Board also
held meetings with the independent non-executive Directors without

the presence of other Directors during the Year.
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The biographical details of the current Board members are set out
under the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” on
page 26 of this annual report. Save as otherwise disclosed, there
is no relationship (including financial, business, family or other
material relationship) between any members of the Board or senior
management of the Company.

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules
from time to time. The independent non-executive Directors are
expressly identified in all corporate communications pursuant to the
Listing Rules.

During the Year, the Board at all times met the requirements of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive Directors with at least one independent non-
executive Director possessing appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise, and the
independent non-executive Directors represented over one-third of
the Board.

The Company has received from each of its independent non-
executive Directors a written confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Board considers
all of the independent non-executive Directors to be independent in
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules during the Year and
remain so as at the date of this annual report.

All Board members have separate and independent access to the
Company’s senior management to fulfil their duties and, upon
reasonable request, to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense. All Directors
also have access to the company secretary who is responsible for
ensuring that the Board procedures, and all applicable rules and
regulations, are followed. An agenda and accompanying Board/
committee papers are distributed to the Directors/Board committee
members with reasonable notice in advance of the relevant meetings.
Minutes of Board meetings and meetings of Board committees, which
records in sufficient detail the matters considered by the Board/
committee and decisions reached, including any concerns raised by
the Directors or dissenting views expressed, are kept by the company
secretary and are available for inspection by the Directors.
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Pursuant to article 87 of the Articles, one-third of the Directors for
the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, then the
number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office
by rotation at each annual general meeting of the Company provided
that every Director shall be subject to retirement at least once every
three years and is eligible for re-election. In accordance with article
87 of the Articles, Mr. Ren Weiming, Mr. Shen Yueming and Mr.
Zhang Hongwen shall retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. All retiring Directors being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election as Directors at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

The re-election Mr. Lau Ying Kit and Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson (who
had both served the Board for more than nine years) as independent
non-executive Directors were approved by way of separate
resolutions in the annual general meeting held on 21 May 2021.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

The following statement, which sets out the responsibilities of the
Directors in relation to the financial statements, should be read
in conjunction with, but be distinguished from, the Independent
Auditors” Report on page 82 which states the reporting responsibilities
of the Group’s auditors.

Annual Report and Accounts
The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities to prepare financial
statements for each financial year which gives a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group.

Accounting Policies

The Directors consider that in preparing the financial statements, the
Group has used appropriate accounting policies that are consistently
applied, and that all applicable accounting standards have been
followed.

Accounting Records

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Group keeps
accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy the
financial position of the Group and which enable the preparation of
financial statements in accordance with the disclosure requirements
of the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622, Laws of Hong Kong) and the
applicable accounting standards.
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Safeguarding Assets

The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary
steps to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect
fraud and other irregularities.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of the
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual.

The Company does not have any officer with the title of “chief
executive officer”. Mr. Ren Weiming, who acts as the chairman of the
Company, is also responsible for overseeing the general operations
of the Group. The Board meets regularly to consider major matters
affecting the operations of the Company. The Board considers that this
structure will not impair the balance of power and authority between
the Board and the management of the Company and is conducive to
strong and consistent leadership, enabling the Company to operate
efficiently.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Ngan Kam Wai Albert, a non-executive Director, renewed his
service agreement with the Company for a term of three years on 1
January 2022.

Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson and Mr. Lau Ying Kit, independent non-
executive Directors, renewed their appointments with the Company
on the same terms for another three years on 1 January 2022. Mr. Yan
Jianmiao was appointed as an independent non-executive Director—
at the annual general meeting of the Company held on 30 May 2016.
Mr. Yan has renewed his appointment with the Company for a term
of three years with similar terms as other independent non-executive
Directors with effect on 30 May 2019.
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MECHANISM TO ENSURE BOARD INDEPENDENCE

Mr. Lau Ying Kit has been serving as an independent non-executive
Director since his appointment on 13 November 2006 and Mr.
LO Kwong Shun Wilson has been serving as an independent non-
executive Director since his appointment on 17 May 2010.

Mr. Lau Ying Kit has extensive experience in the accounting field. His
participations in the Board bring independent judgments on issues
relating to the Group’s accounts, internal controls, risk management,
nominations of directors, conflicts of interests and other management
matters. Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson has extensive experience in
the corporate finance field. His participations in the Board bring
independent judgments on issues relating to the Group’s corporate
finance, accounts, internal controls, risk management, nominations of
directors, conflicts of interests and other management matters.

The Board also noted that each of Mr. Lau Ying Kit and Mr. Lo Kwong
Shun Wilson had not engaged in any executive management of the
Group. Taking into consideration of each of their independent scope
of works in the past years, the Directors considered each of Mr. Lau
Ying Kit and Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson to be independent under the
Listing Rules despite the fact that each of Mr. Lau Ying Kit and Mr. Lo
Kwong Shun Wilson had been serving the Company for more than
nine years and would continue to bring valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and
effective functioning and diversity.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND
DEVELOPMENT

During the Year, the Directors were provided with regular updates
on the Company’s performance, position and prospects to enable
the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties. In
addition, all Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. The Company updates the Directors on the latest development
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements from time to time, to ensure compliance and enhance
their awareness of good corporate governance practices. During the
Year, the Company arranged a training on the latest changes on the
CG Code and the Listing Rules, with topics covering the main board
profit requirement, listing rules relating to disciplinary powers and
sanctions, amendments to the CG code and related Listing Rules,
other guides from the Stock Exchange and new Listing e-Forms, etc.,
for Directors’ continuous professional development. All Directors
attended the training.
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DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY INSURANCE
AND INDEMNITY

The Company has arranged liability insurance to indemnify its
Directors and officers in respect of legal actions against them. During
the Year, no claim had been made against the Directors and officers of
the Company.

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the Year, Mr. Chan Yan Kwan Andy, the company secretary of
the Company, attended relevant professional training for not less than
15 hours.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company were established
with defined written terms of reference and report their findings
and recommendations to the Board after each meeting of the Board
committees. The terms of reference of the Board committees were
posted on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website
and are available to the Shareholders upon request.

The majority of the members of each Board committee are
independent non-executive Directors and the list of the chairman
and members of each Board committee is set out under “Corporate
Information” on page 2 of this annual report.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee has adopted written terms of
reference prepared by reference to the requirements under the
code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code. The primary functions of the
Remuneration Committee are to consider and recommend to the
Board the remuneration and other benefits paid by the Company
to the Directors and senior management. The remuneration of all
Directors and senior management is subject to regular monitoring
by the Remuneration Committee to ensure that the levels of their
remuneration and compensation are appropriate.

The Remuneration Committee comprises one executive Director
and two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Zhang
Hongwen, Mr. Yan Jianmiao (chairman of the Remuneration
Committee) and Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson.
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EXERRS

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once every year to
review the remuneration policy and structure and determination of
the annual remuneration packages of the executive Directors and
the senior executives and other related matters. The Remuneration
Committee shall make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior
management’s remuneration.

One Remuneration Committee meeting was held during the Year. At
the meeting, the Remuneration Committee reviewed and approved
the remuneration of the Directors, after comparing with that of the
directors of similar textile companies listed on the Stock Exchange.
The attendance record of each member of the Remuneration
Committee at the said meeting is set out in the table below:

Name of Directors ERENH

Mr. Zhang Hongwen RIBX ST

Mr. Yan Jianmiao (Chairman) BEBLE (EE)
Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson BEERE

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee (the “NC”) has adopted written terms of
reference prepared by reference to the requirements under the code
provision B3.1 of the CG Code. The primary functions of the NC are
to review the Board’s diversity policy and to make recommendations
to the Board on the appointment or reappointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors, based on skills, knowledge and
experience, to complement the Company’s corporate strategy. The
NC also determined the policy for the nomination of Directors and
the nomination procedures and the process and criteria adopted
by the NC to select and recommend candidates for directorship.
The NC comprises one executive Director and two independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Shen Yueming, Mr. Lau Ying
Kit and Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson (chairman of the Nomination
Committee).
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One meeting was held during the Year. At the meeting, the NC
reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board and the
Board’s diversity policy. The attendance record of each member of the
NC at the said meeting is set out in the table below:

Name of Directors EXMA

Mr. Shen Yueming L EERR ST A

Mr. Lau Ying Kit | ESHS S

Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson (Chairman) BEESRE ZE)

Nomination Policy

Objective

The NC shall nominate suitable candidates to the Board for it to
consider and make recommendations to shareholders for election
as directors including independent non-executive directors of the
Company (the “INEDs”) at general meetings or appoint as directors
including INEDs to fill casual vacancies.

The NC may, as it considers appropriate, nominate a number of
candidates more than the number of directors to be appointed or
reappointed at a general meeting, or the number of casual vacancies
to be filled.

The ultimate responsibility for selection and appointment of directors
rests with the Board.

Selection Criteria
The factors listed below would be used as reference by the NC in

assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate.

o Reputation for integrity

J Accomplishment and experience in the textile industry
o Commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest
J Diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to gender,

age (18 years or above), cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service
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These factors are for reference only, and not meant to be exhaustive
nor decisive. The NC has the discretion to nominate any person, as it
considers appropriate.

Retiring INEDs are eligible for nomination by the Board to stand for
re-election at a general meeting. For those who have served as INEDs
for a period of 9 consecutive years, such retiring INEDs may stand for
re-election at a general meeting subject to a separate resolution to be
approved by the Shareholders at a general meeting. For the avoidance
of doubt, the 9-year period for determining the independence of an
INED for nomination by the Board to stand for re-election at a general
meeting would count from his/her date of first appointment as an
INED until the date of the general meeting.

Proposed candidates will be asked to submit the necessary personal
information in a prescribed form, together with their written consent
to be appointed as an INED and to the public disclosure of their
personal data on any documents or the relevant websites for the
purpose of or in relation to their standing for election as an INED.

Nomination Procedures

The secretary of the NC shall call a meeting of the NC, and
invite nominations of candidates from Board members if any, for
consideration by the NC prior to its meeting. The NC may also put
forward candidates who are not nominated by Board members.

For filling a casual vacancy, the NC shall make recommendations for
the Board’s consideration and approval. For proposing candidates
to stand for election at a general meeting, the NC shall make
nominations to the Board for its consideration and recommendation.

Until the publication of the circular to the Shareholders, the
nominated persons shall not assume that they have been
recommended by the Board to stand for election at the general
meeting.
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In order to provide information of the candidates nominated by
the Board to stand for election at a general meeting, a circular will
be sent to Shareholders. The circular will set out the names, brief
biographies (including qualifications and relevant experience),
independence, proposed remuneration and any other information, as
required pursuant to the applicable laws, rules and regulations, of the
proposed candidates will be included in the circular to Shareholders.

A candidate is allowed to withdraw his candidature at any time
before the general meeting by serving a notice in writing to the
Company Secretary.

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters relating to its
recommendation of candidates to stand for election at any general
meeting.

As there may be more candidates than the vacancies available, the
“highest number of votes” method will be used to determine who
shall be elected as an INED.

The Nomination Committee may request candidates to provide
additional information and documents, if considered necessary.

Board Diversity Review and Policy

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to, textile industry experience,
gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board.
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During the Year, the NC had reviewed and compared the diversity FRNRLEEGEEREETENS TN L
of the Board with all the listed companies in Hong Kong, in terms of ZSg A B UIFNITEE AE - HHIKFH
the number of directors a board has, number of INEDs, gender and F A ERAEERE LHABLR-ZLEES
average age. The NC also reviewed the professional qualification 7FEBZMEEENEXERREXMH -ES
and expertise of all the Directors. The Board is of the view that board BRAECBREEZT LM EFTFHNAER (8
diversity has been achieved. The Board’s composition (together with  IEBRIE BRI MITENLR F&0 4R KA
details on the Directors’ textile industry experience, age, gender and ~ ERABEBSIEERBHEB W -

holding of office in textile association) is as follows:

Textile Industry Hold office in
Name experience Age Gender Textile Association
e AT RAEER Fie il BERGBER S RERE
REN Weiming Yes 62 Male Yes
R4S B Z B
SHEN Yueming Yes 60 Male No
WL EERR =) 5 £
ZHANG Hongwen Yes 55 Male No
RBX B 5 &
SHEN Hong Yes 55 Female No
LB B k-8 &
NGAN Kam Wai Albert Yes 72 Male Yes
BT IR B 5 B
LAU Ying Kit No 48 Male No
G o z &
LO Kwong Shun Wilson No 48 Male No
REE &= 5 &
YAN Jianmiao No 56 Male No
BEE £ 5 £
Measurable objectives AIstEB1R

The Company’s measurable objectives of the Board diversity policy AABMEBEZE S TUEBRMWAITERZNT !
are as follows:

1) At least half of the members of the Board should have textile 1) ®R/\V—¥EFZrEBHBITELSE-
industry experience.

2) At least one Director should hold office/honorary title in textile  2) R/\D—ZEBZBRHBRERZETHRES

association(s) in order to ensure the Company receive first- BREHE UBERARBNFITEEE
hand information about the development and challenges of the kBN E—F &R -
industry.
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3)  Gender is not the primary consideration subject to the
Company’s compliance with any applicable requirements. The
primary consideration of Board member candidates will be
based on merit and the contribution the selected candidates
will bring to the Board.

Gender diversity of general workforce

As at 31 December 2021, Kingdom had 3,808 employees,
including those from the production, research and development and
management teams. Female staff accounted for approximately 64% of
the workforce as the production of linen yarn calls for a relative high
degree of attentiveness and deftness which is more common with
women, and the majority of them are between the ages of 31 and 50.

The general workforce is considered to be with proper gender
diversity.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in compliance with Rules 3.21
and 3.22 of the Listing Rules and with written terms of reference
in compliance with the CG Code. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee are to review and supervise the financial reporting
process, risk management and internal control systems of the Group
as well as the Group's internal audit function and to provide advice
and comments to the Board.

The Audit Committee is responsible for determining the policy for the
corporate governance of the Company and performing the corporate
governance duties as below:

J to develop and review the Group’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations;

J to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the directors and senior management;

J to review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices on
compliance with all legal and regulatory requirements (where
applicable);
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EXERRS

J to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors of the Group; and

J to review the Group’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure requirements in the Corporate Governance Report.

The Audit Committee consists of three members, namely Mr. Lau Ying
Kit, Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson and Mr. Yan Jianmiao, all of whom
are independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Lau Ying Kit, who has
appropriate professional qualifications and experience in accounting
matters, was appointed as the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

During the Year, the Audit Committee held two meetings. At the
meetings, the Audit Committee reviewed the Company’s relationship
with the external auditor, discussed with the Company’s external
auditor on the tasks performed by them including the nature and
scope of their audit and reporting obligations, and reviewed the terms
of engagement and their remuneration, reviewed the Company’s
final results for the year ended 31 December 2020, interim results for
the six months ended 30 June 2021 and the continuing connected
transactions with the external auditors, and communicated with the
external auditors twice without the presence of the management in
2021. The Audit Committee also reviewed and approved the internal
audit report and considered the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
audit function. The attendance record of each member of the Audit
Committee at the said meetings is set out in the table below:

Name of Directors EEUS

Mr. Lau Ying Kit (Chairman) BIRGRE (ZE)
Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson BEELE

Mr. Yan Jianmiao BRZEALE

During the Year, the Audit Committee also reviewed the Company’s
corporate governance policies and practices, the Group’s internal
control functions, training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
internal control and risk management, the compliance with the
Model Code, and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosures in this Corporate Governance Report.
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The Directors are collectively responsible for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group which have been
prepared on a going concern basis and in compliance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules. There has been no disagreement
between the Directors and the Audit Committee regarding the
selection and appointment of the external auditors.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has in place a sound and effective internal control
to safeguard the Shareholders’ investment and the Group's assets.
The Company has an internal audit function. The Audit Committee
is entrusted by the Board to monitor the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control and risk management systems on an ongoing basis so
as to ensure that the internal control and risk management systems
in place, including the resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes, accounting, internal audit, compliance and
financial reporting functions of the Company are adequate.

The Company has established written policies and procedures
applicable to all operating units to ensure the effectiveness of internal
controls. The Company also has a process for identifying, evaluating
and managing significant risks associated with the achievement of its
operational objective. The day-to-day operation of the Company is
entrusted to the individual department, which is accountable for its
own conduct and performance, and is required to strictly adhere to
the policies set by the Board/Audit Committee. The Company carries
out reviews on the effectiveness of the internal control systems from
time to time in order to ensure that they are able to meet and deal
with the dynamic and ever changing business environment.

The Company has established an optimized risk management and
internal control system consisting of the Board, Audit Committee,
management team, internal control and all departments of the
Company. In respect of risk management and internal control, all
departments of the Company are the first line of defence, the internal
control and management teams are the second line of defence, and
the Audit Committee of the Board is the third line of defence. The
Board is ultimately responsible for the development of a sound risk
management and internal control system of the Company and the
effective implementation of risk management, and is the highest
decision-making authority for risk management and internal control
of the Company.
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The primary objective of risk management is to have all the business
risks effectively identified, measured, analysed and controlled, such
as having them measured against defined limits, monitored, reported
and managed (including mitigation of risks), followed by the pursuit
of business development on the premise of keeping risks in check.
Such systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss.

The Audit Committee conducted review and assessment of the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control systems twice during
the Year including financial, operational and compliance controls and
risk management.

During the Year, the Company scrutinized and identified potential
risks associated with its corporate structure and business operation by
executing basic risk management procedures in all key operations.
A risk register of the Company was established to gain substantial
information on its overall risk characteristics, providing a solid
foundation for risk management and internal control.

The Company conducted an analysis and assessment on the identified
risks based on their possibility and influence, so as to determine the
risk levels and identify the significant risks faced by the Company.
A summary of key risks identified from the perspective of global
economy, industry and company level was reviewed and discussed
by the Audit Committee and the Board.

Based on the review of the results of risk management and internal
control, no material failure or weakness was found in respect of
risk monitoring during the Year. The management procedures of
financial reports and information disclosure of the Company were
in compliance with the Listing Rules. The Board considered that the
risk management and internal control of the Company to be effective
during the Year and up to the date of this annual report.
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INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information, the Company is aware of its
obligations under Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules and the SFO and
the overriding principle that any inside information of the Company
should be announced as soon as practicable. The Company reviews
from time to time its internal guidelines on inside information with
reference to its own and industry circumstances and the Guidelines
on Disclosure of Inside Information issued by the Securities and
Futures Commission.

The Company’s policy contains a strict prohibition on unauthorized
use of confidential or inside information. The Chairman and the chief
financial officer of the Company are the key spokespersons of the
Company in all external media communications.

The purpose of streamlining the communications of the Group with
the media is to regulate all media communication activities, protect
the interests of the Company and keep inside information strictly
confidential prior to its disclosure.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

Kingdom also advocates the principles of integrity, honesty, equity
and compliance in the communication and conduct of its entire staff.
It strictly requires its staff to:

J reject any bribe, unfair competition, malpractice and
embezzlement of corporate assets;

J refuse to do anything harmful to the Company, the environment
and the society; and

J refrain from receiving or offering bribes, illegal political

contributions or improper donations, events, gift or services.

Kingdom maintains detailed operating procedures, codes of
conduct and reward and punishment systems, and makes sure all its
employees understand the importance of and uphold integrity and
ethics.
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Staff can report to their immediate superiors, the human resource
department and the top-ranking executive with respect to any non-
compliance such as breach or dereliction of duty, abuse of power,
receiving bribes or embezzlement of corporate property by means of
mail, electronic mail or phone. The issue will then be reported to the
human resources department or audit committee for investigation,
collection of evidence, verification and resolution, and upon
verification will be handled in accordance with the law.

Topics of anti-bribery and anti-corruption are covered in staff trainings
and the same are included in the employee regulations section of the
staff handbook.

During the Year, there was no reported case in relation to corruption,
bribery, blackmail, fraud and money-laundering, legal actions for
anti-competitive behaviour, anti-trust, and monopoly practices.
Kingdom will adhere to its corporate ethics and uphold its reputation
to prevent corruption. There were also no illegal activities or relevant
fine or punishment made against the Group in respect of products,
human rights or the society. No political contribution was made in
2021.

WHISTLE-BLOWING POLICY/GRIEVANCE CHANNEL
In order to protect the legitimate rights and interests of employees,
strengthen the effective communication between the employees and
the company’s management, timely communicate and implement
the rules and regulations formulated by the company, discover
and deal with various hidden problems, establish a harmonious,
stable, and united labor relationship and create a good corporate
culture, and for individuals to seek advice and raise concerns about
responsible business conduct in the Group’s operations and business
relationships, Kingdom has adopted a whistle-blowing policy, with
the following principles:

J Legal, fair and just;

J Equal dialogue and engagement;
J Transparent and barrier-free;

o No retaliation;

° Confidential;

J Simple and easy to use.
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The grievance channels include suggestion box, notice board to
display various grievance channels, telephone, mobile phone, email
(ss@kingdom-china.com) and WeChat. We pledge to handle and
complete any compliant within 10 working days.

ANNUAL REMUNERATION PAYABLE TO THE
MEMBERS OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The annual remuneration of the members of the senior management
by band for the year ended 31 December 2021 is as follows:

EXERRS
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
During the Year, the remuneration paid to the Company’s external
auditors, Ernst & Young, is as follows:

Service rendered AR AR
Audit Services EIZARTE
Tax services RIBARTS

The responsibilities of the external auditors with respect to the 2021
financial statements are set out in the section headed “Independent
Auditors” Report” on page 82. Save as disclosed above and in the
section headed “Independent Auditors” Report”, the Company did not
engage Ernst & Young for any non-audit services during the Year.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing all
information and representations contained in the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the Year, which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the operating
results and cash flow for the year. The Directors consider that the
financial statements have been prepared in conformity with all
applicable accounting standards and requirements and reflect
amounts that are based on the best estimates, reasonable information
and prudent judgment of the Board and the management. The
Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the
Directors have prepared the consolidated financial statements of the
Group on a going concern basis.

The statements of the auditor of the Group about its reporting
responsibility on the consolidated financial statements of the Group
are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on page 82 of this
annual report.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Within the knowledge of the Board, there have been sufficient public
float of not fewer than 25% of number of total outstanding shares of
the Company according to the “Disclosure of Interests” records at the
website of the Stock Exchange, as of 31 December 2021 and as at the
latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

(i)

Procedures for Shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting (the “EGM”) (including
making proposals/moving a resolution at the EGM to be
called by the Board)

. Any one or more Shareholders holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company (the “Eligible
Shareholder(s)”) shall at all times have the right, by
written requisition to the Board or the company secretary
of the Company (the “Company Secretary”), to require
an EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition, including
putting forward proposals or moving a resolution at the
EGM.

. Eligible Shareholders who wish to require an EGM
to be called by the Board for the purpose of making
proposals or moving a resolution at the EGM must
deposit a written requisition (the “Requisition”) signed
by the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned to the principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at Level
54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong, for the attention of the Company Secretary. The
Requisition must state clearly the name of the Eligible
Shareholder(s) concerned, his/her/their shareholding
in the Company, the reason(s) for convening an EGM,
the agenda of the EGM including the details of the
business(es) proposed to be transacted at the EGM,
signed by the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned.

. The Company will check the Requisition, and the identity
and the shareholding of the Eligible Shareholder will
be verified by the Company’s branch share registrar. If
the Requisition is found to be proper and in order, the
Company Secretary will ask the Board to convene an
EGM within two months and/or include the proposal
or the resolution proposed by the Eligible Shareholder
at the EGM after the deposit of the Requisition. On the
contrary, if the Requisition has been verified as not in
order, the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned will be
advised of this outcome and accordingly, the Board will
not convene an EGM and/or include the proposal or the
resolution proposed by the Eligible Shareholder at the
EGM.
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EXERRS

. If within 21 days of the deposit of the Requisition, the
Board has not advised the Eligible Shareholders of any
outcome to the contrary and fails to proceed to convene
such EGM, the Eligible Shareholder(s) himself/herself/
themselves may do so in accordance with the Articles,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the Eligible
Shareholder(s) concerned as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to the Eligible Shareholder(s)
concerned by the Company.

(ii) Procedures for sending enquiries to the Board
Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board by addressing them to the principal place of business
of the Company in Hong Kong at Level 54, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong by post or email to
ir@kingdom-china.com for the attention of the investors
relation department of the Company.

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, there was no change in the constitutional documents
of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Group firmly believes the importance of communicating with
the investment community and the Shareholders in attaining a high
level of transparency. Since its listing, the Group has maintained
various communication channels with analysts and fund managers
such as one-to-one meetings, telephone communications, and press
releases. The general meetings of the Company provide a platform
for communication between the Shareholders and the Board. The
Chairman of the Board as well as Chairmen of the Remuneration
Committee, Nomination Committee and Audit Committee or if, in
their absence, other members of the respective committees, and
where applicable, the independent board committee, are available
to answer questions at the Shareholders’ meetings. The Company
endeavours to provide timely and accurate information to the
investors to enhance the understanding of the investors about the
linen industry, as well as the business development strategy and
direction of the Group.

The Group will continue to maintain a close relationship with
investors and develop greater understanding about the Group for
international investors, to enhance investors’ confidence in the
Group.
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There is no change in the Articles during the Year. An up-to-date
version of the Articles is available on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

As at 31 December 2021, the market capitalisation of the Company
was approximately HK$730,426,480 based on 629,678,000 Shares
outstanding at the closing price of HK$1.16 per Share.

The details of the substantial shareholders of the Company can be
found on page 40 of this annual report.

CONTACT DETAILS
Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following:

Address: Kingdom Holdings Limited
Level 54 Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
(For the attention of the Investor Relations Department)
Fax: +852 3628 2284
Email: ir@kingdom-china.com
DISCLAIMER

The contents of the section headed “Shareholders’ Rights” are for
reference and disclosure compliance purposes only. The information
does not represent and should not be regarded as legal or other
professional advice from the Company to the Shareholders.
Shareholders should seek their own independent legal or other
professional advice as to their rights as shareholders of the Company.
The Company disclaims all liabilities and losses incurred by its
shareholders in reliance on any contents of this section headed
“Shareholders’ Rights”.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B E AT RS

o~
EY:

To the shareholders of Kingdom Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Kingdom
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
set out on pages 89 to 212, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the

B BET RS
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accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter

MRESNEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZEREE DR RS

Assessment on impairment for non-current assets

FEF B B ERY B E Y

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment, right-of-use asset and other
intangible assets was RMB1,244 million in aggregate,
which represented 45% of the Group’s total assets. As
the carrying amount of the Group’s net assets was higher
than the Company’s market capitalisation, management
performed an impairment test on its non-current assets.
This assessment requires management to make certain key
assumptions, such as cash flow projections covering a five-
year period, the future growth rate and the discount rate
which are highly judgemental.

KRB —F+"A=+—H ' WE-BERXRMHE"
EREBERHMBELEENROSREHLRARE
1,244,000,00070> 15 SEMEBEMREN4S% BER &
EEEEFENRESESN SATNME WERE
EHIFRFEEETHENS MBBREEREFH
ATHRER ULFHRSARERR  RRERERKRE
i ESERCESE

Our audit procedures included assessing the identification
of cash-generating units and key assumptions, including
those related to future increases in expected growth
rates, turnover and discount rates, projection period and
disposal values of the non-current assets at the end of
the projection period applied. In performing our audit
procedures, we involved our internal valuation specialists
in assessing the valuation methodology used and the key
assumptions applied and performed sensitivity analysis on
key assumptions.
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B E AT RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

FASEEETEE @

Key audit matter

MRESNEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZEREE DR MAREH

Assessment on impairment for non-current assets

FEF B B ERY B E Y

Detailed information about the significant accounting
judgements and estimates on impairment for non-current
assets is provided in note 3 to the financial statements.
BRFRBBEREMNERGSHH B REHNFREER
R BRI EE3 1R o

We also reviewed the historical financial performance
of the business units and compared it with the original
forecasts when evaluating management’s budgeting
process. We have also reviewed the relevant disclosures in
the financial statements.

BT ERNEBEUNEEMBRE TRHERAR
ALEE )M EEE R EREBRE KT EEY

SRR BIAERIINEE -

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. We obtained
Management Discussion and Analysis prior to the date of our
auditor’s report and we expect to obtain other sections of the Annual
Report after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information identified above
when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the
date of the auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group'’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.
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B E AT RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

J Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

J Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

J Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matter. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B %A RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Shun Lung Wai.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

18 March 2022
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REVENUE

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income and gains

Selling and distribution expenses
Administrative expenses

Other expenses

Finance costs

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX
Income tax (expense)/credit
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY

EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

Basic

Diluted

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

BHE=mR

Year ended 31 December 2021 B E LT _—F+_F=+—HIFFE

WA

HE RS
£

B m &S m

HE R DI
THR

Htfx

AR A
HE—RWB AR S
PREEIER (5518)
Frisit (s /&%
FREF (BB

B 5B S AL
FATEBA
JEEE A

BARSBERESFHAA
ElaEsRET (5518

=¥N

Notes
Kzt

10

12

12

2021 2020
—EB_—F 52
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREF T
(Restated)

(K= E3))

1,799,690 1,057,426
(1,460,162) (950,129)
339,528 107,297

7,136 23,210

(82,324) (38,879)
(98,406) (77,601)
(3,803) (16,847)
(39,044) (36,583)

- 11,123

123,087 (28,280)
(32,587) 15,602
90,500 (12,678)

88,223 (11,177)

2,277 (1,501)

AR #RMBO.147T AR HERMB(0.02)7T
AR HERMBO.147T ARRMB(0.02)7T
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SHEERmR

Year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE_T_—F+ _F=+—HIFFE

PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR

Other comprehensive income/(loss)
that may be reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent periods:

Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS)
FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

BHMBINRR

31 December 2021 —&E_—4F+_"F=+—H

2021 2020
B —F —B2F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M=t ARBETT ARETFT
(Restated)
Ges=zpl))
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y~ BB fe sk s 13 1,150,775 1,056,488
Investment properties BREYE 14 5,132 5,729
Right-of-use assets EREEE 15 87,362 73,965
Other intangible assets HmEEE 16 5,987 6,158
Prepayments for equipment RETRNRIE 1,456 22,570
Deferred tax assets FIETRIBE B 17 7,233 23,277
Other non-current assets HERB&EE 3,407 407
Total non-current assets FERENEELE 1,261,352 1,188,594
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories 78 18 629,221 794,069
Trade and notes receivables FEW B Z IR R B ZE 15 19 512,732 375,843
Prepayments, deposits and AR RS R EMER
other receivables e Q=] 20 92,219 88,371
Pledged deposits BAIRER 22 44,730 32,889
Cash and cash equivalents BERIBEEEEY 22 249,213 166,882
Total current assets MEIEEARE 1,528,115 1,458,054
CURRENT LIABILITIES ik i =R
Trade and notes payables FEAT 8 5 IR FE I R 23 293,920 198,863
Other payables and accruals HEMRIBRTRIEE A 24 210,602 159,727
Interest-bearing bank and STRIBITREMES
other borrowings 25 828,378 962,399
Derivative financial instruments TEEMTA 21 1,275 =
Dividend payable EARE 182 188
Tax payable FETIRIE 14,948 12,762
Total current liabilities BB ELRER 1,349,305 1,333,939
NET CURRENT ASSETS MBIEERE 178,810 124,115
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERERRBEE
LIABILITIES 1,440,162 1,312,709
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

BHMBRRE

31 December 2021 —&E_-—&F+_"/F=+—H

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Deferred tax liabilities

Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings

Total non-current liabilities
Net assets

EQUITY
Equity attributable to owners of
the parent

Share capital
Treasury shares
Reserves

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Ren Weiming
{EAERR

Director

EF

2021 Annual Report — T - —F &

BERERRBERE

FRBamE
EIERIAA R
StRIRITRAEMBE

ISYNSIE Z=WNG

R
EREiqv)
G

FEEH I

s
@A

&

L

Notes
HrzE

17

25

26
27
29

2021 2020
—EB—F “BITF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETIT
(Restated)

(BRE5)

1,440,162 1,312,709
32,129 19,870
57,417 53,204
89,546 73,074
1,350,616 1,239,635
6,329 6,329
(13,305) (13,305)
1,272,702 1,202,240
1,265,726 1,195,264
84,890 44 371
1,350,616 1,239,635

Shen Yueming

7L EEER
Director

EF



At31 December 2019
Effect of a business combination
under common control

At1 January 2020 (Restated)**

Loss for the year (Restated)**
Exchange differences on
translation of foreign operations

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Transfer from retained profits

Equity-settled share award plan

Transfer of share award reserve
upon the vesting

Final 2019 dividend declared

At 31 December 2020 (Restated)**

k%

of book value accounting for business combination under common
control. Details of the restatement are set out in note 30 to the financial

statements.

REB-AE+ZAT
AREH T EBAHNY

EMER @EF)
BEBNEBNERER
FREENGEE
BHERTET
DUl e BE]
RERRERRMTEH
BER-_F-NEXHR

RIF-FET-A=T
(=7 *

Comparative figures have been restated for the Group’s application — **

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
BEHESEHER

Year ended 31 December 2021 #E_TE_—F+ _F=+—HIFFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BRBER AL
Share Non-
Issued Share Treasury Merger  Statutory award  Exchange  Retained controlling Total
capital ~ premium shares reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
BEf RipEE Fl323]1
ki RER EERR  AHRE  EREE BE  ERRE  REEH it [t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETR ARBTT ARETT ARMTr ARETR ARBTr ARETr ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR
—A 6,329 270,308 (18,493) 196,816 144,757 8,401 (2,99) 632,688 1,237,810 43,085 1,280,895
2
= = = 8,000 - - - 3,150 11,150 2,787 13,937
6,329 270,308 (18,493) 204,816 144,757 8,401 (2,996) 635,838 1,248,960 45,872 1,294,832
. . - = = - - (11,177) (11,177) (1,501) (12,678)
- - - - - - 334 - 334 - 334
. . - = - - 334 (11,177) (10,843) (1,501) (12,344)
- - - - 356 - - (356) - - -
- - - - - (4,295) - - (4,295) - (4,295)
[
- (1,082) 5188 = = (4,106) - - - - -
B - - - - - - - (385%)  (38559) - (38558
—H
6,329 269,226* (13,305) 204,816 145,113% =+ (2,662)%  585,747% 1,195,264 44371 1,239,635

& F B EZ » IR E LGS T R%
B A HHEFREE S 51 EIE - BSHIE 1E# 5
BIRZME30
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BHEZEEFR

Year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE_T_—F+ _F=+—HIFFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BARRAAEL
Non-
Issued Share  Treasury Merger ~ Statutory Other  Exchange  Retained controlling Total
capital ~ premium shares reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
BEfT Aft Fi322)1:
ke BROER EERR AR EEER fiff EREE  REE st Ba  BEEE
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
fiz A\RETn ARETn ARETn ARETn ARBTn ARETn AREBTn ARETn ARETn ARETn ARET:
At31 December 2020 (Restated) ** ~ WZEZFF
TZA=+-H &E5)~ 6,329 269,226 (13,305) 204,816 145113 = 2,662) 585747 1,195,264 437 1,239,635
Profit for the year ERER - - - - - - - 86,223 88,223 2077 90,500
Exchange differences on HEENBNEREE
translation of foreign operations - - - - - - (9.722) - (9.722) - (9,722)
Total comprehensive income ENEENEER
for the year - - - - - - 9722) 88,223 78,501 2277 80,778
Transfer from retained profits SEARTER - = = = 12,515 = = (12,515) = = =
Acquisition of a subsidiary under B EAREHNNE
common control A7 30 - - - (8,797) - - - - (8,797) - (8,797)
Captal contribution from FERRELE
non-controlling shareholders - - - - - - - - - 46,000 46,000
Acquisition of non-controlling interests 183212114 e - - - - - 758 - - 758 (758) -
Dividends paid to non-controlling R FHEERBRHRE
shareholders - - - - - - - - - (7,000) (7,000)
At31 December 2021 RTB_-F
+ZA=t-H 6,329 269,226* (13,305) 196,019* 157,628* 758 (12,384 661455* 1,265,726 84890 1,350,616
¢ These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of — * ZERBROIESHBRRRN S HEE

RMB1,272,702,000 (2020: RMB1,202,240,000) in the consolidated

statement of financial position.

e Comparative figures have been restated for the Group’s application

of book value accounting for a business combination under common

control. Details of the restatement are set out in note 30 to the financial

statements.
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CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit/(Loss) before tax

Adjustments for:
Fair value losses on derivative
instruments
— transactions not qualifying
as hedges
Equity-settled share award expense

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment and
investment properties
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Amortisation of other
intangible assets
Reversal of provision for impairment
of inventories
Loss/(Gain) on disposal of items of
property, plant and equipment
(Reversal of)/provision for
trade receivables
Reversal of provision for impairment
of property, plant and equipment
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

Finance costs
Bank interest income

Decrease/(Increase) in inventories
Increase in trade and notes receivable

(Increase)/Decrease in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables
Proceeds from pledged deposits
New pledged deposits
Decrease in derivative financial assets
Increase/(Decrease) in trade and
notes payables
Increase in other payables and accruals

Cash generated from/(used in)
operations

Interest received
Income tax paid

Net cash flows generated from/(used in)
operating activities

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

afREnER

Year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE —ZF_

REFHNRERE

BRI AT ER (B18)

R FIRIBEHBIEEE ¢
TETAENAREE

— TN EBERELHF
D m S B AR 1D 2R

2
W2~ BB e s R DA

E§%¥ﬁ¥

EREEEE
Hh i\ & = #iH

FEREREBER

HEWE  BE R
BEEE, (85
A 2 53 8R 2
(#8) B
N
AEA B
i — S B A 50

T
Fm

AR
RITHA B UA

TR 2 R LA
8 ()
ERE e ol Ee

s il
FTESREERD
FEAT 52 5 SRk R T 0
#, GA/)
HARE AR,
TR 2 B 11

mEEE FR) MRE
BB
BEPEHR

wEEBES /() 1Y
RS Pt

—FE+_HBA=+—HIFE

2021 2020

2 —F TTE

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HizE ARETT ARETF T
(Restated)

Ce==al)
123,087 (28,280)

7 1,275 -
J - (4,295)
13,14 88,934 74,417
15 4,460 4,154
16 580 545
(3,164) (5,602)
470 (2,755)

19 (1,423) 59
13 - (6,173)
- (11,123)

6 39,044 36,583
5 (234) (875)
253,029 56,655

168,012 (13,937)

(135,466) (30,082)

(18,848) 22,963

202,999 131,524

(208,096) (92,133)

- 198

95,057 (158,063)

4,020 59,258

360,707 (23,617)

234 875

(2,098) (22,301)

358,843 (45,043)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BHREFRER

Year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE_T_—F+ _F=+—HIFFE

CASH FLOWS FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchases of items of property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets

Prepayments for equipment

Proceeds from disposal of items of
property, plant and equipment

Decrease in prepayments for a building
and a land use right

Purchase of right-of-use assets

Disposal of a subsidiary

Net cash flows used in
investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Capital contribution from non-
controlling shareholders

New bank loans

Repayment of bank loans

Proceeds from pledged deposits

New pledged deposits

Interest paid

Principal portion of lease payments

Payment for acquisition of a subsidiary
under common control

Dividends paid

Dividends paid to
non-controlling shareholders

Net cash flows (used in)/generated from
financing activities

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year

Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes, net

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR

2021 Annual Report — T - —F &

REFHNHEERE

BEMX BERRE
BEREUKRETLEE
RFTAN TR
HEYE  BEKRRE
BB WFTSRUIE
BT R LB AR
TRIR R D
BEERREE
HE—RNBEAF

RETHFBNRTRE
FER

MEFHNRERE

FERRKRRESR

MISIRITEM

EERTEM

BRI RAIPT S IIA

e EIRREm

ENFE

HEMRENAEEE D

W s — R FE R4 51 BV B /&8
NCIESENEN

BKRE

SN FIFERRRNRE

MEED FTA) EEN
REMEFER

RERBEEEEYEM
FER

FONRERFEEEY

EXRRERFEEEY

Notes
Kz

31(b)

2021 2020

b b 3 .
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARET T
(Restated)

(B &)

(118,567) (73,620)
- (23,277)

4,160 13,837

- 48,000

(17,145) -
15,000 (229)
(116,552) (35,289)
46,000 -
1,187,859 1,519,808
(1,315,974) (1,406,033)
155 167,278
(6,899) (93,390)
43,173) (47,351)
2,404) (2,080)
(8,800) -

- (38,387)

(7,000) -
(150,236) 99,845
92,055 19,513
166,882 147,039
(9,724) 330
249,213 166,882




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
Kingdom Holdings Limited was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands as an exempted company with limited liability on 21
July 2006. The Company’s shares were listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 12
December 2006.

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale
of linen yarn.

The Company’s registered office address is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681 GT, Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands; and the principal place of business is located
at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong.

Information about principal subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

1.

CXidE st e ES:

31 December 2021 —&E_—4F+_"F=+—H

AEIKREBREN
TEERERRADNR_ZEZENELA
Tt+—HERENEEMNIAEREE
[RAB - RABRMGIR_EETRE+_A
+THEEABMAERFZFBRAR (THZ
Frl) £

FEBFBEUEEERBERRMY

AN BV EE 3 S B Mk 2 Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681 GT, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands; EF &
EEMMAIUNEBEEFTARERISIRG
A5 41E o

AMEERBARNEY
KRB TEMBABFBEULT :

follows:

Name of company

Rz

Overseas Kingdom Limited

Kingdom Group Holdings Limited
(“Hong Kong Kingdom”)

TEEAERERAF
(EAEE)

Zhejiang Jinyuan Flax Co., Ltd.
WIETEMERAT

Place and date of
establishment
and nature of
legal entity

FBUIL 26 R B HA R
AIARRNLE

British Virgin Islands (“BVI”)
26 July 2006

RBRUES
(RBEUES)
“EERELAZTRH

Hong Kong, China
10 September 2004
mEEE
“EEMEAATH

PRC
18 March 2003
Wholly foreign owned
enterprise

HE
“2E=F=F+N\B>
IEBELE

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/
registered

share capital
BETEER
mfE/ R

HK$0.01/HK$500
0.01787T,/50078 7T

HK$1,250,000
1,250,000 75

US$70,000,000
70,000,000 7%

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company

Principal activities

VNG
EiEEEAEDL TEEH
Direct Indirect
Ei# %
100% - Investment holding
REER
= 100%  Investment holding and
trading
REERKER
- 100%  Manufacture and sale of
linen yarn
EEMHE DR

Kingdom Holdings Limited £ZZERAER AT
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Nk

31 December 2021 —ZE_-—f&F+_"HF=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION i

(continued)

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/

Place and date of
establishment

and nature of registered
Name of company legal entity share capital
P3R5 R B HA R BRETEBER
R AEEENMEE mfE/ EmRE
Jiangsu Jinyuan Flax Co., Ltd. PRC US$18,500,000
ABETEMARAT 17 October 2003 18,500,000% 7T
Limited liability company
hE
—BR=E+A+tH
BRAR
Zhejiang Jinda Flax Co., Ltd. PRC 28 May 2012 RMB100,000,000
MIEETRMAERAR Limited liability company A& #100,000,0007%
]
“2—_HFRA"+N\H’
BIRAF
Kingdom Europe S.R.L. Italy EUR502,646
7 September 2007 502,646E175
BEAA
—ZZtENALR
Kingdom (Ethiopia) Linen PLC Ethiopia US$22,914,959
(TKingdom (Ethiopia) J) 16 July 2014 RMB88,253,711
IREMLLE 22,914,959% 7
“E-MELA+AH AE88,253,7117¢
Heilongjiang Kingdom Enterprise ~ PRC RMB300,000,000
Co., Ltd. (“Heilongjiang Kingdom”) 11 March 2016 AE#300,000,0007%

BRISEMFEERAT

Limited liability company

(MREIEE) ]
“Z—"E=At+-8>
BRAF
Kingdom Tiansheng (Shanghai) PRC RMB15,000,000
Trading Co., Ltd. 11 October 2019 AE15,000,00075
TEXR (L8 BEERAT Limited liability company
]
“E-NE+A+—H
BIRAH
Zhejiang Kingdom REEL Textile PRC RMB20,000,000
Co,, Ltd. 15 June 2020 AE%20,000,00070
I ERBHEERAT Limited liability company
I
“ET2FRATER?
BRAF

2021 Annual Report — T - —F &

AT REBRER @

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company

VNG

EiEEEAEDL

Direct
=k

Indirect

&

100%

100%

100%

100%

75%

80%

100%

Principal activities

TEEH

Manufacture and sale of
linen yarn

EEMHE DR

Manufacture and sale of

linen yarn
EERHE LR
Trading
85

Manufacture and sale of
linen yarn

EERHE LR

Manufacture and sale of
linen yarn

EERHE LR

Trading
E%

Trading
85



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

CXidE st e ES:

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(continued)

Name of company

R

Heilongjiang Kingdom Industrial
Hemp Supply Chain Management

Co., Ltd

RRITETEARMMREESE

BRAH

Kingdom Tiansheng (Zhejiang)
Fabric Co., Ltd.

EERR (0D hEERAR

Heilongjiang Kangyuan Flax
and Hemp Seed Co., Ltd
(“Kangyuan Seed”)

RRIRREXERAT

(MEREZX))

Jiangxi Kingdom Fabric Co., Ltd.

IREERZERAR

Place and date of
establishment
and nature of
legal entity

BRI R R B AR
AEEENMEE

PRC
12 June 2020
Limited liability company
]
“EIRERATIR
BRAR

PRC
15 February 2021
Limited liability company
]
“E_—®#_F+EHA>
BRAF

PRC
8 August 2017
Limited liability company
]
“Z—+tENANR>
BIRAF

PRC
15 December 2021
Limited liability company
HE

“E_—#+"A+EA’

BRAR

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/
registered

share capital
BRETEBER
mfE/ KA

RMB50,000,000
AR #50,000,00075

RMB100,000,000
AE100,000,0007T

RMB10,000,000
AE#10,000,0007T

RMB70,000,000
AR #70,000,0007T

During the year, the Group acquired Kangyuan Seed from a

company controlled by a director of the Company. Further

details of this acquisition are included in note 30 to the

financial statements.

31 December 2021

AT REBRER @

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company

b YN
EEESEE T
Direct Indirect

=k ik

- 100%

- 100%

- 80%

- 100%

e e =+ — O

Principal activities

TEEH

Sale of industrial hemp

HETE KR

Trading
8%

R&D and sale of hemp
seeds

A3 R HE ARIHF

Manufacture and sale
of fabric

TERHERR

FRAEFERETRF—REFEHFNNA
AIBWERRER - WEBNE—TFB

M B ERARMIEE300
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”)
(which include all International Financial Reporting Standards,
International Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations)
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(“IASB”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for derivative financial
instruments and notes receivables which have been measured
at fair value. These financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand (RMB’000), except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2021. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such control

ceases.

2021 Annual Report — T - —F &
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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31 December 2021 —&E_-—&F+_"/F=+—H
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2.1

2.2

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss
of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(i) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(i) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised IFRSs for the first
time for the current year’s financial statements.

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
— Phase 2

Amendments to IFRS 9,
IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4
and IFRS 16

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond
30 June 2021 (early adopted)

Amendment to IFRS 16

2.1

2.2

CXidE st e ES:

31 December 2021 —&E_—4F+_"F=+—H

RBIEE @

EHEE@W
FTEEERREEEEREGE @ W
AMBAEZREREBRE AT BRZ AR
NIREREHN S HIRB R EIEHE o

8B BB B RER L XA = TR
BITREP-—RRZHELIENE  AjXE
BEEMTILERTERNRENR B
AEEEREDNES LEISEER
REmR 5 Ao

MAEELRENWB AT IESE Bl
KIEER)ZMNBAENEE (BEEHE)
REE ()ERFFERIME RN IREEER
(i N BB RS BE A2 28§ KB
SBOFFRABHAREE (VERFRERE
NARBERGVEEFEFNELEENE
BRECE AL o B E R H M2 E W e SRR
AEBRBGBOZABNAERERLE
FHEENABRMRENBEREEEH
DEERENMAREEN WEA) -

BEBRRIRENES

AEBCRAFEMBRERABRERT

SAEERT (BRI B IR S 2R ) o

(BB RS %R ENE-F_IER
F9%% (B gt 2£R))
F395%  (BIFRA 75
REZR)E7H%
(ERMBREZER)
FAER(ERHHRE
ZR)) F165ER BT A

(EIFRE B R S 2R )
F165EHEET A

—E—FNA=1+H#E
HiCovid-196 it £ &
B (GEFIFRA)
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

CXitiEsE e ES:

31 December 2021

S - A —H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSU RES (continued)
The nature and the impact of the revised IFRSs are described
below:

(a)

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and
IFRS 16 address issues not dealt with in the previous
amendments which affect financial reporting when
an existing interest rate benchmark is replaced with
an alternative risk-free rate (“RFR”). The amendments
provide a practical expedient to allow the effective
interest rate to be updated without adjusting the
carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities when
accounting for changes in the basis for determining the
contractual cash flows of financial assets and liabilities,
if the change is a direct consequence of the interest rate
benchmark reform and the new basis for determining
the contractual cash flows is economically equivalent to
the previous basis immediately preceding the change.
In addition, the amendments permit changes required
by the interest rate benchmark reform to be made to
hedge designations and hedge documentation without
the hedging relationship being discontinued. Any gains
or losses that could arise on transition are dealt with
through the normal requirements of IFRS 9 to measure
and recognise hedge ineffectiveness. The amendments
also provide a temporary relief to entities from having
to meet the separately identifiable requirement when
an RFR is designated as a risk component. The relief
allows an entity, upon designation of the hedge, to
assume that the separately identifiable requirement is
met, provided the entity reasonably expects the RFR risk
component to become separately identifiable within
the next 24 months. Furthermore, the amendments
require an entity to disclose additional information to
enable users of financial statements to understand the
effect of interest rate benchmark reform on an entity’s
financial instruments and risk management strategy. The
amendments did not have any significant impact on the
financial position and performance of the Group.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b)

Amendment to IFRS 16 issued in March 2021 extends
the availability of the practical expedient for lessees to
elect not to apply lease modification accounting for
rent concessions arising as a direct consequence of the
covid-19 pandemic by 12 months. Accordingly, the
practical expedient applies to rent concessions for which
any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2022, provided the
other conditions for applying the practical expedient
are met. The amendment is effective retrospectively
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021
with any cumulative effect of initially applying the
amendment recognised as an adjustment to the opening
balance of retained profits at the beginning of the current
accounting period. Earlier application is permitted. The
Group has early adopted the amendment on 1 January
2021. However, the Group has not received covid-19-
related rent concessions and plans to apply the practical
expedient when it becomes applicable within the
allowed period of application.
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31 December 2021 —ZF—

2.3

& A=l —H

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised

IFRSs, that have been issued
financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 3
Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28 (2011)

IFRS 17
Amendments to IFRS 17

Amendment to IFRS 17

Amendments to IAS 1
Amendments to IAS 1
and IFRS Practice

Statement 2

Amendments to IAS 8

Amendments to [AS 12

Amendments to IAS 16
Amendments to IAS 37
Annual Improvements to

IFRS Standards
2018-2020
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but are not yet effective, in these

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework’

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture’®

Insurance Contracts’
Insurance Contracts®*

Initial Application of IFRS 17
and IFRS 9 — Comparative
Information?

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-curren?’

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies?

Definition of Accounting
Estimates?

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction?

Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use'

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract’

Amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS
9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying IFRS 16,
and IAS 41’
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2.3

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2022

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023

’ No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

¢ As a consequence of the amendments to IFRS 17 issued in June

2020, IFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption
that permits insurers to apply IAS 39 rather than IFRS 9 for
annual periods beginning before 1 January 2023

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to IFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference to
the previous Framework for the Preparation and Presentation
of Financial Statements with a reference to the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting issued in March 2018
without significantly changing its requirements. The
amendments also add to IFRS 3 an exception to its recognition
principle for an entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework
to determine what constitutes an asset or a liability. The
exception specifies that, for liabilities and contingent liabilities
that would be within the scope of IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 if they
were incurred separately rather than assumed in a business
combination, an entity applying IFRS 3 should refer to IAS 37
or IFRIC 21 respectively instead of the Conceptual Framework.
Furthermore, the amendments clarify that contingent assets do
not qualify for recognition at the acquisition date. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 January
2022. Since the amendments apply prospectively to business
combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the
date of first application, the Group will not be affected by these
amendments on the date of transition.
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31 December 2021 —&E_-—&F+_"/F=+—H

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities
as current or non-current. The amendments specify that if an
entity’s right to defer settlement of a liability is subject to the
entity complying with specified conditions, the entity has
a right to defer settlement of the liability at the end of the
reporting period if it complies with those conditions at that
date. Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood
that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of the
liability. The amendments also clarify the situations that are
considered a settlement of a liability. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023 and shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier application
is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies require
entities to disclose their material accounting policy information
rather than their significant accounting policies. Accounting
policy information is material if, when considered together with
other information included in an entity’s financial statements,
it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the
primary users of general purpose financial statements make on
the basis of those financial statements. Amendments to IFRS
Practice Statement 2 provide non-mandatory guidance on
how to apply the concept of materiality to accounting policy
disclosures. Amendments to IAS 1 are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and earlier
application is permitted. Since the guidance provided in the
amendments to IFRS Practice Statement 2 is non-mandatory,
an effective date for these amendments is not necessary. The
Group is currently assessing the impact of the amendments on
the Group’s accounting policy disclosures.
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2.3

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to IAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes
in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies.
Accounting estimates are defined as monetary amounts
in financial statements that are subject to measurement
uncertainty. The amendments also clarify how entities use
measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting
estimates. The amendments are effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and apply to
changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting
estimates that occur on or after the start of that period. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

Amendments to IAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exception so that it no longer applies to
transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences, such as leases and decommissioning
obligations. Therefore, entities are required to recognise a
deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability for temporary
differences arising from these transactions. The amendments
are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2023 and shall be applied to transactions related
to leases and decommissioning obligations at the beginning
of the earliest comparative period presented, with any
cumulative effect recognised as an adjustment to the opening
balance of retained profits or other component of equity as
appropriate at that date. In addition, the amendments shall
be applied prospectively to transactions other than leases and
decommissioning obligations. Earlier application is permitted.

The Group has applied the initial recognition exception and did
not recognise a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability
for temporary differences for transactions related to leases.
Upon initial application of these amendments, the Group
will recognise a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability
for deductible and taxable temporary differences associated
with right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, and recognise the
cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments as an
adjustment to the opening balance of retained profits at the
beginning of the earliest comparative period presented.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to IAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting
from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
any proceeds from selling items produced while bringing
that asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by management.
Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds from selling any
such items, and the cost of those items, in profit or loss. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied retrospectively only
to items of property, plant and equipment made available for
use on or after the beginning of the earliest period presented
in the financial statements in which the entity first applies the
amendments. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous under IAS 37, the
cost of fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that relate
directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to a contract
include both the incremental costs of fulfilling that contract
(e.g., direct labour and materials) and an allocation of other
costs that relate directly to fulfilling that contract (e.g., an
allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property,
plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract as well as
contract management and supervision costs). General and
administrative costs do not relate directly to a contract and
are excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to the
counterparty under the contract. The amendments are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and
shall be applied to contracts for which an entity has not yet
fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which it first applies the amendments.
Earlier application is permitted. Any cumulative effect of
initially applying the amendments shall be recognised as
an adjustment to the opening equity at the date of initial
application without restating the comparative information. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact
on the Group’s financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

Business combinations

An acquisition of a business which is a business combination
under common control is accounted for in a manner similar to
a uniting of interests whereby the assets and liabilities acquired
are accounted for at carryover predecessor values to the other
party to the business combination within all periods presented
as if the operations of the Group and the business acquired
had always been combined. The difference between the
consideration paid by the Group and the net assets or liabilities
of the business acquired is adjusted against equity.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its derivative financial instruments and
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the
principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of
a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the
asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market
must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset
or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole:

Level 1 —  based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 —  based on valuation techniques for which the

lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets and financial assets), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of
those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. In testing a cash-generating unit for
impairment, a portion of the carrying amount of a corporate
asset is allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if it can
be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise,
to the smallest group of cash-generating units.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in
those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an
asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of
any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss
in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant
accounting policy for that revalued asset.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person (i) has control or joint control over
the Group; (ii) has significant influence over the Group;
or (iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Related parties (continued)
(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies;

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third party and the
other entity is an associate of the third party;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. When an item of property, plant and
equipment is classified as held for sale or when it is part of a
disposal group classified as held for sale, it is not depreciated
and is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5. The cost of an
item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Plant and buildings 4.5%
Machinery 9.0%
Office equipment 18.0%
Motor vehicles 22.5%

Leasehold improvements Over the lease terms
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

CXidE st e ES:

31 December 2021 —&E_—4F+_"F=+—H

24 FEGHHEEME @

ME BB R ERITE

Y3 BB Iesr s (IR A2 BRI Th AR 2
MR EREMREBEY R -E—&
NE-BERRKBOESFEHENER
HENDBEBFEFHENREHEG D
By o AT E M RR(RE R B S 2858
S5SEARR . —IEME - BERRENRETE
EEREBRASEEEREEMRILfE
HEINRERNEARENENERT RSB
A o

ME-BERRBEERABFRELN
S MEERES  —RINELENE
m AR M GHEERAA A EER
ERXEREEBRENEERETRESR
E-EMEX - BERKENERBIER
—REBREEERE AEEBERZED
7B 85 B B F HARY (B B & E M i Z 37

Eo

WEDNEYE BERREBESEENMGE
RIfERFEHUERETE & H i A iEH
EHRGREE BIFILBENETEFINE
=31

B R IEF 4.5%
B35 9.0%
I YNESE L 18.0%
RE 22.5%
THEYELEE GiEN=E

W% BERRHEEENTREDBIE
ERERER  ZEENRAHEEER
ENEEFEH S BEENETHE - =D
ARBYREFEERFEN RAE (WE
FA) RERBE AIERERRITE S &

Kingdom Holdings Limited £ZZERAER AT

113



114

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents plant and buildings and
machinery under construction, which is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the
direct costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs
on related borrowed funds during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in buildings held to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business.

The Group’s investment properties are accounted for using
the cost model. The initial recognition and subsequent
measurement of land and buildings that are leased out are
accounted for using the same measurement and depreciation
methods as those of plant and buildings.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful
economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there
is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful lives are reviewed at least
at each financial year end. The useful life of the patents and
licences and certified emission rights of the Group are 20
years.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss
as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete
and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will
generate future economic benefits, the availability of resources
to complete the project and the ability to measure reliably the
expenditure during the development. Product development
expenditure which does not meet these criteria is expensed
when incurred.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract
is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases. The Group
recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-
use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(a)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset
is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold land 50 years
Plant and buildings 2 to 12 years
Motor vehicles 10 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease payments
to be made over the lease term. The lease payments
include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise
price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be
exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for
termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising the option to terminate the lease. The variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate
are recognised as an expense in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities (continued)

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit
in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in
lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate) or a change
in assessment of an option to purchase the underlying
asset.

The Group’s lease liabilities are included in interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (that is those leases that have a lease term of
12 months or less from the commencement date and do
not contain a purchase option).

Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception
(or when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as
either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset
are classified as operating leases. When a contract contains
lease and non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted
for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included
in other income in the statement of profit or loss due to its
operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount
of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the
same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as
revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are
accounted for as finance leases.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or
loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing
them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus in the
case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component or for which the Group has
applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction
price determined under IFRS 15 in accordance with the
policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are
not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit
or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate
cash flows. The business model determines whether cash
flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling
the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and
measured at amortised cost are held within a business model
with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified and
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
are held within a business model with the objective of both
holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial
assets which are not held within the aforementioned business
models are classified and measured at fair value through profit
or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or
impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income (debt instruments)

For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and
impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for
financial assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining
fair value changes are recognised in other comprehensive
income. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value change
recognised in other comprehensive income is recycled to the
statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with net changes
in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial
liability or non-financial host, is separated from the host
and accounted for as a separate derivative if the economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to the host;
a separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded
derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and the
hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit or
loss. Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or
loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in
the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash
flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification
of a financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss
category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing
a financial asset host is not accounted for separately. The
financial asset host together with the embedded derivative is
required to be classified in its entirety as a financial asset at fair
value through profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

. The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or
. The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows

from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk
and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
(“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to
the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible within the next
12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for
which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of
the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition. When making the assessment,
the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain
cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in
default when internal or external information indicates that
the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full before taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written
off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach (continued)

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income and financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are classified
within the following stages for measurement of ECLs except
for trade receivables which apply the simplified approach as
detailed below.
Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs

Stage 2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition but that are not credit-impaired
financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs

Financial assets that are credit-impaired at
the reporting date (but that are not purchased
or originated credit-impaired) and for which

Stage 3 -

the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component, the Group applies the simplified approach in
calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group
does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.
The Group has established a provision matrix that is based
on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, or payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and notes
payables, other payables and accruals, dividend payable,
derivative financial instruments and interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)
After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated
at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as
forward currency contracts and cross-currency swaps, to hedge
its foreign currency risk. Such derivative financial instruments
are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as assets when
the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is
negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives are taken directly to the statement of profit or
loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges,
which is recognised in other comprehensive income and later
reclassified to profit or loss when the hedged item affects profit
or loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Treasury shares

Own equity instruments which are reacquired and held by the
Company or the Group (treasury shares) are recognised directly
in equity at cost. No gain or loss is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of
the Group’s own equity instruments.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and,
in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion
and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in nature
to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POI_ICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

J when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

J in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

. when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

J in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the
end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity
or different taxable entities which intend either to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on
a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, for which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is deducted
from the carrying amount of the asset and released to the
statement of profit or loss by way of a reduced depreciation
charge.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods is transferred to the customers at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods.

(@  Sale of linen yarn, hemp yarn and scraps
Revenue from the sale of linen yarn, hemp yarn and
scraps is recognised at the point in time when control of
the goods is transferred to the customers, generally upon
delivery of the goods.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over
the lease terms.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share award plan for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based
payments, whereby employees render services as consideration
for equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which
they are granted. Further details are given in note 28 to the
financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of each
reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent
to which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement of profit
or loss for a period represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair
value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without
an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-
vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the
fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing
of an award unless there are also service and/or performance
conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as
if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within
the control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award,
and is designated as a replacement award on the date that it is
granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.

Pension scheme

Pursuant to the relevant regulations, the Group has participated
in a local municipal government pension scheme (the
“Scheme”), whereby the Group is required to contribute a
certain percentage of the basic salaries of its employees to the
Scheme to fund the retirement benefits. The local municipal
government undertakes to assume the retirement benefit
obligations of all existing and future retired employees of the
Group. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
Scheme is to pay the ongoing required contributions under the
Scheme mentioned above. Contributions under the Scheme
are charged to the statement of profit or loss as incurred.
There are no provisions under the Scheme whereby forfeited
contributions may be used to reduce future contributions.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs
that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends
Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB, which is
the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in
the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded
by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on retranslation of a non-
monetary item is treated in line with the recognition of the
gain or loss on change in fair value of the item measured at fair
value (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than RMB. As at the end of the reporting
period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated
into RMB at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or loss are
translated into RMB at the exchange rates that approximate to
those prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of
other comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

2021 Annual Report — T - —F &

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

CXitiEsE e ES:

31 December 2021 —&E_-—&F+_"/F=+—H

24 FEGHHEHEME @

S
EMBREUAREZY) DA RBBIT)
FEER - AEEANBRSBREHEE
Bl RBRNMBRE]EBBHUMED
FEERFE - AEBRANBERNINERZ
MR EFNEERE N5 E HERIA
BEAR-DUMESHEMNEBREERER &
ERAEEERESHARNERKRE A
EENMEEREEMEENEZENEDR
KRR -

BRELRAS R LINESTBRIEE I
B HAVGERZARNERBE A
AEEINKR DUMNSSHERNIFERERE
RASEAAEBERHNEXRBRE B
MBEFERERMEENRENEIES A
HERBANBEFENEBELANEBEES
FNEBE - ME2 REME2ERE
FEREANEDAANBEREENEENER
=8 TR EMERE DB m A RE

52) o

ETBINBAEERBARBLINGEE
BUMEEW -NMEIR ZFERNEE
HERRREPRNETERRESAR
B> HEmARREAR S HHRTEXAE
ARERBBE/ARK-

FEIEMmEENVERZRR E M2 E R E A
BRLNERFEERNRS - HEBINES
R AR BB EBNHMEE WS
DERTmRAE -



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POI_ICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into
RMB at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash
flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
which arise throughout the year are translated into RMB at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Judgements

There is no significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements arising from the judgements,
apart from those involving estimations, made by management
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(a)

Impairment of non-current assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-current assets at the end of
each reporting period. Non-current assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists
when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher
of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in
use. The Group identifies that there is only one cash-
generating unit comprising of all property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and other intangible
assets as the operation of the Group is managed on
a centralised basis with production allocated across
all factories based on their available capacity. The
calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is based
on available data from binding sales transactions in an
arm'’s length transaction of similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future cash
flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows.

The recoverable amount of the non-current assets of
the Group has been determined based on a value in
use calculation using cash flow projections based
on financial budgets covering a five-year period
approved by management. The assumption that has
the most significant impact on the determination of the
recoverable amount of the Group’s assets is the discount
rate and growth rate. The pre-tax discount rate applied to
the cash flow projections as at 31 December 2021 was
22%. The growth rate is estimated based on historical
growth rate and future economic environment. The
carrying amounts of non-current assets under impairment
testing is RMB1,244 million (2020: RMB1,137 million).
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the losses can be utilised.
Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of
future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. The carrying amount of related deferred tax
assets is RMB16,697,000 (2020: RMB28,701,000).

Write-down of inventories

The Group’s inventories are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. The Group writes down
its inventories based on estimates of the realisable
value with reference to the age and conditions of the
inventories, together with the economic circumstances
on the marketability of such inventories. Inventories will
be reviewed annually for write-down, if appropriate.
The carrying amount of inventories at 31 December
2021 was RMB629,221,000 (2020: RMB794,069,000).
Further details are contained in note 18 to the financial
statements.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables
The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for
trade receivables. The provision rates are based on days
past due for groupings of various customer segments
that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by forms of credit
insurance).
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Nk

31 December 2021

S - A —H

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(d)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade and notes
receivables (continued)

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's
historical observed default rates. The Group will calibrate
the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience
with forward-looking information. For instance, if
forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic
product) are expected to deteriorate over the next year
which can lead to an increased number of defaults in
the manufacturing sector, the historical default rates are
adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs
is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group's historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may
also not be representative of a customer’s actual default
in the future. The information about the ECLs on the
Group's trade receivables is disclosed in note 19 to the
financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into one
single business unit that is primarily the manufacture and
sale of linen yarn. Management reviews the consolidated
results when making decisions about allocating resources
and assessing the performance of the Group. Accordingly, no
segment analysis is presented.

Geographical information

(@  Revenue from external customers
An analysis of the Group’s geographical information on
revenue attributed to the regions on the basis of customer
locations for the year ended 31 December 2021 is set
out in the following table:
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Revenue from
external customers

Mainland China ] A B

European Union ERHE

Non-European Union countries JFERER &
(b)  Non-current assets

Mainland China F 3] A P

Ethiopia HmEMILE

RKEIMEBERURA

2021 2020

—E—HF “ETE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETF T
673,137 476,377
563,110 302,630
563,443 278,419
1,799,690 1,057,426

(b) FEREBIEE

2021 2020
—E—%F “EIEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT
(Restated)
Ge=l)
861,900 810,631
392,219 354,686
1,254,119 1,165,317
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Nk

31 December 2021 —&E_-—&F+_"/F=+—H

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Geographical information (continued)

The non-current asset information above is based on the
locations of the assets and excludes deferred tax assets.

Information about major customers

No revenue amounting to 10 percent or more of the Group’s
total revenue was derived from sales to a single customer for
the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Revenue from contracts with customers, which is also the
Group’s turnover, represents the sales value of linen yarn,
hemp yarn and scraps, net of sales tax and deduction of any
sales discounts and returns. The performance obligation is
satisfied upon delivery of linen yarn, hemp yarn and scraps and
payment is generally due within 30 to 150 days from delivery,
except for new customers, where payment in advance is
normally required.

An analysis of revenue from contracts with customers, other
income and gains is as follows:

Type of goods Em|s

Sale of linen yarn, hemp yarn and scraps ~ $H%& a8 &) ~ KMiAD K BE

LN Ed

Timing of revenue recognition
Goods transferred at a point in time

Revenue recognised that was included in contract liabilities
at the beginning of the reporting period was RMB19,752,000
(2020: RMB14,935,000).

The information about the remaining performance obligations
for contracts with original expected duration of one year or less
is not disclosed as a practical expedient under IFRS 15.
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CXidE st e ES:

311 December 2021, =S — FSASE = —H

e

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continuesy 5. WA~ Btz k153

(&)

:

2021 2020
—_E_—F —EC=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET T ARETIT
(Restated)
Ges=zpl))
Other income Hithugzs
Government grants B #5Eh 4,641 16,598
Bank interest income RITH] 2 WA 234 875
Others HAth 2,261 2,982
7,136 20,455
Gains S
Gain from disposal of property, HEME -BERZERT
plant and equipment - 2,755
7,136 23,210
6. FINANCE COSTS 6. MAFAA
2021 2020
—m-——& —=-%
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARHEFTT
Interest on bank loans IRITERNF B 42,687 46,869
Interest on lease liabilities HESENFE 489 482
Total interest expense on financial liabilities FRIZAMBEGTAEmNEHEE
not at fair value through profit or loss HIF S sz 4258 43,176 47,351
Less: Interest capitalised B BRI E (4,132) (10,768)
39,044 36,583
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31 December 2021 —&E_-—&F+_"/F=+—H

& There is no forfeited contribution for the Group to offset future
contribution.
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7. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX 7. BRiAnER (518)
The Group's profit/(loss) before tax is arrived at after charging/ NEEBFRRATEF S (B518) R0k (G
(crediting): A FIIRIEREH !
2021 2020
—EF -
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
FEE ARBTT ARBTF T
(Restated)
(ET)
Cost of inventories sold HEFEMA 1,460,162 950,129
Depreciation of property, I BB e 58 B A 13, 14
plant and equipment and S EYEITE
investment properties 88,934 74,417
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ {FFREEEITE 15(a) 4,460 4,154
Amortisation of other intangible assets EL 2 & 2= #8H 16 580 545
Research and development B 3E R B e (TRREE)) B
(“R&D”) expenses 31,723 16,780
Lease payment not included in the Rzt ATHEESEFEM 15(c)
measurement of lease liabilities HEMIE 604 604
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEMEN & 1,950 1,950
Employee benefit expense EEERMNFX (BEESEK
(including directors’ and chief Ee{THAEEHH
executive’s remuneration):
Wages, salaries and other benefits T & ¥ M E & F!] 214,670 175,025
Pension scheme contributions* BIRE ST B R 23,866 13,494
Reversal of equity-settled Dt s B R 17 52 B 28
share award expense sz ¥ (o] - (4,295)
238,536 184,224
Foreign exchange differences, net SNEEFEER  JHEE 162 14,700
Fair value loss on derivative METENARBEEEE
instruments
— transactions not qualifying —TFEEREH AN S
as hedges (1,275) =
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of ~ HEWE KEKZEEE
property, plant and equipment B8/ (185 470 (2,755)
Reversal of provision for impairment 175 i3 (& & &[]
of inventories (3,164) (5,602)
(Reversal of)/Provision for impairment &YX & 5 BRFRE 19
of trade receivables (EE) B (1,423) 59
Reversal of provision for L EN SN 13
impairment of property, BB B (]
plant and equipment - (6,173)
Bank interest income IRITH S A (234) (875)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—XWNBABNE@E - (11,123)

7 5= B B 4 0R UR (K AR BT A R A B R e it
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CXidE st e ES:

311 December 2021, =S — FSASE = —H

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EFKESITHAEZM
REMUNERATION

Directors’” and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b),
(c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2

of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of

FR REBELTRI S FB(RFFEMD) B
383(1)(@)~ (b)~ (O RMOIFUR (AT WEE
FEHHER) RO B2WIRBNEERES
TERABHBMIMT :

Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

2021 2020

—E-—% “EEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AREF T

Fees HBE 437 437
Other emoluments: HA %

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind i BRI REYHIR 3,730 3,480

Pension scheme contributions BRIRNE BT 90 90

4,257 4,007

(@

Independent non-executive directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors

@ BIUFRTES

FRABBILFRATEFZINEE

during the year were as follows: L1

2021 2020

—E—F -
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARET T
M. Lau Ying Kit BT L 125 125
Mr. Yan Jianmiao BEESLE 104 104
Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson BERERE 104 104
333 333

There were no other emoluments payable to the

independent non-executive directors during the year

(2020: Nil).

FERTEEMBILIERATEENE
MilE (CE2F . &\) o
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31 December 2021 —ZE_-—f&F+_"HF=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

REMUNERATION (continued)

(b) Executive directors, non-executive director and

the chief executive

2021

Executive directors
Mr. Ren Weiming*
Mr. Shen Yueming
Mr. Zhang Hongwen
Ms. Shen Hong

Non-executive director
Mr. Ngan Kam Wai Albert
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HITES
EAERR ST
CEEBRSTE
SRIBSE
/LB g

FERITES
BB E

8. EFkEEITHRAEHFM®@
(b) HITEZ -FERITEERRET
BAB
Salaries,

allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind contributions remuneration

g 2Ry BT
HE KREWHE TRk 7 b
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETR AREBTRT ARETRT
- 1,750 - 1,750
- 750 45 795
- 750 45 795
— 480 - 480
- 3,730 90 3,820
104 - - 104
104 - - 104
104 3,730 90 3,924
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION (continued)

(b)

Executive directors, non-executive director and

CXidE st e ES:
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8. EFKARSITHAEHFM®@

b) HTEF -FRITEERRET

the chief executive (continued) BAS @
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind  contributions  remuneration
Frie 2L RIRE
BE KEYAE= TR Frof4azE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETrT ARBTRT AREBTT ARETRT
2020 BT
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Ren Weiming* EMERRS R L - 1,500 - 1,500
Mr. Shen Yueming TLERBH S A = 750 45 795
Mr. Zhang Hongwen SRIE A - 750 45 795
Ms. Shen Hong LR Z L = 480 = 480
- 3,480 90 3,570
Non-executive director EHRITES
Mr. Ngan Kam Wai Albert ERRIERSE 104 - - 104
104 - - 104
104 3,480 90 3,674
g Mr. Ren Weiming, who is an executive director of the * RRABHITEENEMERTETFR

Company, also acts as the chief executive officer of the
Company.

ERRBITHABE, °
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31 December 2021 —ZE_-—f&F+_"HF=+—H

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9.
The five highest paid employees during the year included four
(2020: four) directors including the chief executive, details
of whose remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details
of the remuneration for the year of the remaining one (2020:
one) highest paid employee who is neither a director nor chief
executive of the Company are as follows:

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R REBYH SR

Share award plan (note 28) B1n £ B =t &) (F75228)
Pension scheme contributions BIREFT B

The remuneration of the non-director and non-chief executive
highest paid employee fell within the following band:

haEEHMNES

FR - IREEHFNESEERNS (CETZ
TE IR ES EREERSTHRAS
HFrBsr B8 EXX N8 - A R F—%
(CEIERF ! —2) FERAEFARD
THABNRSHMESHFMFIENT !

2021 2020
—E—fF -
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBETT

1,246 1,303
- (82)
15 16
1,261 1,237

FEERIIFERSTHRAENRSHMNES
BOFr BN ER 5 A TN EEE -

Number of employees

BEAH
2021 2020
¥ F TEIEE
HK$1,500,000 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,00078 70 22,000,000 75 1 1

During the year ended 31 December 2021, none of the
directors and chief executive, or any of the non-director and
non-chief executive highest paid employees waived or agreed
to waive any remuneration (2020: None). None of the directors
and the chief executive, or any of the non-director and non-
chief executive highest paid employees received any payment
from the Group as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office (2020: None).
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REBEE_ZE-_—F+"A=+—HIHF
E #BBEESARSTHRAEREMIEE
ERIERSTHAENRSHINESNE
HEBREEAEFHFN CE2ZFE 5 o
m%%&yaﬁﬁAEIEﬁ%%$&%
EaTBRAENRSHMESERAERK
ERAE (] R I8 LAOR 5 | E AN A AR & B s R 0 A
REBMBSEARBNEABRRME CEZ
T ) o



10.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

CXidE st e ES:

INCOME TAX

10.

Major components of the Group’s income tax expense/(credit)

for the year are as follows:

Current — Mainland China

— Charge for the year

— Overprovision in respect of prior years
Current — Hong Kong

— Charge for the year

— Overprovision in respect of prior years
Current - Italy

— Charge for the year

— Under-provision in respect of prior years
Deferred (note 17)

Total tax charge/(credit) for the year

BPAR — B RRE
—FRXH
—BEEEBEER

BIfR—&%8
—FRXH
—BEFEBEER

BPER— =R A
—FRXH
—BREEERERR

ESE (aE17)

FRREZH, (%) B

31 December 2021 —ZF—

—#+=A=+—4

FRiSiR

AEEBRFERNMB/KES (BR) T2
HEWT :

2021 2020

—E—F —ETEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT AR

150 19

(901) (36)

3,094 3,069

= (789)

153 14

1,788 =

28,303 (17,879)

32,587 (15,602)

(ii)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the British Virgin Islands, the Group is not
subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands or the
British Virgin Islands.

In accordance with the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law
which was approved and became effective on 1 January
2008, the provision for current income tax of Mainland
China subsidiaries has been based on a statutory rate
of 25% of the assessable profits of these companies
for the year, except for Zhejiang Jinda Flax Co., Ltd.
(“Zhejiang Jinda”), an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group. Zhejiang Jinda obtained the High-new
Technology Certificate for the years from 2019 to 2022
and is entitled to a tax rate of 15%.

(ii)

REREFEREERE LA SR
FER AEBBABMASESN
RERLESERMER

BEERABTN _EBNE—F—
HAEMMW (PR B ZEMEIRE) » BE
ABEEMBAB B EREEER
BENZER B NEZRREHMNE25%
AEEMESE EAEEN—BEEE
2EWBADMIISETRARA
B (MIRE) BRI o MITTER
BRIE—HNEE-ZT - —FLXE
FEENBSHEMRE > 2 H15%70
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

CXitiEsE e ES:

31 December 2021 —&E_-—&F+_"/F=+—H

10.

| NCOME TAX (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate
of 8.25% on the estimated assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong up to HK$2 million. Assessable profits over
HK$2 million are subject to a tax rate of 16.5%.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of Italy, the Group
is subject to tax at an income tax rate of 28.82%, which
comprises the Italy Corporate Income Tax at 24% and the
Italy Regional Income Tax at 4.82%.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of Ethiopia, the
Group is subject to tax at an income tax rate of 30%. The
Group enjoys a tax holiday of profit tax exemption of 10
years.

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit
before tax at the statutory rate for the jurisdiction in
which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries
are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rate
is as follows:

10. FR{8

(iii)

(iv)

R @
EEANEREREBEENEZ2E
BB st FERI R A LL8.25%FR =
SHRRB BE2E BB THNERKR
A ZBI216.5%B9F5 R o

RIFEAFIRA AR NEBER
28.82% M R MFTIRH > EPEIEE
24%MEAHN B AFIBEMBR X
#4.82% M EFEHNE KM ETE
o

RIFREME R AR S E
RE30%INK GNP [N - AERZ
BI0FEMERBRHIMNBER

BARNBREREDWE LSRN EE
ERRENZERIAEBERN SRR AT
FHRBERS  BRBERRERFENRIE

Profit/(loss) before tax

Tax at an applicable tax rate of 25%
Effect of different/beneficial tax rates

Under-provision/(Overprovision) in
respect of prior years

Income not subject to tax

Tax losses not recognised

Expenses not deductible for tax

Tax credit arising from additional

deduction of R&D expenditures of

Mainland China subsidiaries
Accrual/(reversal of) of
a withholding tax liability

Total tax charge/(credit) for the year
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B BIHERT ¢
2021 2020
B —F ==

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT AR¥TFIT
(Restated)
Ges==eTl))
BRI AR A, (B518) 123,087 (28,280)
%8 FA Y25% M E5T EH IR 18 30,772 (7,070)
TR/ 1BERESLE (1,101) (2,864)

BEFEREENR (BEES)
887 (825)
BIEFI AU A (1,036) (4,233)
REEBRIRIBEIE 4,166 1,160
AR 2,042 2,603

PR K RS B A B P SRR 2 N5t

MBREENRIER S
(6,936) (2,498)
R aEstE @&/

3,793 (1,875)
FERRIEZE (E%) 4858 32,587 (15,602)




11.

12.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

BilDecembert2 (21 i g = -~ —H
DIVIDEND 1. KR
2021 2020
—E—fF -
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTT AREETTT
Proposed final — HK6.0 cents (2020: Nil)  ZZEAKIKRE — SR EERK6.0781L
per ordinary share (CE_TF . H® 30,889 -

At the meeting of the board of directors of the Company
held on 18 March 2022, the payment of a final dividend
of HK6.0 cents per ordinary share totalling approximately
RMB30,889,000 was recommended for the year ended 31
December 2021,
Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

which is subject to the approval of the

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
The calculation of the basic earnings/(loss) per share amount
is based on the profit/(loss) for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the parent and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares of 616,447,000 (2020: 614,569,000) in issue
during the year, as adjusted to reflect the treasury shares held
during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings/(loss) per share amount
is based on the profit/(loss) for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the parent. The weighted average number
of ordinary shares used in the calculation is the number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year, as used in the basic
earnings/(loss) per share calculation, and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at
no consideration on the deemed exercise or conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

12.

CXidE st e ES:

RIEZ_—F= H+/\EI?%TTE’JK’2J
é%.am%i EEEERREHE

2 - —F+ZRB=+—HILFEFXRH
BEERIZER6.0EBI &N AR
30,889,0007T * BREAA B RERNERERKE
BEXZ LHUER AA{EE o

BATIEEREZFEAERLER
B, (réﬂa)

SREARA (BB HRESABREE
BEZFEABGERGN, (BB RE
A BT BRI TFIIE616,447,0008%
(ZEBEZF4F : 614,569,0008%) stE > T E
EHAREMU R ERFENEFRS

sRE#ERY (BB DRESADER
BREDZFAEABGEFN R, (B 5t
BostEREANSERMETIELE
RERTERRYE G5t ESRELTER
/ (E518) FREREMER) > UKIRR 280 #
BEETEBREARETEUARRBER
REEEZTHEBRMEFIIH
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Nk

31 December 2021 —ZE_-—f&F+_"HF=+—H

12. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLETO  12.
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
(continued)

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share

mr

amounts are based on:

BEstEERERREF] (B8 B
BREEBREDFA ARG
BF, (6518

Earnings/(Loss) attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the parent used in the
basic earnings/(loss) per share calculation

Shares iabi

Weighted average number of ordinary BIEstESRELRRA, (18 B
shares in issue during the year used in the ~ FRBEZETEERMNEFIHE
basic earnings/(loss) per share calculation

Effect of dilution — weighted average BERE - LERMETEE

number of ordinary shares:

B 17 £ B 5t 8

Share award plan*

The share award is subject to profit target which is contingently *
issuable and as the condition is not met by the end of the year,

it is not included in the calculation of diluted earnings/(loss) per

share calculation.
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BARSERESEFEAEGSR
BH (58) @

SREAREERT (BB NEAR

2021 2020

—_EF—%F “ETE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETF T
(Restated)
Ge==l)
88,223 (11,177)

Number of shares
i dvE =]

2021 2020
—E—%F “EIEF
‘000 ‘000
T T
616,447 614,569
616,447 614,569

IR 7 B2 B ZRIZE R SR FT 3 AR A B AR
BB SRR AR B IR R ET A SR
wemn/ (18 stEMEtE o



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

CXidE st e ES:

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

31 December 2021

At 31 December 2020 and
at 1 January 2021 (Restated):

Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net carrying amount

At 1 January 2021, net of
accumulated depreciation
Additions
Depreciation provided

during the year
Transfers
Disposals
Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2021, net of
accumulated depreciation
At 31 December 2021:

Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net carrying amount

R-E-FE
TZA=+-Hk
T —5-R-H
(=5
DS
RiE

REFE

RZE_—F—HA—-H>
NRRTE
HE
ERMERRE

B
e
ERHEE

o —a
+ZA=+-8’
MRREE

RIZZ-%
+ZA=1+-8:
DS
RiHE
REZFE

31 December 2021

13. M%E - -BERRE

2 —F+ZR=+—H

e e =+ — O

Plant and Office Motor Leasehold  Construction

buildings Machinery ~ equipment vehicles improvements i progress Total
HENE

BERIEF HE  HAERG RE Rfg  aRIR b
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT ARETR ARRBFR ARETT ARBTR ARET=®
435,404 711,440 122,133 10,367 22,373 390,366 1,692,083
145467 (412,089) (55,627) (8,113) (14,300) - (635,595)
289,937 299,352 66,506 2,254 8,073 390,366 1,056,488
289,937 299,352 66,506 2,254 8,073 390,366 1,056,488
5,192 7,560 3,737 1,794 2,650 166,326 187,259
(26,883) (45,788) (11,195) (579) (3,892) - (88,337)
275,320 154,484 3,186 - 2,582 435,572) -
- (1,943) (90) (398) - (2,200) (4,631)
(U] = &) = = = @
543,565 413,665 62,141 3,071 9,413 118,920 1,150,775
715,915 855,238 128,499 9,719 27,603 118920 1,855,894
(172,350 (441,573) (66,358) (6,648) (18,190) - (705,119
543,565 413,665 62,141 3,071 9413 118920 1,150,775
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Nk

31 December 2021 —ZE_-—f&F+_"HF=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

31 December 2020

Plant and
buildings Machinery

BERET e
RMB000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR

13. ME -BEKRRE®

“BTRFr_HA=+—H

Office Motor Leasehold  Construction
equipment vehicles  improvements in progress Total
HEmz
HAZERME HE 235 TR st

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
AE®TT  ARETR ARETT ARETR ARMTR

(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(&=31) (&=31) (&=51) (&=31)
At 31 December 2019 and RIB—hE
at 1 January 2020 (Restated): +ZA=+-Hk
“2°%5—F—H
(fz==51)
Cost A 405,042 719,891 118,042 11,480 18,005 437,178 1,709,638
Accumulated depreciation and REtHE
impairment (135,080 (441,988) (52,574) (8,914) (11,585) - (650,141)
Net carrying amount REFE 269,962 277,903 65,468 2,566 6,420 437,178 1,059,497
At 1 January 2020, net of RZZE_2F-H-H>
accumulated depreciation and MR ERAE
impairment 269,962 277,903 05,468 2,566 6,420 437,178 1,059,497
Additions RE 13,995 16,074 2,784 738 4,520 51,879 89,990
Depreciation provided FRITEER
during the year (20,624) (39,071) (10,715) (549) (2,858) - (73,817)
Transfers B 36,055 51,953 9,934 - - (97,942) -
Disposals HE = (9,435) (855) (43) = (749) (11,082)
Disposal of a subsidiary LE-XHEBAT (9452) (4,.247) (111) (458) (9) - (14,277)
Reversal of impairment A EED] = 6,173 = = = - 6,173
Exchange realignment ERBER 1 2 1 - - - 4
At 31 December 2020, net of RIBZEE
accumulated depreciation +ZR=t-8’
MRt E 289,937 299,352 66,506 2,254 8,073 390,366 1,056,488
At31 December 2020 (Restated): ~ RZZZE4F
+-A=1+-A
(imE51)
Cost 7% 435,404 711,440 122,133 10,367 22,373 390,366 1,692,083
Accumulated depreciation RetiE (145,467) (412,088) (55,627) (8,113) (14,300) - (635,595)
Net carrying amount FEFE 289,937 299,352 66,506 2,254 8,073 390,366 1,056,488

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's property, plant and
equipment with a net carrying amount of approximately
RMB322,481,000 (2020: RMB252,403,000) were pledged to
secure bank loans granted to the Group as set out in note 25 to
the financial statements.
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S UNBA RS IR R M sE25FR S N B - —F
+ZB=+—H AEEREFENAR
#322,481,0000 (CEZEF | AR
252,403,0007T) BWM%-BEMRBETE
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14.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

CXidE st e ES:

31 December 2021 —&E_—4F+_"F=+—H

REWE

2021 2020

—_E_—F —EC=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETFTT
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—HHREEEE 5,729 6,329
Depreciation provided during the year FRITERE (597) (600)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ZRB=+—HNKRETE 5,132 5,729

The Group's investment properties are commercial properties
in Shanghai and Jiaxing, the PRC. The directors of the Company
have determined that the investment properties consist of
one class of asset, i.e., commercial, based on the nature,
characteristics and risks of the property. The Group’s investment
properties were revalued on 31 December 2021 based on
valuations performed by Haiyan Zhonglian Asset Assessment
Limited Corporation and Jiaxing Dongxing Asset Assessment
Firm (LLP), independent professionally qualified valuers, at
RMB18,858,000. Each year, the Group’s property manager and
the chief financial officer decide, after approval from the audit
committee, to appoint which external valuer to be responsible
for the external valuations of the Group's investment properties.
Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation,
independence and whether professional standards are
maintained.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under
operating leases or held by the Group for capital appreciation,
further summary details of which are included in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

NREBWREYEDUNTEEEKREH
NEBYE KRB EEREREYEDN
HE YRR BEERBEYER—EE
EHR BImBEN RS2 —5F+"8
—t+—HB > AEEREBILIEZEXESERKME
BB HEETHERAT MEER
BEENHER (EEESH) FETHG
EIfF BAEENKREYESEHNHES
ANE#18,858,00070 c B4F » ANEERYE
RIBR R AEERNESEZEZE T E
BOETWRE—RIIELEMESHAK
EENKEYEETINEBEE FEITE
BEMENH BE BT HERTE
FEIKHEE©

REVERCEHERETFE=FHHEK
EERFEREE HE—FPFBERGH
FA TSR EE1 S AL
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

CXitiEsE e ES:

31 December 2021 —&E_-—&F+_"/F=+—H

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14. REYE @
Fair value hierarchy RABEZEREE
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement TRETAEERREYEN LA NEESE
hierarchy of the Group’s investment properties: ZRIRNE

Fair value measurement as at
31 December 2021 using
FHUTEENR-_E-_—%+-B=+—H

EITNAREESE
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs

RERETS EATHRE EXFUEER
BB BWAE WAE

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(F—B) EZR) (B=R) “ast

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTE ARETR AR®TRT ARETR

Recurring fair value measurement for: & E A REEE !
Commercial properties [ElaEEYES - = 18,858 18,858

Fair value measurement as at
31 December 2020 using
BENTEER-E-8F+-A=1+—H

ETHNRARNEESE
Quoted

prices in Significant Significant

active observable  unobservable

markets inputs inputs

WERETE BERAURRE BEAFIERZE

HERE WAE WAE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
) EZRE) E=B) HEE

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AR®TRT ARBTR AR®ETR

Recurring fair value measurement for: &S A RBEE :
Commercial properties a)zEk 7/ ES = = 19,551 19,551
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14.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value

measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers

into or out of Level 3 (2020: Nil).

Set out below is a summary of the valuation technique used
and the key inputs to the valuation of investment properties:

Valuation technique

HERE

Shanghai Commercial Discounted
Property | cash flow method

e A BERBITITE

Significant unobservable inputs

CXidE st e ES:

31 December 2021 —&E_—4F+_"F=+—H

14. REYE w

DABEFRIRE@®
FA ’.&ﬁ:fﬁﬁ.ﬁrg&%
BHEER TESAS
BH(CETZF 8-

||| g
iz NG

BRE_E
“B%E%E

TXEIEEYEEEMBNGES ER
TEHAERRE

Range or weighted average

EATATERBAE SEEIMNETI9R
2021 2020
—EC-F “EIEF
Estimated rental value RMB192 RMB192
(per sq. m. and per month)
fest B E AR¥1927t ARM1927T
(ETHKREA)
Rent growth (p.a.) 3%-5% 3%-5%
HEER (B8F)
Long term vacancy rate Nil Nil
REFZEER s i
Discount rate 3.25% 3.24%

IBLRS
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Nk

31 December 2021 —&E_-—&F+_"/F=+—H

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Valuation technique

HERZ

Shanghai Commercial Discounted

Property Il cash flow method
EEmEm AN BERSITIRE
Jiaxing Commercial Market comparison

Property method
=AY MiZ LB

2021 Annual Report — T - —F &

14. REYEw

DABEFRERE®

Significant unobservable inputs Range or weighted average
EARTUERBAE EEMETI9H
2021 2020
—E % —=5—s
Estimated rental value RMB217 RMB217
(per sq. m. and per month)
Lt EEEE AR®217T AR®2177T
(BFHKRKREAR)
Rent growth (p.a.) 3%-5% 3%-5%
HEEE (B85
Long term vacancy rate Nil Nil
REIZEX i@ m
Discount rate 3.25% 3.24%
IR
2021 2020
—EFE % “ETF
Adjusted market price RMB8,796 RMB8,719
(per sg. m.)
REHEHE (BFHTK) AR¥8,7967t AK¥8,7197T



14.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Under the discounted cash flow method, fair value is estimated
using assumptions regarding the benefits and liabilities of
ownership over the asset’s life including an exit or terminal
value. This method involves the projection of a series of cash
flows on a property interest. A market-derived discount rate
is applied to the projected cash flow in order to establish the
present value of the income stream associated with the asset.
The exit yield is normally separately determined and differs
from the discount rate.

The duration of the cash flows and the specific timing of
inflows and outflows are determined by events such as rent
reviews, lease renewal and related reletting, redevelopment
or refurbishment. The appropriate duration is driven by market
behaviour that is a characteristic of the class of property. The
periodic cash flow is estimated as gross income less vacancy,
non-recoverable expenses, collection losses, lease incentives,
maintenance costs, agent and commission costs and other
operating and management expenses. The series of periodic
net operating income, along with an estimate of the terminal
value anticipated at the end of the projection period, is then
discounted.

14.

CXidE st e ES:

31 December 2021 —&E_—4F+_"F=+—H

KEYE @

NAABEZFREE @
RIBEREREWNIR L AABENLKEE
ENESmiiRNEaREEENTEREE (8
ERHEEBERRIFER BNRERETMETe
LA R EE RN —ERIEERE
RTERl e G T EMITIR R E AR TER IR
EREMNEEIIEEER BN INERIR
B RHWamBEREEBATBERERIT
IHEo

I8 M 2 AV RFE I I8 Rom A TR AV 2L Rg
BF 75 F B WA = i 5T ~ AH AV AR 7R e A8 R
EHR - BRNBMMESHRE-BES E’JH
EBRERMISTA EMY=ENEN) &
BorHRERERBREINRES Z_
AW EIFES - IKBRIBR TR ERE - #EE
A-RENATERREMKEENERE
AtHE Z—ERTEHKE NG PR &
FEFEs N BRI R AR R IREBEMET S
R BETIR
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

CXitiEsE e ES:

31 December 2021 —&E_-—&F+_"/F=+—H

15. LEASES

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of plant and
buildings, motor vehicles and leasehold land. Lump sum
payments were made upfront to acquire the leased land from
the owners with lease periods of 50 years to 70 years, and no
ongoing payments will be made under the terms of these land
leases. Leases of plant and buildings generally have lease terms
between 2 and 12 years, while motor vehicles generally have
lease terms of 10 years. Generally, the Group is restricted from
assigning and subleasing the leased assets outside the Group.

(@)  Right-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets
and the movements during the year are as follows:

As at 1 January 2020 (Restated) HRZZZEF—F—H

15.

HE

TEBREAEEA
AREBMZERENMEF ABEAEBELT
HETUAES4 c BERAIEH — R R
MmZEFERAE L HEAS50FEE70
&£ MIREZE T MAENKI B
BEYNAEARE -BEREFHNHABERES
NF2E125F  TMAENHEIREEA105F
— M AEBARAAEAEBLUIINALT
EENAAEEEE-

@ RAEEE
AEEFREREEENRETR
REEWT

Leasehold Plant and Motor
land buildings vehicles Total
HELH BEREF RE Wt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR®TR AREBTRT ARET®

66,330 10,478 1,259 78,067
1,056 1,557 - 2,613
(1,548) - - (1,548)
(1,954) 2,011) (189) 4,154)
(1,013) - - (1,013)
62,871 10,024 1,070 73,965
18,086 1,461 - 19,547
(940) - - (940)
(1,934) 2,337) (189) (4,460)
- (750) - (750)

(&)

Additions NE

Decrease D

Depreciation charge (Restated) ~ #TEERIZ (X&)

Disposal of a subsidiary HE—KMBEAH

As at 31 December 2020 and ~ RZE-Z4HF

1 January 2021 (Restated) +-A=+—HBxk

e
(=7

Additions NE

Decrease D

Depreciation charge ERx<

Exchange realignment b 2 R

As at 31 December 2021 RZEZ—4F
+ZB=+—H
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

CXidE st e ES:

31 December 2021 —ZF—

15. LEASES (continued) 15. *ﬂ% (48)
The Group as a lessee (continued) FEBEAEREA @
(b)  Lease liabilities bh) HEEE

The carrying amount of lease liabilities (included under
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings) and the
movements during the year are as follows:

—#+=A=+—4

FABEAR GtAS BIRITREM
BEET) FNRETEREFHT ¢

2021 2020
—E-—f —E-®
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARET T
(Restated)
(RE5)
Carrying amount at 1 January K—A—HHREEEE 11,189 11,712
New leases mEE 1,461 1,557
Accretion of interest recognised FARNEHERDH S LR
during the year 489 482
Payments (N (2,893) (2,562)
Exchange realignment b S0 S (750) =
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ZRB=+—HKNKRETLE 9,496 11,189
Analysed into: DS
Current portion mENER D 2,079 1,985
Non-current portion JERENZB D 7,417 9,204

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in
note 36 to the financial statements. SI361% %

HEBRZ IR TR THRERN
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CXitiEsE e ES:

31 December 2021 —&E_-—&F+_"/F=+—H

15.

LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(c)  The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to
leases are as follows:

Interest on lease liabilities HEaEHE

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets 1 E EHTERM
BT HATE B AR R 2
GtATTERHX)

P8 PRI AE S 2R

Expense relating to short-term leases
(included in administrative expenses)

Total amount recognised in profit or loss

(d)  The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note
31(c) to the financial statements.

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 14) consisting
of two commercial properties in Shanghai under operating
lease arrangements. The terms of the leases generally require
the tenants to pay security deposits and provide for periodic
rent adjustments according to the then prevailing market
conditions. Rental income recognised by the Group during the
year was RMB449,000 (2020: RMB606,000).

At 31 December 2021, the undiscounted lease payments
receivable by the Group in future periods under non-
cancellable operating leases with its tenants are as follows:

—FRN

Within one year

2021 Annual Report — T - —F &

15.

HE @
TEBEAERBAA @
(c) WIEmPERMNEERBIIENT

2021 2020
—_E—%F “ECE

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARET T

(Restated)

Ce==al)

489 482

4,460 4,154

604 604

5,553 5,240

) FEERSREEERTSRERME
31(ci Rz °

FEBFEALEA
AEBRBERSHECHEEEREYE
(fizk14) (BELENMERBYE) o
IEERENKRR—RREREZ([TRES
KETRRE R RN TR ERHASEH
BE - ANEFFHNEINHAEHRABAR
#5449 0007t (ZE_Z 4 : AE¥606,000
JT) ©

R_E_—F+_HB=+—H ' Kx&EEIR

BERIAPSTUMA I HEEEREINRRK
HARIRYRIT IR E R UWGRIRIN T ¢

2021 2020

—_E_—F —EC=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTT AREFT
435 422
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CXidE st e ES:

31 December 2021 —&E_—4F+_"F=+—H

16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. HthEFEE
31 December 2021 o | =Gl
Patents Certified
and licences emission rights Total
gRR )
e R B B
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBFT AREFT
At 1 January 2021, net of R_E_—F—A—H>

accumulated amortisation kRt E (KE7)

(Restated) 2,000 4,158 6,158
Additions hNE = 409 409
Amortisation provided FREH R

during the year - (580) (580)
At 31 December 2021, RZEZ—4F

net of accumulated amortisation TF—E ==

PR R sH# 2,000 3,987 5,987
At 31 December 2021: RZEZ—F
+—-B=+—H

Cost %N 2,000 10,226 12,226

Accumulated amortisation KT = (6,239) (6,239)

Net carrying amount IR PR 2,000 3,987 5,987
31 December 2020 —EEFE+"HB=+—H

Patents Certified
and licences emission rights Total
BFIR )
T IE SR FEIUE HaEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT ARETIT
At 1 January 2020, net of RWZE-ZTFE—-HF—H>

accumulated amortisation MR R (RE75)

(Restated) 2,000 4,703 6,703
Amortisation provided FREH R

during the year - (545) (545)
At 31 December 2020, it

net of accumulated amortisation +=ZB=+—8>

MR R 2,000 4,158 6,158
At 31 December 2020 (Restated): MR-Z-_ZTFE+_H=+—H
(fRE7)
Cost (DS 2,000 9,852 11,852
Accumulated amortisation Rt - (5,694) (5,694)
Net carrying amount AREEEE 2,000 4,158 6,158
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31 December 2021

17. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities of the

Group during the year are as follows:

Deferred tax assets:

At 1 January 2020

Deferred tax credited/(charged) to
the consolidated statement of
profit or loss during the year
(note 10)

At 31 December 2020 and
1 January 2021

Deferred tax credited/(charged) to
the consolidated statement of
profit or loss during the year
(note 10)

At 31 December 2021

RZF-F5-A-H
ERFABHBER/
(BRFHRERNR B
BT
(Hrz£10)

TE+TR
——5-A—
ERFAAHERR/
(BEHBERIDN B
BERE
(Hizt10)

RZEZ-F+°A=1+-H

2021 Annual Report — T - —F &

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Nk

SEE ST A= —H

EIEIRTE

FERBEERBREERBERFANES)

mE

BIERIBRE :

Depreciation  Loss available  Fair value
in excess for offsetting loss on
Allowance Provision Elimination of  of related against future  derivative  Deductible
for doubtful for  unrealised ~depreciation taxable financial donation
Accrual debts  inventories profits allowance profits  instruments expenses Total
REBY  BLNEH  fEsR
##  ARNE BRERR IRNAA I
BRER RKREFE FREE AEREN BENEE EUNER  BEFR  BREX At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEEFT AREBTr ARETR AREBTr ARETR ARETr ARETR ARBTr ARETR
1,808 39 5119 1,665 5,587 - - - 14218
(491) 53 (1,487) (503) (1,277) 28,701 = 286 25,282
1317 9 3,632 1,162 4310 28,701 - 286 39,500
(428) 134 (1,533) (546) (658) (12,004) 319 - (14,716)
889 226 2,099 616 3,652 16,697 319 286 24,784




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

17. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities:

At 1 January 2020

Deferred tax charged/(credited) to
the consolidated statement of
profit or loss during the year
(note 10)

At 31 December 2020 and
1 January 2021

Deferred tax charged/(credited) to
the consolidated statement of
profit or loss during the year
(note 10)

At 31 December 2021

CXidE st e ES:

31 December 2021 —&E_—4F+_"F=+—H

17. RIEFRIE @)
IRERIBEEE

Withholding
tax on Fair value Depreciation
undistributed gains on allowance
profits of derivative Unrealised in excess
Mainland China financial exchange gain of related
subsidiaries instruments in Italy depreciation Total
FEIARE
MEAR &R BAF TERRE
KRR IANAAR RER BHAR
iohibingi EERT ERRE TENEE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000
NS ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT
RZF-FF—-A—H 16,255 50 56 12,329 28,690
FRERFRERINRG/
GtABHEZR) B
EIERTE
(Haz10) (2,526) (50) 658 9,321 7,403
RZZZFE
+ZB=+—8k
T —%-HF-H 13,729 = 714 21,650 36,093
FRERGHRDRIRE/
GIAGHEZER) 0
LR
(Hizt10) 3,793 - (71) 9,865 13,587
KRB %
+ZA=+—-H 17,522 = 643 31,515 49,680
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31 December 2021 —&E_-—&F+_"/F=+—H

17.

DEFERRED TAX (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities: (continued)

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The following is an analysis of the deferred
tax balances of the Group for financial reporting purposes:

Deferred tax of the Group as at 31 December 2021 and 2020

relates to the following:

Deferred tax assets arising from:

— Allowance for doubtful debts

— Provision for inventories

— Elimination of unrealised profits

— Accrual

— Loss available for offsetting against
future taxable profit

— Deductible donation expenses

— Fair value losses on derivative
financial instruments

— Depreciation in excess of related
depreciation allowance

2021 Annual Report — T - —F &

17. RIEFRIE @)
IRERIEEE . @

w2V ZR ETEEREEERER
EREHUHRRIERAEHE BIFUH2
WA AEBRELERIERSER DU
T

AREFR B —FR_E-EF+_5

=+ —HIEERIEE N RIEER

TR EEERNREERIBSE

—RERE A

—FEERA
—IREH R E R A
—TRIRER

— B LUREH H BRI A 89
B8

—BIHR B X
—TEEMIANARNER
18

—INEBLARTEREN
L]

31 December

31 December

2021 2020
B “E5°F

+-HB=+—H F—E ==

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARET T

226 92

2,099 3,632

616 1,162

889 1,317

16,697 28,701

286 286

319 =

3,652 4,310

24,784 39,500
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CXidE st e ES:

31 December 2021 —&E_—4F+_"F=+—H

17. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 17. IEFEFRIA @
Deferred tax liabilities: (continued) RIERIERR @
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
—EF -
+ZA=+—HA +ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBT T
Deferred tax liabilities arising from: T EEEENRIERIBEEE:
— Withholding tax on undistributed profits — 92 K BEFTE A B R 7k
of Mainland China subsidiaries A BY TR (17,522) (13,729)
— Depreciation allowance in excess of —iTEREBLARTEN
related depreciation EE8 (31,515) (21,650)
— Unrealised exchange gain in ltaly —BRANREBRERSHE (643) (714)
(49,680) (36,093)
Deferred tax, net iR EFR TE T 58 (24,896) 3,407
Reflected in the consolidated statement of F & B4 TSR 2R A S B
financial position:
— Deferred tax assets —IRIEFR IS E B 7,233 23,277
— Deferred tax liabilities —IRIEFRIEEE (32,129) (19,870)
The Group has tax losses arising in Mainland China of AEBRPEAEELENREGERSAR
RMB68,914,000 (2020: RMB112,664,000) that will expire in #68,914,0007T (ZZ -4 112,664,000
five years for offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred 70) > A T B P B HA DUFR 88 R 2R FE SR AR i
tax assets have been recognised in respect of these losses as F-BmzEHEERIRIEFSIREE b
it is considered probable that taxable profits will be available RN ARAIEFETAESHA L MEER
against which the above items can be utilised. HH RV FE SRR A o
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S B RRME

31 December 2021 —ZF—

17.

— ey =) =S

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities: (continued)

The Group has tax losses arising in Mainland China of
RMB7,689,000 (2020: RMB1,029,000) that will expire in
five years for offsetting against future taxable profits and
has tax losses arising in Ethiopia of RMB8,437,000 (2020:
RMB1,947,000) and in Hong Kong of RMB3,358,000 (2020:
Nil) that are available indefinitely for offsetting against future
taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose.
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these
losses as it is not considered probable that taxable profits will
be available against which the above items can be utilised.

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from
the foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland
China. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
applies to earnings generated after 31 December 2007. A 10%
withholding tax is also levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established in
Italy and Ethiopia.

As at 31 December 2021, other than the amount recognised
in the consolidated financial statements, deferred tax has not
been recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable
on the unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding
taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries established in Mainland China
and Italy. In the opinion of the directors, it is not probable that
these subsidiaries will distribute such unremitted earnings in
the foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries in
Mainland China and Italy for which deferred tax liabilities have
not been recognised totalled approximately RMB529,023,000
at 31 December 2021 (2020: RMB448,496,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

2021 Annual Report — T - —F &
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IEFEFRIA @

IRIERIBEME - @
NREBRFEAEEENREBEES A
R17,689,00070 (ZE_=F : AR
1,029,0007T > 1 52 F 79 B B LU 35 R 2Rk
FERBREF > MIRERLETEREENRIE
E51E A AN E188,437,00070 (CE-_ZF | A
E11,947,0007t) & A E13,358,0007T (=
EOEF ) OERBARIEHEESE
BEEABNRKERR &N o B ZE
EE?EEEEL,LLFE ﬁﬁ@ TSEEﬁ\ )ﬁwu/
RAFIEO B A L IE B IR S B FE SR AR i
H]o

RIF(EEMBRED > EREAREERE AL
iEﬁ%?ﬁ#ﬁﬁﬁﬁm%I;cﬁié%*m’]ﬁ{%
BEUWI0%NEINR ZREEZZE/N
E B—HEEZ TEEAR_E2t4£
+BA=+—HEEENERH - EEKAF
BR BRI BN IR E B AN
KEE TR SN AR 0% FEINH ©

N_E-—F+ZHA=1+—8 > BR&ati
IR ARSI AEE B E
£ R B K P R B A F A AL Y B 8 R Bl 2B 4
MTEINTRBY AR BB B B FIFTFE (T B9 TA N AR Al
IR IE - EE VA ZEWB AT
FBRBRAAAEDIRZERE LR o
RIE_—F+_HA=+—H>H#PHEH
K BE R B A F Y B A B AR & 7 R T A 4
UL FE SR AR IE AR B B E AV B RF 1 = BB AR
SHNAE ANEK529,023,000T (CE-=F
F . AR #448,496,0007T) °

AT [ EHREIRTAZE
MBERo

3 4 B T TS AR



18.

19.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

INVENTORIES 18.
Raw materials R #L
Work in progress FHRm
Finished goods Sl om

As at 31 December 2021, inventories with a carrying amount
of RMB40,000,000 (2020: RMB40,000,000) were pledged to
secure loans granted to the Group as set out in note 25 to the
financial statements.

TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES 19.
Trade receivables FEUR B 5 BR =X

Notes receivable ik

Impairment BB

Customers are normally granted credit terms ranging from
30 days to 150 days depending on the creditworthiness of
the individual customers. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding receivables and has a credit control
department to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are
reviewed regularly by senior management. Trade receivables
are non-interest-bearing.

CXidE st e ES:

31 December 2021 —&E_—4F+_"F=+—H

=78

31 December 31 December
2021 2020

—E—HF ==
+Z-HA=+—H +—B=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARET T
(Restated)
Gy
322,234 346,434
58,796 54,503
248,191 393,132
629,221 794,069

RIEZ—F+ZA=+—HB > KkExEX
A ANE140,000,0007t (ZE-ZF 1 AR
#40,000,0007T) WEEE FER  EAZ
EEERIRITERNIER M FERKMH
SE25Ff & ©

FEUL E 2 AR AR R UL R 45

31 December 31 December
2021 2020

B —F “ET5
+—RA=+—H +=ZB=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETT
(Restated)
GeE==l)
399,627 232,854
114,017 145,399
912) (2,410)
512,732 375,843

ER—RERTEEHIOREISOKR RYF
BREFNEEME AEBDRFEER
BEEFIRKEINEKRIE TREEEE
HBURFEERBRAERE SHREEE
E HA R B A B A AR o IR UK B 5 AR AR R 5T
Be
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31 December 2021 —ZE_-—f&F+_"HF=+—H

19. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (continued) 19. BB ZRMKREBRZEE @
The Group’s notes receivable were all aged within six months REBNBWBRERESRANEAAN I
and were neither past due nor impaired. The expected credit BARATEAB BRWERENTBRESS
losses for notes receivable are assessed to be minimal. BT R M FERM -
An ageing analysis of the Group's trade receivables as at the RIREHAR > FEENEIRE ZRNIZE
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net EHD BN R IR ERERE AT U

of loss allowance, is as follows:

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

—E—F “EIEF

+-—B=+—H F=E=4—=E

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥F T AREFIT

(Restated)

Ge==l)

Within 1 month —EAMUA 274,160 127,838
1 to 2 months —ZEMEA 60,851 40,951
2 to 3 months ME=1E- 35,114 25,872
Over 3 months B =18 28,590 35,783
398,715 230,444
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19. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (continued) 19.

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

At beginning of year i)
Impairment losses, net (note 7) EEEFEE (WaE7)
Amount written off as uncollectible R 2 A BT Uk [B] ;Y & 8

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses for
trade receivables. The provision rates are based on days past
due for groupings of various customer segments with similar
loss patterns (i.e., by forms of credit insurance). The calculation
reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time value
of money and reasonable and supportable information that
is available at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
Generally, trade receivables are written off if past due for more
than one year and are not subject to enforcement activity.

CXidE st e ES:

31 December 2021 —&E_—4F+_"F=+—H

FEUL B 2 AR AR B UL R 45 )
R EZIRBAEBEEFESUWT :

31 December 31 December

2021 2020
—E—% “ET%

+=ZHB=+—H +=ZB=+—H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TFT ARETIT

2,410 2,367

(1,423) 59

(75) (16)

912 2,410

RERSARARARBEERETRED
i st BRI E ZIRFMTEIEEHE-
BHEXDERAMEERUSERANS
BERDEETHAE BIUEERREE)
AR B 5t H - x5t B RIRE R0 #
ER EBREARNBRSARISHNER
BEFIR BANR A R ARREE R TR
NEERAIFEER - —fRME HEKRES
AR A —F 0 BT LUEE » BRR#H
TIERR
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Nk

31 December 2021 —&E_-—&F+_"/F=+—H

19. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (continued)

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure

on the Group's trade receivables using a provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2021

Expected credit loss rate

Gross carrying amount
(RMB’000)

Expected credit losses
(RMB’000)

FRHIEERmIAX

ABERE R
ANR®BTT)

TRHIEERI8
ANR&BTT)

As at 31 December 2020 (Restated)

Expected credit loss rate

Gross carrying amount
(RMB’000)

Expected credit losses
(RMB’000)

2021 Annual Report — T - —F &

TRHIEERIEX

ABERE S8R
ARETT)

TRHIEERIR
ANE®BTT)

Current

BPHA

0.00%

367,774

Current

BNEA

0.00%

195,050

19. BB ZRAKREWEE @

TRERBEBEEHIEREERBKRE
ZERMEERRARTEER

R-ZZB-_—%+"A=+—H

Past due
BHA

Less than 1to3
1 month months
DR —=
—@A =@ER
0.25% 2.21%
11,771 15,458
29 341

Over
3 months Total
fizsbic)
=1EA st
11.72% 0.23%

4,624 399,627

542 912

ATECETE+ " H=+—H &)

Past due
1 HA

Less than 1to3
1 month months
1yS —=
—1@A =1@88
0.26% 2.30%
4,552 15,149
12 348

Over
3 months Total
B
=@A 4Bt
11.32% 1.04%
18,103 232,854
2,050 2,410
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes receivable that are not derecognised in their
entirety

As at 31 December 2021, the Group endorsed certain notes
receivable accepted by banks in the PRC (the “Endorsed
Notes”) with a carrying amount of RMB33,674,000 (31
December 2020: RMB18,474,000) to certain of its suppliers
in order to settle the trade payables due to such suppliers (the
“Endorsement”). In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the Group has retained the substantial risks and rewards, which
include default risks relating to these Endorsed Notes, and
accordingly, it continued to recognise the full carrying amounts
of the Endorsed Notes and the associated trade payables
settled. Subsequent to the endorsement, the Group does not
retain any rights on the use of the Endorsed Notes, including
sale, transfer or pledge of the Endorsed Notes to any other third
parties. The aggregate carrying amount of the trade payables
settled by the Endorsed Notes to which the suppliers have
recourse was RMB33,674,000 as at 31 December 2021 (31
December 2020: RMB18,474,000).

19.

CXidE st e ES:

31 December 2021 —&E_—4F+_"F=+—H

FEUL B 5 AR AR R UL R 48 )
i i 2 BRI E ST R I R iR

R _E_—F+_HB=+—H'&xEEH
HETHERSZE THTRANETER
HEWERE (REERE)) ' RESEA
ANE#33,674,0000 (—E_Z2&F+_H
=+—H: AR#18,474,0007T) > LA EIE
NZEREENENEZERR (HE)) o
RABEEZRA AEBNFRBEARAR
KE GEEHZESCHEZHRNEYN
ARG AR EEE SRS E I A8
EASENES RN BIREMESEE
REZ% AEATEFRETAEHLEH
SERNEF BERFEAEME=SEH
EEEGERCSEZ R UEEEAR
BRENKCHEZSHREENENEZRM
R —F+ B =+—BMEREELE
B ANR33,674,000c (CE_Z2EFE+_H
=+—H : AE18,474,0007T) °
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CXitiEsE e ES:

31 December 2021

19.

S - A —H

TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes receivable that are derecognised in their entirety
As at 31 December 2021, the Group endorsed certain notes
receivable accepted by banks in the PRC (the “Derecognised
Notes”) to certain of its suppliers in order to settle the trade
payables due to such suppliers with a carrying amount
in aggregate of RMB23,373,000 (31 December 2020:
RMB69,290,000). The Derecognised Notes had a maturity
of one to six months at the end of the reporting period. In
accordance with the Law of Negotiable Instruments in the
PRC, the holders of the Derecognised Notes have a right
of recourse against the Group if the PRC banks default (the
“Continuing Involvement”). In the opinion of the directors of
the Company, the Group has transferred substantially all risks
and rewards relating to the Derecognised Notes. Accordingly, it
has derecognised the full carrying amounts of the Derecognised
Notes and the associated trade payables. The maximum
exposure to loss from the Group’s Continuing Involvement in
the Derecognised Notes and the undiscounted cash flows to
repurchase these Derecognised Notes is equal to their carrying
amounts. In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the fair values of the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the
Derecognised Notes are not significant.

The Group has not recognised any gain or loss on the date
of transfer of the Derecognised Notes in 2021 (2020: Nil).
No gains or losses were recognised from the Continuing
Involvement, both during the year or cumulatively. The
Endorsement has been made evenly throughout the year.
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FEUR & 5 IRFA R FEURE 1 @
2HRIEERNERER
A TE T —F+"A=+—H AEEH
HETHERSEE THTEANETER
BEWESE (TR IEMRBZHE]) > IREm4EEE
A ANRM23,373,000 0 (CE_SF+—
B=+—H : AE#69,290,0007T) > LL4E
BRENZEREENENE SRR &I
REBERRSHARES — 2B R E
HBETRZEE L RIERIZENFE
ABERAPENIRTENREDAEER D
BR(FESH) - ARBEEDRE A&
EEEB AR ILERERNEAIB DR
% K [O] %R o AL > AEE B4R LR AR IEFE
RERMERENEZERANESBRE S
HoAEBFES AR ERIZERED
ZERIIBRERNAERRESREN R
SEARMEENEHEEEE A AT
EERA AEEFESARIERIRE
HAREBELAEK-

RoB - R R L
REE N ARBIEEREASE CE-S
) o REMBmPNEN N BHERE
B2 ENEAESREE - SENRER
TIIYE o



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

20. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES

Value added tax recoverable AU EIE{ER
Prepayments SEENES

Deposits and other receivables B R H MR

The above balances are unsecured and non-interest-bearing
and repayable on demand.

The financial assets included in the above balances relate to
receivables for which there was no recent history of default and
past due amounts. As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the loss
allowance was assessed to be minimal.

The carrying amount of prepayments, deposits and other
receivables approximates to their fair value due to their short-
term maturity.

CXidE st e ES:

31 December 2021 —&E_—4F+_"F=+—H

20. TR IRERHEUWRRIR

31 December 31 December
2021 2020
—E—F “EIEF
+=-B=+—H +—B=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARET T
(Restated)

(B2 =E51))

16,861 19,772
61,456 33,696
13,902 34,903
92,219 88,371

SRR EER A B RN EREE

= O

FHA LA GRS R A B HA N SR X
S REHANERRIBEBER N —
FER-IE-EF4+"_/A=+—08 T HE5
BEEMFEEM

HIERAAN B BN R R H AR
WARIER AR S RRE A QN AEERE
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31 December 2021 —ZE_-—f&F+_"HF=+—H

21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 21. TEEMTA
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
B —fF TETEF
+-—H=+—H +=ZB=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARET T
Liabilities: BE&E
Foreign currency forward SR HR S 4 — BIHA
contracts — current (i) 1,275 -

(i)  The Group uses forward currency contracts to manage (i)

some of its foreign currency transaction exposures.

These currency forward contracts are not designated as

cash flows, fair value or net investment hedges and are

entered into for periods consistent with foreign currency

transaction exposures, generally from one to twelve

months.

2021 Annual Report — T - —F &

FEECREHEBENEERR
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CXidE st e ES:

22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED

DEPOSITS

31 December 2021 —

31 December

=

= —

—#+=A=+—4

22. RERFREZFEYMURBIBRER

31 December

2021 2020

—E—F —ETEF

+-—A=+—HB +ZA=+—H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETT

(Restated)

(B2 =E51))

Cash and bank balances BE KIRIT4EER 293,943 199,771
293,943 199,771
Less: Pledged deposits for letters of credit & : ERLE A EFNER (44,730) (30,167)
Pledged deposits for bank loans BRIRITTE TR ER - (2,722)

Cash and cash equivalents REKRREFEY 249,213 166,882
Denominated in RMB UARESHE 134,612 87,938
Denominated in HK$ MATEHE 8,575 3,149
Denominated in EUR LBTTEHE 8,160 10,986
Denominated in US$ MUETTEHE 131,290 94,900
Denominated in other currencies UEME T E 11,306 2,798
Cash and bank balances BE KIRTT4EER 293,943 199,771

ARBAAERZIRAEMER AT > 1R
BB K FERI (I EE B IRIRA)) e (45 EE~ B
ERNEEERE) tsERBEEZBER
RETIINEXEBNRITRARBRRASE
fthEHs o

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

RITERERESARTERANRFAEZ
HEARG B - RITEFEERIFERE
W AREENES B EERIFZRTT

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged deposits
are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default.
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31 December 2021 —ZE_-—f&F+_"HF=+—H

23. TRADE AND NOTES PAYABLES
An ageing analysis of the trade and notes payables as at 31
December 2021, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

Within 1 month —{EB LA
1 month to 3 months —ZEZ={EA8
Over 3 months wEiE =1 A

The above balances are unsecured and non-interest-bearing
with credit terms of 90 days. The carrying amount of trade
and notes payables at the end of each reporting period
approximates to their fair value due to their short-term maturity.

24. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

Contract liabilities () HRIEEI)
Payroll payables ANE s
Accruals TBiREH
Other payables HAFEIRIE

2021 Annual Report — T - —F &

23. EHEBEZRAKEMNEE
REE S —E S H=A—H B EH
HADENENE SR REN ZRIRER D

T

31 December 31 December
2021 2020

B —F “ET5
+=BA=+—H +-_HA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARETF T
26,092 51,656
207,178 138,895
60,650 8,312
293,920 198,863

g ERR RN EEHAR0
HeMEREMEK > ARG ATE Q&
NEZRIKENZENRESHEEAARN
REERE-

24. HtEARIAKRTRIRE R

31 December 31 December
2021 2020
—E=—%F “ETEF
+=A=+—H +=B=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETT ARETIT
(Restated)

GeE==l)

16,955 19,752
25,993 21,013

2,181 1,759
165,473 117,203
210,602 159,727




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

24. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS (continued)

(i) Details of contract liabilities are as follows:

CXidE st e ES:

31 December 2021 —&E_—4F+_"F=+—H

24. HthEARRIERTRIRER @

(i)

31 December

T=

Short-term advances WERE 5 AT EIE )

received from customers

Sale of goods EmiHE

2021
—E-—F
B=+—H

RMB’000
ARBFT

16,955

SHEENFREUT
31 December 1 January
2020 2020
“EEF TETEF
+—-—B=+—H —A—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTF T
19,752 14,935

Contract liabilities include short-term advances received
to deliver products. The decrease and increase in
contract liabilities in 2021 and 2020 was mainly due
to the decrease and increase in short-term advances
received from customers in relation to the sales of
products at the end of the year.

The above balances are unsecured and non-interest-
bearing. The carrying amount of other payables
and accruals at the end of each reporting period
approximates to their fair value due to their short-term
maturity.

BREEERERRE MU EBY
BN T —FR-TF
ENENEaERLDRIEMEER
PSR SR U EY BY B 2E 8 EE R RA R AR
HAZ R BRI RGN o

LHEFRASERRR AR - HNER
HHIR > AR AR EIHR s H At R
MRERFARERANRASERAH
AnBEMES-
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31 December 2021 —ZE_-—f&F+_"HF=+—H

25. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER

BORROWINGS

Current

Secured bank loans

Unsecured bank loans

Other loans — unsecured

Lease liabilities (note 15)

Non-current

Other loans - unsecured

Lease liabilities (note 75)

kG
BREMETER
BEMETER
HittEm—EHR

HE&RE (Hz15)

Hit&m—EEH

HEEE (Hz15)

2021 Annual Report — T - —F &

25. stRIRITREMBEE

31 December 2021

ZE--F+ZA=+-H

Effective
interest rate

(%) Maturity RMB’000
EES

(%) HE AREBTR

0.47-4.6 2022 443,521

1.67-5.00 2022 376,827

3.85 2022 5,951

4.35 2022 2,079

828,378

4.91 2024 50,000

4.35  2023-2031 7,417

57,417

885,795

31 December 2020

“ETE
— T —"

Effective
interest rate
(%)
BRI

(%)

2.50-4.78
1.57-5.00
3.73

4.45

491

4.45

F+ZR=1-H
Maturity ~ RMB’000
A ARBTT
2021 401,682
2021 488,832
2021 69,900
2021 1,985
962,399
2024 44,000
2022-2031 9,204
53,204

1,015,603
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CXidE st e ES:

Sl [Dzaamlbmr 4000 1 — = = o S e =]

25. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 25. stERITREMEE @

BORROWINGS (continued)

Analysed into:
Bank loans repayable:
Within one year

Other borrowings repayable:
Within one year
In the second year
In the third to fifth years, inclusive

Over five years

31 December 31 December
2021 2020
—E—F “EIEF
+-—B=+—H F=E=4—=E
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T AREFIT
T
EEZIRTER
—FR 820,348 890,514
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
—E—%F —EFF
+-RA=+—B +ZHA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETF T ARETFIT
EEEEMMER
—FR 8,030 71,885
S_E 1,493 1,680
E=FEFRE
(BIEEEEMSE) 51,726 46,675
FEEMUE 4,198 4,849
65,447 125,089
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31 December 2021 —ZF—

25.

& A=l —H

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes:

As at 31 December 2021, the current interest-bearing bank borrowings
with a carrying amount of RMB443,521,000 (2020: RMB401,682,000)
were secured by certain property, plant and equipment, leasehold
land, pledged deposits, and inventories with carrying amounts
of RMB322,481,000 (2020: RMB252,403,000), nil (2020:
RMB56,029,000), nil (2020: RMB2,722,000) and RMB40,000,000
(2020: RMB40,000,000), respectively.

The carrying amount of the current interest-bearing bank and other
loans of the Group approximates to their fair value due to their short-

term maturity.

The fair values of the non-current interest-bearing other loans have
been calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows using
rates currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk
and remaining maturities. The Group’s own non-performance risk for
interest-bearing other loans as at 31 December 2021 was assessed to
be insignificant. Management has assessed that the carrying amount of
the non-current interest-bearing other loans of the Group approximates
to their fair value because the fixed interest rate is close to currently
available rate.

2021 Annual Report — T - —F &

25.

stRRITREMETG @
Wizt :

RIEBEZ—F+-A=+—H REEEA
ANR®443,521,0007c (ZEE 22 F . AR
401,682,0007T) MENEAET ERITEEMUERAE
ORI A ANREE322,481,00070 (ZE T4 ¢
AR #252,403,0007T) ~ & (_%—%E A
R#56,029,00070) T (ZZ2ZZTF . AR
2,722,0007T) )S'Z)\E”%M0,000,000TE (Z2==
F : AR #40,000,0007T) I&ETF¥E BB KE
B TEE T BIRIRER R EEEIRIR -

HI AR B > B A S B BD HR 51 B SR 1T R HoAth
EMNRESHEEANMBERS -

JFEEISt EEMERHN AN BEZBERANES
BOURR 5 B AR R R E AN TRNIRITH]
R RBRARRREEREAE - RN —F
+_ﬁ:+—E FEBESHT B HEMER

BHRBEHRTERSLFEKN - HEEERT
TE K%@E’J%EUHH#%ET EMAERE T FR A
HARBERS  RAREEHNFZIE /A
F=o
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CXidE st e ES:

31 December 2021 —&E_—4F+_"F=+—H

26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. gz
Authorised: EE
31 December 2021 31 December 2020
—BE—-F§ “EISHF
+ZR=+—H +ZA=+—H
Number Number
of shares Amount of shares Amount
LE(E Et ] R EE EcC]
HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each F1R0.01BTEER 3,000,000,000 30,000 3,000,000,000 30,000
Issued and fully paid: BERITREE :
31 December 2021 31 December 2020
ZE--%+ZB=1+-H “EEE+"A=1—H
Number Number
of shares Amount of shares Amount
bE ! &8 RHEE &8
HK$000 RMB'000 HK$'000 RMB'000
equivalent equivalent
TEr ARETR® TEr ARETR
e £
At the beginning and the end RENREX
of the year 629,678,000 6,297 6,329 629,678,000 6,297 6,329

Kingdom Holdings Limited £ZZERAER AT
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CXitiEsE e ES:

31 December 2021 —&E_-—&F+_"/F=+—H

27. TREASURY SHARES 27. EERYR

31 December 2021

31 December 2020

“E--%+ZB=1+-H “EEE+TR=1—H
Number Number
of shares Amount of shares Amount
RHHE &% RO#E &%

HK$'000 RMB'000 HK$'000 RMB'000
equivalent equivalent
TErT ARETRm TErx ARETR
% %E
At the beginning of year RER] 13,230,750 14,632 13,305 18,390,000 21,006 18,493
Vested shares transferred BEZNHER7 - - - (5,159,250) (6,374) (5,188)
At the end of year REX 13,230,750 14,632 13,305 13,230,750 14,632 13,305

On 26 August 2016, the Company adopted a share award
plan, which is not subject to the provisions of Chapter 17
of the Listing Rules (the “Share Award Plan”). The board of
directors may, at their discretion, grants shares of the Company
to eligible participants. The Company has appointed a trustee
for administration of the Share Award Plan (the “Trustee”). The
principal activity of the Trustee is administrating and holding
the Company’s shares for the Share Award Plan for the benefit
of the Company’s award holders. The Company’s shares will
be purchased by the Trustee in the market with cash paid by
the Company and held in the trust for relevant award holders
until such shares are vested in accordance with the provisions
of the Share Award Plan. Upon vesting, the Trustee shall either
transfer the vested awarded shares at no cost to such award
holders or sell the vested awarded shares at the then prevailing
market price by way of market order and remit the net proceeds
to the award holders in accordance with the direction given by
such award holders. The Trustee purchased 19,400,000 shares
of the Company at a total consideration of approximately
RMB19,508,000 and 19,370,000 shares were granted to award
holders. During the year ended 31 December 2021, no shares
were vested and transferred to award holders.

2021 Annual Report — T - —F &

RZE—RENBZ+/NH KA IHRN
—IER (D 8ZRN 5T 8 (TR AP EZEN =T 8Y1) » &5t
AT EHRAE+tEZERXFARR =
E20NEREER2EABREAAFTRK
B oARNBEBEEEZTTA (A SER
PR E - ZEE AN EEFZH I AEA
EIEENIFE ANA SR DIRE 2B
REFBRABRMG - ARBEBRDEHEZ
STARTHELERARATZNHNIRSEA
TUEEA N AERREFEAMTE
BEEBRBRMIBERRMIZE S EME ST UL
FEAL RNREBR T AEBRRZSE
RERFA AEHNIER B EEBHIER
B REEHETZEREITE A IS
B ERERRTHNHEREEE B
BB (D W A PR S FUIE B BRI U TR A
A ZEEAMUAERLBLHOAR19,508,0007T
B& AZ/AF119,400,00088 8515 > 19,370,000
BRAERTFREFAEA - BE_ZE - —
F+-BA=+—HLEEE - BERNHER
BREETREFAE A
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SHARE AWARD PLAN

On 25 May 2018, the board of directors (including all
independent non-executive directors), based on the
recommendation of the remuneration committee, resolved
to grant a total of 19,370,000 awarded shares, which have
been acquired by the Trustee from the open market by using
the Company’s internal resources, to 92 employees who were
eligible persons (“Grantees”).

The 19,370,000 awarded shares to be granted to the Grantees
represented (i) nearly 3.08% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at the grant date; and (ii) the value of
approximately RMB19,508,000 based on the calculation of the
share purchase records.

1,010,000 of the 19,370,000 awarded shares were granted to
37 Grantees who were employees and have served the Group
for 30 years or more, or each of the employee couples who
have served the Group for 30 years or more. These awarded
shares of approximately 1 million will be vested on the first
anniversary upon the grant date.

30% of 18,360,000 of the 19,370,000 awarded shares shall
vest on the first anniversary from the grant date and the other
30% and 40% shares shall vest on the second and third
anniversaries from the grant date, respectively.

Moreover, whether these 18,360,000 awarded shares shall be
vested depends on two requirements: the Group’s net profit
target and personnel annual performance evaluation. For the
net profit target, the Group’s audited net profit is to reach
RMB100 million in 2019, RMB150 million in 2020, and
RMB200 million in 2021. If the Group misses the target in year
one, the 30% shares awarded can only be vested if the Group
meets the target in the next year. If the Group continuously
misses the target in year two, the shares of year one will
no longer be vested. As for the personnel evaluation, the
Grantees shall receive 100% awarded shares for that year if the
evaluation result is “Pass” and receive 75% or 50% awarded
shares for “Need Improvements” or “Fail”.

28.

CXidE st e ES:

31 December 2021 —&E_—4F+_"F=+—H

A& 10 B Bh 51 21
ATE-NERA_+HEH EEE (BF
E2RBUHTES) REFHNEES
HEER FRAANEBEERALZEE
(MEFR A ) 2 H & $£19,370,0002 22 Eh %
7 ZERBRMBESTEAERAETAT 2
WERE RN AR5 _EUREE o

M AR A H 2% 519,370,0000% 22 E) iR
BHEEROAATNRIEE B BEETR
ZR33.08%; K (i)EEA AR 19,508,0007T
(RIERD B E L& H) ©

19,370,000 22BN E% 15 A B91,010,0008% 1%
FI7HARAN (REARELEBRBAE
E30FHU L HEEERBAEEI0F
FU LM BRFEREZEE) -ZEN—]F
BREBROBRIZLEBRE—BFH
}%o

19,370,0008% 22 Ep i1 F 918,360,000/ 5%
RHHPRE—BERE30% > BIN0%MK
40% B A BINIRHBBREBERSE
—BEFBC

tE 9N > 5%25518,360,000 R NG 19 B E &7
BEOANRMERTE | AEBNMNEEZEK
ANEFEXETGH AT BEMmMS > &
EEKLBZMAANN SN EEZI AR
100,000,000 R _ZFZF AR
150,000,000TC &R — 8B = —FZ3 AR
200,000,0007T ° H AR E B 5HE — F R EZEE]
BiZ, BlEERERNE —FEED B2
75 F LU B30%BI S EIBR (5 o A E BN 5
TERFEREIBR E—FHRMGE
THEEB -mAETGHMS  MABEAZT
hEER % EE) 0 AR EFZFEE100%H
AZLENAR D > M 2 [ B DU e [ Rt %
E1875%350%BI BN 4 o
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31 December 2021 —ZF—

28.

29.

— ey =) =S

SHARE AWARD PLAN (continued)

On 25 May 2018, the Company communicated the awarding
of shares with its employees by the Notice of Share Award
Plan. By the Notice of Share Award Plan, the Company and
the employees shared a full understanding of the terms and
conditions of the arrangement. 25 May 2018 was the Grant
Date.

The fair value of awarded shares was HK$0.97 per share, which
was the market price of the shares on 25 May 2018.

The Company assumed that the employees’ resignation rate
would be 1.23% and the employees’ evaluation result would
be 95% of “Pass” and 5% of “Need improvements”. However,

the possibility of achieving the net profit target would be 0%.

During the year, no awarded shares were vested to the Grantees
and the rest of awarded shares will not be vested in the future
considering profit target evaluation. No share award expense
was amortised under the Share Award Plan in 2021.

RESERVES

The changes in the reserves of the Group during the year have
been disclosed in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity of the Group.

Merger reserve

Merger reserve represents the difference between the
shareholders’ total capital contributions to Hong Kong
Kingdom over the nominal value of the shares issued
by the Company in exchange therefor as at the date of
a reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) of the Group to
rationalise the group structure in preparation for the listing of
the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange and the difference
between the aggregate of the then net assets of the subsidiary
acquired and the consideration paid by the Group for the
Details of the
Reorganisation are set out in the prospectus of the Company
dated 30 November 2006.

business combination under common control.
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28.

29.

BRAA SRy &t B e

R ZE—N\NFERRAZ+HB AREFEB
DR 2B N R E B BB E R D 12
HEF o BBRMDERFEEN AR B KIE
ERDBHRTZEHNERREE —F—/\
FREA_+HBEEHAR-

RERIDHARBEARSTR0.97E T BN
PR _E—\EREB _+HEBHMHE-
AABRRIEEFHEAS1.23% MEST
{4 R A95% M8 1 2 5% MBENE | - 24
i > SRR AF B 1289 AT BE M 230% ©

FR - KE R BZT 5N SEER
& BB AR A M R E A5 7
HEBAERB - R_E_—%  HERH
HEEN R ST AR IR AR D I B ot B 81 o

it
FRAEERERDERSEEA R
BHRARE

B A
GHEBESSERATRMIBRA £
Mo AERETEME ((E4) UEHERR
BEH BRATENRRHEQBLEEAR
Bl IR M TR EEBZE B RPRIL
BNBASEREEFEBERAER
HEER TEFGHAGNERNESRE-
EHABENEARNBHA-TTRE
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

RESERVES (continued)

PRC statutory reserve

General reserve fund

The subsidiaries in Mainland China are required to transfer at
least 10% of their profit after taxation, as determined under the
PRC accounting regulations, to the general reserve fund until
the reserve balance reaches 50% of their respective registered
capital. The transfer to this reserve must be made before the
distribution of dividends to shareholders.

The general reserve fund can be used to make good losses
and convert into share capital by the issue of new shares to
shareholders in proportion to their existing equity holdings.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of overseas subsidiaries.

Share award reserve

Details of the Company’s Share Award Plan and the shares
awarded under the plan are included in note 28 to the financial
statements.

Share premium

The application of the share premium account is governed
by the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. Under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the funds in the share
premium account are distributable to the shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company
will be in a position to pay its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business.

CXidE st e ES:

31 December 2021 —&E_—4F+_"F=+—H

9. f#Ew

PEEE R

—REEZ

TR RFERYM B AR R IR B H P E 5t
REBENBRREENRDI10%E—RKRE
BT EERBEREIESAEMES
B950%73 LE » TR B UL B RN D IKRE TR
RAEETT

—fRFHT AR EERERUZRRE
BERRLEAREZBITHRMN S NEBIRS
peAs

ER A
ERRESERERINGBADMBERE
FREEMFIAERZRR

B 17 B2 B fet 5
AABBIRN R SR MR F AR B
BYBR D BIREIS > B R B ¥Rk 5E28

B8
ROGSERNEASIAESHE AT EE
B RERSBHSARE HEEEZD K
REBHZ ARREMNAEETBRE
TEEIRES ARMDEERTHNES
AT ARTB KRR
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31 December 2021 —&E_-—&F+_"/F=+—H

30.

BUSINESS COMBINATION UNDER COMMON
CONTROL

On 1 November 2021, Heilongjiang Kingdom, an indirect non-
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, entered into an equity
transfer agreement with Heilongjiang Kangyuan Biological
Technology Co., Ltd. (“Heilongjiang Kangyuan”), pursuant
to which Heilongjiang Kingdom agreed to acquire and
Heilongjiang Kangyuan agreed to dispose of an 80% equity
interest in Kangyuan Seed (the “Acquisition”) at a consideration
of RMB8,800,000.

The Acquisition was completed on 1 November 2021.

Since the Company and Kangyuan Seed are controlled by Mr.
Ren Weiming, the controlling shareholder of the Company,
before and after the business combination, and the control
is not transitory, the Acquisition is dealt with as business
combination under common control.

The operating results previously reported by the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2020 have been restated to include
the operating results of Kangyuan Seed as set out below:

Operating profit: REEN
Revenue WA

Loss before tax PRi% AR 1R

Loss for the year FAEE

Total comprehensive loss FREEBGEAEEE

for the year
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30.

HENEFI TFTHEH S H

AT —F+—F—RAEEBIEFE
2 ENB AT B IS ERREREIRRE
MR EERAR (TRBEEIRERY) 5] LR
RS Bt 2RI ERRNEmME
BRIRREEHERREEMNE0%KRME 1
B2 AR #8,800,0007T (MUEESEIE)) o

WEEBEERZ-ZEZ—F+—HF—H=
A o

HARARRRERBENRERSHAIERY
A A B iR AR SR AR #EBR S AL 2 B s
1 3 JF B B £ BY > U B SR IR H R )
THEBEHETEREE-

rEERREZRENBE_Z_TF+_A
= +—HLEFENEEXEBEEEY UH
ABRREENCERE  HIWMT :

Acquired
business
under
common
control

The Group

EM
RMB’000
AR®ETT
(as previously
reported)

(GCRIZ2)

1,057,426
(26,743)
(11,141)

(10,807)

HEEZEFT
W B S
RMB’000

ARET T

(1,537)
(1,537)

(1,537)

The Group

HEM
RMB’000
ARBF T

(as restated)

(E7)

1,057,426
(28,280)
(12,678)

(12,344)
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CXidE st e ES:

31 December 2021 —&E_—4F+_"F=+—H

30. BUSINESS COMBINATION UNDER COMMON 30. HEEHITHEHSH@®
CONTROL (continued)

The financial positions previously reported by the Group at
31 December 2020 and 1 January 2020 have been restated to

include the assets and liabilities of Kangyuan Seed as set out

AEELRMERNR _Z-TF+_-A4
=t+—HRZEZZF-A—-HHHBR
MEEY) UEARRBENEERERE
M :

below:

At 31 December 2020 R-E-_=EHF+_"_H=+—H

Acquired
business
under
common
The Group control The Group
HEEST
EE U B 22 75 TEH
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETT ARBETTT ARBTT
(as previously
reported) (as restated)
(FeRIZ23R) (#RE7)
Total non-current assets EREEERLE 1,178,764 9,830 1,188,594
Total current assets MBS EMAE 1,455,258 2,796 1,458,054
Total current liabilities MBI B EAEER 1,333,713 226 1,333,939
NET CURRENT ASSETS MBIEERE 121,545 2,570 124,115
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BELERRBEE
CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,300,309 12,400 1,312,709
Total non-current liabilities JEREN B (ELERE 73,074 = 73,074
Total equity: e ARER
Share capital & 6,329 = 6,329
Treasury shares EERGR (13,305) = (13,305)
Reserves (B 1,192,320 9,920 1,202,240
Non-controlling interests JRIERHI M 41,891 2,480 44,371
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31 December 2021 —ZE_-—f&F+_"HF=+—H

30. BUSINESS COMBINATION UNDER COMMON 30. HEEHITHEHESH®
CONTROI_ (continued)

The financial positions previously reported by the Group at
31 December 2020 and 1 January 2020 have been restated to

include the assets and liabilities of Kangyuan Seed as set out

AEELRAMERNNR _Z_ZF+_-A4
=t+—HERZEZZF-A—-BNHEHR
MEEY) UEARRBENEERER

below: (continued)

At 1 January 2020

FHIWT @

A —EZTF—H—H

Acquired
business
under
common
The Group control The Group
HEZES T
REE RS ETS KEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT AR AR T
(as previously
reported) (as restated)
(AT 2H) (#RE51))
Total non-current assets EREEERLE 1,200,978 9,307 1,210,285
Total current assets MENEELEE 1,524,807 6,659 1,531,466
Total current liabilities P =NEF R 1,345,869 2,029 1,347,898
NET CURRENT ASSETS ,;@Jﬁé,%fﬁ 178,938 4,630 183,568
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BEEAERRBAR
CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,379,916 13,937 1,393,853
Total non-current liabilities EmBE[E4E%E 99,021 = 99,021
Total equity: e ARER
Share capital & 6,329 = 6,329
Treasury shares EERR (18,493) - (18,493)
Reserves i 1,249,974 11,150 1,261,124
Non-controlling interests JRIERI M R 43,085 2,787 45,872
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

BUSINESS COMBINATION UNDER COMMON

CO NTRO L (continued)

The cash flow previously reported by the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2020 has been restated to include the
operating results of Kangyuan Seed as set out below:

Net cash used in
operating activities

Net cash used in
investing activities

Net cash generated from
financing activities

Net increase in cash and
cash equivalents

REEEBFT FRRY

R PR
REEHFTARY

RE PR
MEEHELEN

REFEH
RERIBEEFEYENFEE

CXidE st e ES:

311 December 2021, =S — FSASE = —H

30. HREEZEFITHEHSH @

rEERMEZHENBE_Z_TF+_A
=+—HLEFENREREEEY U
ABRREXRGEERE &N :

The Group

&M
RMB’000
ARETT
(as previously
reported)

(LRI 2)

(44,271)

(33,941)

99,845

21,633

Kingdom Holdings Limited £Z#ZRERAE

Acquired
business
under
common
control
HEZEHT
WIS 2 75
RMB’000
ARETT

(772)

(1,348)

(2,120)

The Group

TEME
RMB’000
ARETF T
(as restated)
Ces==pl))
(45,043)
(35,289)

99,845

19,513
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31 December 2021 —&E_-—&F+_"/F=+—H

31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF  31.

ABHREEREBRNE

CASH FLOWS
(@) Major non-cash transactions @ FEFREXRS
There were no major non-cash transactions during the REMYBRFELETIBZIFRER
current financial year. 5 °
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing by MEIZBEEZEREH
activities
2021 B —F
Bank and Lease
other loans liabilities
RITRHEMER HEAaR
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AR%TFT
At 31 December 2020 (Restated) R _ZE_ZFTF+_H=+—H
C=2pl) 1,004,414 11,189
Changes from financing cash flows BREIRE S EE) (128,115) (2,893)
New leases MHAE = 1,461
Interest expense MEMAZ - 489
Exchange realignment PE DR = (750)
At 31 December 2021 RN_Z-_—F+"A=+—H 876,299 9,496
2020 —EBoRF
Bank and Lease
other loans liabilities
FITREHMENR HE&R
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFIT AR T
At 31 December 2019 (Restated) R _ZE—HNEFE+_HB=+—H
(#E5) 890,639 11,712
Changes from financing cash flows BREIRE S 2 EE) 113,775 (2,562)
New leases S = 1,557
Interest expenses FEMZ - 482
At 31 December 2020 (Restated) A2 EF+"H=+—H
(E7) 1,004,414 11,189
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31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 31. &8I REXRMTF @
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(c) Total cash outflow for leases (c0 TAERESMNLEE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the STARERERNEERESRLR
statement of cash flows is as follows: REUIH
2021 2020
—E—F —EEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTF T
(Restated)
(RET))
Within operating activities KEEHA 604 604
Within financing activities RRERENA 2,893 2,562
3,497 3,166
32. COMMITMENTS 32. KiE
The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of REERR > FEBNEREENT :
the reporting period:
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
—EF “EEF
+-RA=+—B +ZHA=t+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARHEETFTT
Contracted for property, MAE BB s B BRI
plant and equipment 259,247 100,889

Kingdom Holdings Limited &iEZRAER AT 191



192

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

S B RRME
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— ey =) =S

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Transactions with companies controlled by one of
the Company’s directors

(@

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group leased offices and manufacturing facilities
located in Mainland China from Zhejiang Kingdom
Creative Co., Ltd.
incurred operating lease charges of RMB476,000
(2020: RMB476,000). Mr.
has a controlling equity interest in Kingdom
Creative. Rental and other terms for these lease

(“Kingdom Creative”) and

Ren Weiming

arrangements were negotiated between the parties
on an arm’s length basis with reference to the then
prevailing market rates.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group purchased electricity from Zhejiang Yuyuan
Solar Co., Ltd. with an amount of RMB2,172,000
(2020: RMB2,166,000). Mr. Ren Weiming has a
controlling equity interest in this company. The
price of electricity was made with a discount rate
of approximately 3.5% to the market prices.

During the year ended 31 December 2021,
the Group purchased chemicals, additives
and tools from Zhejiang Jinxiu Jiangnan Silk
Co., Ltd. with an amount of RMB3,345,000
(2020: RMB8,367,000). Mr. Ren Weiming has a
controlling equity interest in this company. The
purchase of raw materials was made according
to published prices and conditions offered by the

supplier to its major customers.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group sold finished goods to Zhejiang Jinxiu
Jiangnan Silk Co., Ltd. with an amount of nil
(2020: RMB75,000).
controlling equity interest in this company. The

Mr. Ren Weiming has a

sales of finished goods were made according to
published prices and conditions offered to the
Group's major customers.
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33. FAEAXRS
BHRAAT—REFIZEFNAE
EITHXRS

(@

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

RBEE_ZE-_—F+_8
=t+—HIEEE  AEERT
TeZRIERNDBREAR (&
Zalx)) BRZEMNFRH
AENBAERMERE FI
EXNKESHNEERAARK
476,00070 (22 F | AE
#%476,0007T) o {E#RRL L
ESEAENERER ZE
HEZH 2 s & EMERRTS
HESFL2EZERMELTFH
|%Cﬂo

RBEE_Z_—+_H
=+—HIEFE FEBUA
R#2,172,0007¢ (ZE -84 .
AR %2,166,0007T) EHLE
BHARERABFEE T4
STEHEAEZ AT ERER -

BEERZHEBITELN3.5%°
RBEE_ZET_—+_A8

=t+—HIEEE  AEBBEN
ISR IR AR R A B IR
2FEA ANR¥E3,345,00070 (=
T =& AR#8,367,0007T)
MACE R AIME KT A - {F
HEBBSCE A 2 A B R AR
o B EHREE T IR iR L FE
AEFEFFRENEAME
MR AEHEE o

REE_ZE_-_—F+_8
=t+—HIEFE AEBEBET
ISR I mABAERATHE
AT (CEZTFE AR
#%75,0007T) BY AR MR o {E4E BB 4t
EHEBZ LB IERE R o 88
ERmNRERANAERETER
FIRENBE AMER R ARHE
ﬁo



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(@)

(b)

Transactions with companies controlled by one of

the Company’s directors (continued)

(v)  During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group leased cars from and leased an office to
Interconnect Financial Leasing (Shanghai) Co.,
Ltd., which incurred lease charges of RMB356,000
(2020: RMB388,000) and generated lease income
of RMB343,000 (2020: RMB343,000). Mr. Ren
Weiming has a controlling equity interest in
Interconnect Financial Leasing (Shanghai) Co.,
Ltd.’s parent company, Kingdom Creative. Rental
and other terms for these lease arrangements were
negotiated between the parties on an arm'’s length
basis with reference to the then prevailing market
rates.

(vi) During the year ended 31 December 2021,
the Group acquired an 80% equity interest in
Heilongjiang Kangyuan Flax and Hemp Seed Co.,
Ltd at a consideration of RMB8,800,000 from
Heilongjiang Kangyuan Biological Technology Co.,
Ltd., a company controlled by Mr. Ren Weiming.
Further details of this acquisition are included in
note 30 to the financial statements.

Compensation of key management personnel of
the Group

Short term employee benefits R R EEA!
Post-employment benefits BER A

Further details of directors’ and the chief executive’s
emoluments are included in note 8 to the financial
statements.

The related party transactions in respect of items (a)(iii)
above are also disclosed as connected transactions in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

CXidE st e ES:

31 December 2021 —&E_—4F+_"F=+—H

33. FAEAXRG @
(@ HBAFXAFT—REFEHNAF
EITHORS @
wiy REE_ZE-_—&+_8
=t+—HIEFEE - AEEBE
EREEE (LB BRAF
FERE WHZ AR L
NE EXFHEERARK
356,000 (CE-ZFE : AR
#%388,0007t) M EWAANE
343 00070 (ZE_ZF : A
E#343,0007T) o E#RBLEE
BEHEERERE (8 AR
NG ESYNI el E S 02T
EmozEHEZHZHER
HEMERTDHES2EERT
BATHE-

vy REE_ZE-_—&F+_8
=t+—HIEEFE  AEBUMK
B AR ¥8,800,0007T M 25T
BREMEEERAR (—H
HEARRSTEZEGN AR W
BERIBREXRRATN
80%RE - BRAZWEEEN
E—TH BRI BHRRME
30°

b) FEEFEEEASHNHEE

2021 2020
—E—F “ETEF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBT T

4,976 4,783
105 106
5,081 4,889

EFEMRERRTHRAEMENE -
SRR TR MIEES

EXMIEESE (a)(ii) B RBIRAE T 2
SZIMRE EHARRB14ASIRE SR
B2 5 e

Kingdom Holdings Limited £ZZERAER AT

193



194

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2021

Financial assets

Trade receivables FEUE ZBRTN
Notes receivables FEWE5%
Financial assets included in deposits 5t A5 K EL M EURIEHT

and other receivables THREE
Pledged deposits BIERER
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY
Financial liabilities
Interest-bearing bank and HERITRAMES

other borrowings
Financial liabilities included in other st AEMENM IR TEIRE R

payables and accruals NEmas
Derivative financial instruments TETRMIA
Dividend payable BARE

BB ZRAREN R

Trade and notes payables

2021 Annual Report — T - —F &
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CXitiEsE e ES:

31 December 2021 —&E_-—&F+_"/F=+—H

AN ENEMTA
RERERAR ZMEAem T AWRm S
e
—E-—%
EREE
Financial assets
at fair value Financial
through other assets
comprehensive at amortised
income cost Total
BRAMEE
StAHMZE 1288 Y 2
i) HBRAY
TREE THEE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT ARKETT
- 398,715 398,715
114,017 - 114,017
- 13,902 13,902
- 44,730 44,730
- 249,213 249,213
114,017 706,560 820,577
EHMEE
Financial
liabilities Financial
at fair value liabilities
through profit at amortised
or loss cost Total
BRAMEE 1R Y 2
stAEEH HBRAY
TRIBE ERIEE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT AREFT ARBFT
- 885,795 885,795
- 167,654 167,654
1,275 - 1,275
- 182 182
- 293,920 293,920
1,275 1,347,551 1,348,826
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CXidE st e ES:

31 December 2021 —ZF—

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

—#+=A=+—4

34. BERSENEMTIA @

RBREMR KB EMITANKREEE

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: L)
(continued)
2020 —ETEHF
Financial assets TREE
Financial
assets
at fair value Financial
through other assets
comprehensive at amortised
income cost Total
BAREE
STAEMEE PR Al A
Wz 8y Tl BREY
THEE THEE #Et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT ARETFIT AREFIT
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(& &E5)) (CE==7l)) Ges==Tl)
Trade receivables FEUR B S BR =R - 230,444 230,444
Notes receivables e =% 145,399 - 145,399
Financial assets included in AT & EMMEWEIER
deposits and other receivables TRE = 34,903 34,903
Pledged deposits BIEIRER - 32,889 32,889
Cash and cash equivalents BEMIREEEY = 166,882 166,882
145,399 465,118 610,517
Financial liabilities THAaR
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
AR B AR AN
5| BRHY
THEE
RMB’000
ARETF T
(Restated)
GeE==l)
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings StEIRTREMEE 1,015,603
Financial liabilities included in other payables and s AEMENRIBRTERERHN
accruals EHEE 118,962
Dividend payable BERE 188
Trade and notes payables P11 B 5 BR AU FE (1 R ik 198,863
1,333,616
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31 December 2021 —ZE_-—f&F+_"HF=+—H

35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that
reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows:

@ﬂlﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ&@ﬁ%@%
L ER

A EESR T ENEESERA A (&

RESBEEAABESREEER) 0

T <

Carrying amounts Fair values
FREEEE AREE
2021 2020 2021 2020
“E-—§ -—E-=F -—B-—F _"—B-%
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEBTRT ARETT AERBTR AREBT=®
Financial assets ERMEE
Debt instruments at fair value through ZAAEEAEMS
other comprehensive income EWEMNEFHLE 114,017 145,399 114,017 145,399
Financial liabilities TREE
Derivative financial instruments TEEMTA 1,275 - 1,275 -
Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash REBENTL RERREEEBY - BK

equivalents, trade receivables, financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables, pledged deposits,
current interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, trade and
notes payables, dividend payable, financial liabilities included
in other payables and accruals approximate to their carrying
amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these
instruments. The fair values of the non-current interest-bearing
other loans have been calculated by discounting the expected
future cash flows using rates currently available for instruments
with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities which
is approximate to their carrying amounts. The changes in fair
value as a result of the Group’s own non-performance risk for
interest-bearing other loans as at 31 December 2021 were
assessed to be insignificant.
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35.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The Group’s finance department headed by the finance
manager is responsible for determining the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. The finance manager reports directly to the chief
financial officer and the audit committee. At each reporting
date, the finance department analyses the movements in the
values of financial instruments and determines the major
inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and
approved by the chief financial officer. The valuation process
and results are discussed with the audit committee twice a year
for interim and annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in
a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a
forced or liquidation sale.

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments with
various counterparties, principally financial institutions with
AAA credit ratings. Derivative financial instruments, including
forward currency contracts, are measured using valuation
techniques similar to forward pricing and swap models, using
present value calculations. The models incorporate various
market observable inputs including the credit quality of
counterparties, foreign exchange spot and forward rates and
interest rate curves. The carrying amounts of forward currency
contracts are the same as their fair values.

The fair values of debt instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income have been calculated by
discounting the expected future cash flows using rates currently
available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and
remaining maturities. The fair values have been assessed to be
approximate to their carrying amounts.

35.

CXidE st e ES:
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ERMITENAIABERAREBES
RZEAE
UAREBTEKEBEAENTENEETE
Tt TEAABEFENBRLAIERF -
MR RIEEEN Y REEREZEEgE
WM BMEH  FHB O ERETE
NEEEHTETCHEMEXBENEZH A
BoMBERMFEEERE M E BIZEES
SEEFmAERREREREM R LUET
FHARFEMFEER

THEEREBRNAABERENRS (&
HEBEELERIN hEHEERIRTARN
EFAR

FEBRZSEHFH (ETERBAAAGEFT
ROEREE) STUTESMTI R -TES
MTR (BREHERSX) HHRALEER
EEREHEAELNGETS EFE (RA
REHE) ZFHREMAT ZEAFRT
SHRRBAE SEEFHINEERE
SN BN HA R = HABE R EA R K h iR - B AR
BEeNRETREE AN EEMER-

BARBEFAREMZAWRmNES A
NARENEBREREFELMUGR EE
R RFEGEHBEN T REBARA BRFR
AMIRTAHARRIRE MBS E - R R ELF
HEHRESERSE
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31 December 2021 —ZE_-—f&F+_"HF=+—H

35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value hierarchy
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

35.

ERMITENAABERAREBES
RZEAE

ARBESHEEE
TREBRAEEEHMIANAABE =

LRIRIE
BRAREBESENEE:

Fair value measurement using
RAUTHBETNAABENE
Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable  unobservable

31 December markets inputs inputs
2021 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
ZEIF  REEME  EAUERE SATIER
+—A HRE BAE BAE
=+—H F—E £E £=F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARBTT ARETT AREBTR

Notes receivables FEWEE 114,017 - 114,017 -
Fair value measurement using

FRANTHBETNAREBENZ
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
31 December markets inputs inputs
2020 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
“EF°F KBTI BEAUBRR ZEAFIEHER
+—A HRE BAE BAE
=+—H BB F_E F=E
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBTR ARBTRE ARETR

Notes receivables W ZE

2021 Annual Report — T - —F &
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Liabilities measured at fair value:

CXidE st e ES:

311 December 2021, =S — FSASE = —H

35. TMITANARBERAREBESE

RZEAE
DRABESHREE @
BAREBEIENGRE:

Fair value measurement using
RAUNTREETHNAABENE
Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable  unobservable

31 December markets inputs inputs
2021 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
ZEIF  REEME EATRE EAFUEER
+=A HRE EYNEL BAE
=+—H £—IE E_[E BB
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Financial liabilities at fair value through A REESTA
profit or loss — foreign exchange BomlEmMans
forward contracts —SMERIASA

During the year ended 31 December 2021, there were no
transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements,
and no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair value
measurements (2020: Nil).

AR#ETT ARBTn AR®ETT ARETR

1,275 - 1,275 -

REE_E_—F+-_B=+—HILHF
B AABEEEF—REBRE_EBZHE
e, NMEBA S =B EFE=BELY
—EFTE ) o
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31 December 2021

36.

S - A —H

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial liabilities, other than
derivatives, comprise interest-bearing bank loans, trade and
notes payables, dividend payable and other payables. The main
purpose of these financial liabilities is to raise finance for the
Group's operations. The Group has various financial assets such
as trade and notes receivables, prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, pledged deposits and cash and cash equivalents
that arise directly from its operations.

The Group also enters into derivative transactions, including
principally forward currency contracts. The purpose is to
manage the currency risks arising from the Group’s operations
and its sources of finance.

The main risks arising from the Group'’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies
for managing each of these risks which are summarised below.
The Group's accounting policies in relation to derivatives are
set out in note 2.4 to the financial statements.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s interest-bearing bank
loans with floating interest rates. The Group does not use
derivative financial instruments to hedge its interest rate risk.
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36.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s profit before tax for the year (through
the impact on the floating rate borrowings). The change in the
interest rates has no impact on the Group's equity excluding
retained profits.

2021 B
RMB AR
RMB AR
2020 —E-EH
RMB AR #&
RMB AR

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group has foreign
currency sales and purchases and certain trade receivables,
payables and bank balances that are denominated in USS$,
EUR and HK$, which are currencies other than the functional
currencies of the Group’s subsidiaries, and expose the Group to
foreign currency risk.

36.

CXidE st e ES:
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MEAMEEEERBE @

FMERE @
TRETNEFMAEHMEBH AR KEEH

FABRKRANRFN G ESIER S E B H
RE (BB FHMNEEENTE) o FIxF
HENHAEENER (RBEFIFRIN I
&
(Decrease)/ Increase/
increase in (decrease) in
interest rate  profit before tax
I ES FRIG AT
(F¥&)  L# @, Gad)
RMB’000
ARETFTT
(1%) 8,201
1% (8,201)
(1%) 9,013
1% (9,013)

b1 B

SN REEARINEERESHMER R T
BENRABEIRKEEZRENDHE
o AEENIIKEE - ETRKEZIK
O A IR R SR1TAE BRI IF DA A S B Y
BABINIHAEG HEFIME » M MUSETT BT R
ATTHE ) EAE B INE R
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36.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

The Group manages its foreign currency risk by entering into
foreign currency forward contracts to hedge its exposure
to fluctuations on the translation into RMB of its foreign
operations of sales in US$ and EUR, as described in note 21
to the financial statements. It is the Group’s policy to ensure
that the net exposure is kept to an acceptable level by buying
or selling foreign currencies at a fixed rate where necessary
to address short term imbalances. Management will continue
to monitor foreign exchange exposure and will continue to
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure by
using financial instruments such as foreign currency forward
contracts.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in the US$, EUR and HK$ exchange rates, with
all other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before
tax (due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and
liabilities including foreign currency derivatives).

Year ended 31 December 2021 B#E—_T—_—F
+A=+—HLEFE
If RMB weakens against US$ MARERETHESS
If RMB strengthens against US$ MARBERETTER

2021 Annual Report — T - —F &

36.

HEEAMEEEEREE @

S & LB )

M FERRMEE2 1Pk » KEBFEBE] 1L
INEREAG A R ERBINETUET K
Bl ThENHEREA AR BRIRENE
S M B IREINE R R AEBBBES
REZERFZBRECEXE ANE LI
MR R KT HA A1 DUFE R R BR BB R 1Y
Al 2K o B 18 [ i) A 4 B5 120 SINBE JL Bes -
WHEEE BB BERER T E sNE=E
G HHREAINE R o

TRETEMEEMEHTER A& H
BRIRAD B M B E T T B TEER G IE
AREZFNERE ANEKEERAER
(BIEINETTETR NARBEES) -

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease)
foreign currency in profit
rate before tax

SMESEERR FRIZ AT
A (FE) @, Gad)
% RMB’000

AR®TTT

5 20,989

(5) (20,989)
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36.

AND POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency risk (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2020

If RMB weakens against US$
If RMB strengthens against US$

Year ended 31 December 2021

If RMB weakens against EUR
If RMB strengthens against EUR

gE_=-%
+-A=t—ALEE
AR R 2 77853
MARKRETH%R

BHE-_ZS-—%
+=ZB=+—HLEE
MARERBTESS
MARERE TR

S & PR )

CXidE st e ES:

311 December 2021, =S — FSASE = —H

MEAMEEEERBE @

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease)
foreign currency in profit
rate before tax
SN B = BRAR A& A
AR (FED) @, CRiL)
% RMB’000
ARETIT
5 14,177
(5) (14,177)
Increase/ (Decrease)/
(decrease) in increase
foreign currency in profit
rate before tax
ShEEER PRI AT EF
EF (FE) GrezL) /g0
% RMB’000
AR%T
5 (3,445)
(5) 3,445
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency risk (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2020

If RMB weakens against EUR
If RMB strengthens against EUR

Year ended 31 December 2021

If RMB weakens against HK$
If RMB strengthens against HK$

204 2021 Annual Report — T - —F &
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ShEE BB @

Increase/ (Decrease)/

(decrease) in increase

foreign currency in profit

rate before tax

SN B = BRAR A& A

AR (FED) CRiZL) /1810

%o RMB’000

ARET T

HE-S-F
+ZB=+—HILFE

MARERETESS 5 (5,269)
MARE ZETER (5) 5,269
Increase/ (Decrease)/

(decrease) in increase

foreign currency in profit

rate before tax

ShEEER BRR AT

EF (FE) GrezL) /g0

% RMB’000

AR%T

BE_T—_—F
+ZRA=+—HLEFE

MARE R B THESS 5 (2,636)
MARE R BTER (5) 2,636
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)
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36. MEEIGEEBEEREE®

Foreign currency risk (continued) SMES ELRE
Increase/ (Decrease)/
(decrease) in increase
foreign currency in profit
rate before tax
SN B =K BRAR A& A
EF/ (P CRiZL) /181
% RMB’000
AREETIT

Year ended 31 December 2020 HE_ZZF
TZA=1+—HLFE

If RMB weakens against HK$ MARE R BITESS 5 (3,933)
If RMB strengthens against HK$ MARBERBTER (5) 3,933

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its
obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract,
leading to a financial loss. The Group’s credit risk is primarily
attributable to trade and notes receivables and deposits and
other receivables. Management has a credit policy in place and
the exposures to credit risk are monitored on an ongoing basis.
Credit evaluations are performed on all customers requiring
credit over a certain amount.

Customer credit risk is managed by the Group's established
policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk
management. Credit quality of customers is assessed through
credit verification procedures.

EERE
EERRSERSF AR RERITERE
MIANERGNETHNEEMERMF
BREAR sEENEERREERE
FEWE 7 ARt R FE M R 3R A R 0 & e HLAth
YR BEEERIFIEERR W&
EEFERB -~EENEXREFEERRSE
TEENRERFETESN G

EREERBRAEEEREFREERR
EENMERR B REZEETER-
ERNEEERERERZERFETH
flgo
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy,

which is mainly based on past due information unless other

information is available without undue cost or effort, and year-

end staging classification as at 31 December. The amounts
presented are gross carrying amounts for financial assets.

As at 31 December 2021

Trade receivables* FEUR & 53 BR =

Notes receivables — Normal**  FEURZEHE —E &**

Financial assets included in
deposits and other receivables H&FE E

— Normal** —ER*
Pledged deposits BIRRER

— Not yet past due — H KB HA
Cash and cash equivalents ReRFEEEBY

— Not yet past due —HARBE

2021 Annual Report — T - —F &

ST E R E MR IR

36. MEEIGEEBEREE®

EERK @

REJE R R FAE PR
TRERENAEBGEEBRRNEEER
ks EERE  ZEEBKEERIEA
HEN CRIFEMEREE[TH AR E R
5 DB RS RN+ B =+—HKNE
EEER D oY EEATHME ERMAE
L

R-E_—F+"HA=+—H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
+=f@A[
TS
B 2MFEHRIEEHR
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach
IR F2MEER F3MEER 1675
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTRT ARBTR AREFTRT ARETR
- - - 399,627 399,627
114,017 - - - 114,017
13,902 - - - 13,902
44,730 - - - 44,730
249,213 - - - 249,213
421,862 - - 399,627 821,489
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. HHERAKEEEERBR @
AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued) EEERME @
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued) REERRFEER @
As at 31 December 2020 (Restated) RIEZZ2F+"_HF=+—H &&E%)
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
+ZEAR
EHEE
JE518 S HITEHAE EBE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach
1B SE2MEE FE3MEE BER =%
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREBTT AREBTT AR®BTT ARETT
Trade receivables* FEUR & 53 BR = - - - 232,854 232,854
Notes receivables — Normal**  FEURZEHE —E #** 145,399 = = = 145,399
Financial assets included in STARES R EMENRIE
deposits and other receivables H&FE E
— Normal** —IEF* 34,903 = = = 34,903
Pledged deposits BIRRER
— Not yet past due — ERIEHA 32,889 - = - 32,889
Cash and cash equivalents ReRFEEEBY
— Not yet past due —HARBE 166,882 - - - 166,882
380,073 - - 232,854 612,927

k%

For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified
approach for impairment, information based on the provision
matrix is disclosed in note 19 to the financial statements.

The credit quality of these financial assets is considered to
be “normal” when they are not past due and there is no
information indicating that the financial assets had a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise,
the credit quality of the financial assets is considered to be
“doubtful”.

* K

T BB 175 0% 7 LB B I EY
B GRAME » B HEEENE % &
R EERZME19

ZELTHEENEREEZ IR KRB
Wiz (=) > A B E RS
7 B % dh B E AV 15 B R fe B & 18 ] o
TR B ENEEE Z SRR TR
AR
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. MBRAMEEBERBER @
AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties,

Concentrations of credit risk are managed by customer/

EERK @
HRAEEEFZHEERTEEERTFNE=
R NI B EWRBIRF R EEE
RERBLIRER  HFEHRMEEIE |
NAEEEREZRFNEREREZD

there is no requirement for collateral. F¥ET

counterparty and by geographical region. There are no

significant concentrations of credit risk within the Group as
the customer bases of the Group's trade receivables are widely
dispersed in different sectors.

Liquidity risk
The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the
end of the reporting period, based on contractual undiscounted

payments, was as follows:

Less than 3to12 1t05 More than
On demand 3 months months years 5 years Total
®BEBR ORZ=ER Z=E+ZfER —E5f SREE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFn ARBTR ARBTR ARETT ARETR
Interest-bearing bank and StRBTRAMES

other borrowings (FEEEEa®)

(excluding lease liabilities) - 241,690 595,945 50,000 - 887,635
Lease liabilities HEEE = 665 1,961 5,906 4,229 12,761
Dividend payable RS 182 - - - - 182
Trade and notes payables BRI ENES 28,608 204,662 60,650 = = 293,920
Other payables and accruals HEthENRERBERER 167,654 = = = = 167,654

196,444 447,017 658,556 55,906 4,229 1,362,152

As at 31 December 2020 (Restated)
RIZZZFE+ZB=1—H @7
Less than 3t012 Tto5 More than

On demand 3 months months years 5 years Total
2R OR=ER =E1+°fER —Ehf SREE a5t

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AREBTT ARBTT ARETn ARETn ARETR AR®T:

Interest-bearing bank and i) fE W g

other borrowings (FEEEEE®)

(excluding lease liabilities) - 292,507 689,597 54,000 - 1,036,104
Lease liabilities HE&E - 631 1,806 5,546 5,494 13,477
Dividend payable EIRE 188 = = = - 188
Trade and notes payables BN BRI RENTE 56,991 141,872 = = - 198,863
Other payables and accruals Eﬂﬁﬁgﬁ NERK AR E A 118,962 - - - - 118,962

176,141 435,010 691,403 59,546 5494 1,367,594

2021 Annual Report — T - —F &
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group regards total equity as capital and manages
its capital structure and makes adjustment to it in light of
changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new
shares. No changes were made in the Group’s objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by total capital plus net debt. Net debt includes
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, trade and notes
payables and other payables, less cash and cash equivalents.
Capital includes total equity. The gearing ratios as at the end of
the reporting periods were as follows:

36.

CXidE st e ES:

31 December 2021 —&E_—4F+_"F=+—H

MEAMEEEERBE @

BEHXEE
FEBEAEENEZERARELAER
TRSERRE ) TR RRENERLER
UFHEEGRBRRFINEAER

FEBREDBEGRERAREERAEER
R WRFAEBER RSB EHBE S
P RABRERRE 2EEAEDR
RIKNHIRE -ARREEERHEITH
KH-RBE_2-_—F+"B=+—H

T EF+__RB=+—HLEFE 'K
ERITRAEAEENER BHERRERF
R DR o

rEBERAARLEXREZEELR BREX
RERBHFREGUBSBEAMNEEF
B-EBHFHEBESSRITREMES
FES B 5 RN B SR8 A R ELA B A 7K
BoREARERREEFBY EACEED
BER NS HRBEELERNT ¢
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. MFRAIGEEBEREE @
AND POLICIES (continued)
Capital management (continued)

BEXEE @

31 December 31 December
2021 2020

—E—F “EEF
+-A=+—8 +=ZB=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTT AREEFTT
(Restated)
(f2=E751))

Interest-bearing bank and STERTTAEAMEE
other borrowings (note 25) (Hfa225) 885,795 1,015,603
Trade and notes payables FE(T B 5 BR AR FE 1T 2 45 293,920 198,863
Other payables (note 24) HAENRIE (fa24) 165,473 117,203
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B RS RIASEEY (249,213) (166,882)
Net debt (Ets: 1,095,975 1,164,787
Total equity R ARER 1,352,639 1,239,635
Capital and net debt BERNEFEFRE 2,448,614 2,404,422
Gearing ratio BELE=XE 45% 48%
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37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 37. ATHMBFRRAER

COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the BRARBNBREMRNH B AERNE
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: BN -
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
s “ETF
+-A=+—B +-A=t—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B AR E 373,362 373,362
CURRENT ASSETS MEBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries N ENEIE 335,068 336,646
Other receivables HhfEWERIE 4,082 4,599
Cash and cash equivalents RERREFEY 391 625
Total current assets MENE EARE 339,541 341,870
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEBER
Interest-bearing bank borrowings SHRIBITEE - 25,049
Amounts due to subsidiaries NI RE 61,656 35,570
Dividend payable FEATRZ B 182 188
Total current liabilities Ve I=E I <E-E 61,838 60,807
NET CURRENT ASSETS MBIEERE 277,703 281,063
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BERER
CURRENT LIABILITIES nEaE 651,067 654,425
Net assets BEEZE 651,067 654,425
EQUITY fEzE
Issued capital BEITRA 6,329 6,329
Reserves (note) #E (a2 644,737 648,096
Total equity 7 AR & 651,066 654,425
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37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 37. BZREMBRRR @
COMPANY (continued)
Note: Kt -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: RABVEBE LT
Share
Share  Contributed award Treasury Retained
premium surplus reserve shares profits Total
RinEE BABE RREGHE Bk RE &R st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEEFT  ARETR ARBTr ARETR ARETT ARETR
At 1 January 2020 RIZ2ZZF—F—H 270,308 370,213 8,401 (18,493) 19,886 650,315
Profit for the year FEREF - - - - 40,634* 40,634
Transfer of share award reserve INEG RS )
upon share vesting REIRAE (1,082) - (4,106) 5,188 - -
Equity-settled share award plan MR FRH B3
- - (4,295) = = (4,295)
Final 2019 dividend declared BEER_Z—NEREKE - - - - (38,558) (38,558)
At 31 December 2020 and RZFZFE+TA=1-H
1 January 2021 kZZF-_—%—F—H 269,226 370,213 - (13,305) 21,962 648,096
Loss for the year FREE - - = = (3,359) (3,359)
At 31 December 2021 RIEZ—%+ZA=+—-H 269,226 370,213 - (13,305) 18,603 044,737
Contributed surplus A RER
Contributed surplus represents the excess of the fair value of the PABBIEREERRAEESERMNAAE
shares of Hong Kong Kingdom at the date of the Reorganisation over EBEHARBRIIAMETHROEENEEE-
the nominal value of the shares issued by the Company in exchange
therefor.
¢ Profit for the year of 2020 includes dividends from subsidiaries & —E_EFEFERN A EIERE N E A
attributable to previous years’ profits of RMB44,789,000. 5] fE 14 48 12 F B A B R BN B I
44,789,000t ©
38. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL  38. HUESHMBEHRR

STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 18 March
2022.
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